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Dear Shareaholders

In the past year of 2024, Thailand’s economic situation remained sluggish, unable to recover or
grow to its full potential. Additionally, global trade has significantly slowed down, with concerns
arising over trade barriers and increasing tariffs. These factors have created an environment that
has not been conducive to business expansion in Thailand. Moreover, the rapid development
and transformation of technology have begun to profoundly impact both businesses and daily
life. Many industries have faced stagnation and struggled to adapt, which has led to increased
unemployment rates, employment issues, and a significant reduction in household incomes. Both
organizations and consumers have been cautious in their spending, leading to a slower-than-ex-
pected market growth overall. Consumers have increasingly turned to online marketing channels,
which are convenient, fast, and reasonably priced due to intense competition, characteristics
typical of the Electronic Commerce market.

The rapid shift in online marketing channels and changes in consumer behavior have impacted
the retail business in every aspect, and our company has been no exception. Although we have
focused on creating a balance between physical stores and online sales channels, consumer
preference for online shopping, which has become highly competitive, comes with significant
costs such as marketing expenses, price competition, shipping costs, and service provider fees.
This has resulted in a decline in our business performance compared to the previous year, even
though we managed to maintain sales and market share at previous levels.

This year, the company has adjusted its marketing strategy by improving and expanding the ser-
vices offered in our physical stores, sourcing products that can attract and meet customer needs,
integrating advanced technologies, and enhancing after-sales service quality. We aim to increase
the knowledge and skills of our staff, ensuring they can provide in-depth product information
and give clear, accurate advice on the efficiency and capabilities of the products. The goal is
to offer customers the maximum benefit and value from our products, as we believe that direct
customer engagement through physical stores will be the most effective and efficient approach.

Furthermore, the company will continue its policy of carefully controlling expenses and invest-
ments, a strategy that has been consistently followed and well-supported by sound reasoning.

In closing, the Board of Directors and Management would like to express our sincere gratitude
to all shareholders, customers, and business partners for their ongoing support and valuable
advice to the company. We reaffirm our commitment to operating the business with careful at-
tention, transparency, and business ethics, while also contributing to the economy, society, and
environment for sustainable growth and the highest benefit to our customers and shareholders
moving forward.

Mr. Teera Aphaiwongse Mr. Min Intanate
Chairman of the Board  Executive Chairman
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Summary Profile of The Director and Management

Summary Profile of
The Director and Management

Mr. Teera Aphaiwongse

78 years of age

Chairman of the Board

Independent Director

Chairman of Audit Committee

Chairman of Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Appointment Date: 29 October 2012 / 12 Years
Shareholding Percentage (as of 30 December 2024): 0.10%
| Relationship with Directors and Management : - None -

Educations
Master of Engineering (Computer Science), University of New South Wales,Australia
Certificate from Director Certification Program (DCP), 5/2001
Certificate Nation Defence College, 377

Work Experience for the Past 5 Years

Listed company

2012-Present Chairman of the Board, Independent Director, Chairman of Audit Committee,
Chairman of Nomination and Remuneration Committee S P V | Public Company Limited

Non-listed companies

2017-Present Advisor to the Board National Credit Bureau Company Limited

2017-2020  Adbvisor to the Board Electronic Transactions Development Agency
Ministry of Information and Communication Technology

2016-Present Chairman Infomax System Solutions & Services Company Limited

Mr. Sujin Suwannagate

74 years of age

Vice-Chairman of the Board of Directors /
Independent Director / Member of Audit Committee /
Member of Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Appointment Date: 29 October 2012 / 12 Years
Shareholding Percentage (as of 30 December 2024): 0.08%
Relationship with Directors and Management : - None -

Educations
Master of Business Administration, Long Island University, USA
Certificate from Director Accreditation Program (DAP), SET 2012

Work Experience for the Past 5 Years

Listed company

2012-Present Vice-Chairman of the Board of Directors / Independent Director , Member of
Audit Committee Member of Nomination and Remuneration Committee
S P V | Public Company Limited

Non-listed company

- None -
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Mr. Min Intanate

70 years of age
Director (Authorized Directors) / Executive Chairman

Appointment Date: 6 January 2011 / 13 Years

Shareholding Percentage (as of 30 December 2024): 0.08%
Relationship with Directors and Management :

Father Mr.Sophon Intanate (Director)

Educations
+ Honorary Doctoral Degree of Science (Information Technology), Rajamangala University of Technology Thanyaburi, Thailand
Honorary Doctoral Degree of Laws, Dominican University of California, USA
Honorary Doctoral Degree of Science (Information Technology for Management),Mahasarakham University, Thailand
Honorary Degree of Computer Science, Rajamangala University of Technology Thanyaburi, Thailand
Bachelor of Architecture, Fu Hsing Institute of Technology, Taiwan
Thailand Insurance Leadership Program, Class 1/2011, Office of Insurance Commission (OIC)
Certificate from Director Accreditation Program (DAP), 36/2005
Certificate from Role of the Chairman Program (RCP), 12/2005

Work Experience for the Past 5 Years

Listed companies

20NM-Present Director & Executive Chairman S P V | Public Company Limited
1996-2019 Director & Executive Chairman IT City Public Company Limited
2003-Present Director & Executive Chairman Business Online Public Company Limited
1989-2023 Director & Executive Chairman ARIP Public Company Limited

Non-listed companies

2008-Present Director ABIKS Development Company Limited
2006-Present Chairman of the Board D&B (Thailand) Company Limited
2000-Present Director National Credit Bureau Company Limited
1987-Present  Director Advanced Research Group Company Limited

Mr. Narathorn Wongvises

72 years of age
Director (Authorized Directors)
Chairman of Risk Management Committee

Appointment Date: 6 January 2011 / 13 Years
Shareholding Percentage (as of 30 December 2024): 0.70%
Relationship with Directors and Management : - None -

Educations

+ Master of Science Industrial and Systems Engineering, San Jose State University, USA
Bachelor of Science Industrial Engineering and Operation Research University of California,
Berkeley, California, US.A.
Certificate from Director Accreditation Program (DAP), 7/2004

Work Experience for the Past 5 Years
Listed company
2011- Present Director & Chairman of Risk Management Committee S P V | Public Company Limited

Non-listed companies
2019-2023 Member of Committee on Development Information Technology Office of the
Nation Anti-Corruption Commission

2016-2022 Director Chairman of Executive Remuneration Sub-committee Member of Organization
Strategy Steering Sub-committee Deposit Protection Agency

2012-Present Chairman of the Board PCC International Company Limited

20M-Present  Advisor Advanced Research Group Company Limited
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Mr. Trisorn Volyarngosol

63 years of age

Director(Authorized Directors)/ Executive Director /
Member of Risk Management Committee

and Managing Director

Mrs. Susama Rativanich

47 years of age

Independent Director / Member of Audit Committee
Member of Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Appointment Date: 6 January 2011 / 13 Years

Shareholding Percentage (as of 30 December 2024): 6.50%
Relationship with Directors and Management :

Spouse of Mrs. Petcharat Volyarngosol

Appointment Date: 29 October 2012 / 12 Years
Shareholding Percentage (as of 30 December 2024): 0.08%
Relationship with Directors and Management : - None -

Educations
Educations +  Master of Science in Information Systems, American University, USA
Master of Business Administration, University of New Haven, USA - Certificate Director Accreditation Program (DAP), SET 2012
Certificate from Director Accreditation Program (DAP), SET 2012
Certificate from Capital Market Academy Program (CMA), 29 Work Experience for the Past 5 Years
Listed Companies
Work Experience for the Past 5 Years 2012-Present  Independent Director, Member of Audit Committee and Member of Nomination and
Listed company Remuneration Committee S P V | Public Company Limited
2011-Present Director, Executive Director, Member of Risk Management Committee and 2012-2017 Manager, General Administration Division MCOT Public Company Limited

Managing Director S P V | Public Company Limited
Non-listed Company

Non-listed companies 2023 Head of Planning and Scheduling Division, Program Production Department
2022-Present Member of Board Thai Listed Companies Association (TLCA) Bangkok Broadcasting & T.V. Company Limited

2019-2023 President MAI Listed Company Association 2021-2022 Senior Specialist, Business and Program Development Division
1996-Present  Director SPV Digital Service Company Limited Bangkok Broadcasting & T.V. Company Limited

1994-Present  Director SPV Advance Corporation Limited 2017-2020 Program Department Manager Amarin Television Company Limited

Mr. Sophon Intanate

42 years of age
Director

Mrs. Petcharat Volyarngosol

64 years of age
Director (Authorized Directors) / Executive Director /
Member of Risk Management Committee and

Vice President (Operations) Appointment Date: 31 March 2015 / 10 Years

Shareholding Percentage (as of 30 December 2024): - None -
Relationship with Directors and Management :

Appointment Date: 6 January 2011 / 13 Years
ppol uary " Offspring Mr.Min Intanate (Director)

Shareholding Percentage (as of 30 December 2024): 6.9%
Relationship with Directors and Management :
Spouse of Mr.Trisorn Volyarngosol

Educations

+ Master of Commerce (Economics & Banking) The University of Sydney NSW, Australia
. « Bachelor of Commerce (Economics & Finance) The University of Sydney NSW, Australia

Educations - Certificate from Director Certification Program (DCP), 2013

Master of Business Administration, Major in Finance, University of New Haven, USA Thailand Insurance Leadership Program, 2013, Office of Insurance Commission (OIC)
Master of Computer Information System, University of New Haven, USA

Certificate from Director Accreditation Program (DAP), SET 2012 Work Experience for the Past 5 Years
. Listed companies
WOI’k Experience for the Past 5 Years 2015-Present Director S P V | Public Company Limited
Listed compan){ ' ) ) ) 2019-Present Director, President IT City Public Company Limited
20M-Present Director, Executive Director, Member of Risk Management Committee 2018-2019 Vice President Marketing and Product IT City Public Company Limited
and Vice President (Operations) S P V | Public Company Limited 2016-2018 General Manager IT City Public Company Limited
Non-listed companies Non-listed companies
1996-Present Director SPV Digital Service Company Limited 2016-Present Director Touch Printing Republic Co. Ltd.
1994-Present Director SPV Advance Corporation Limited 2016-2018 Director UITOX (Thailand) Co. Ltd.
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Mr. Hathaiwat Puapunt

35 years of age
Vice President (Accounting and Finance)

Mr. Pongsakorn Boonsrimuang

54 years of age
Senior Manager Service (iCenter)

Appointment Date: 22 August 2024
Shareholding Percentage (as of 30 December 2024): - None -

Relationship with Directors and Management : - None - Appointment Date: 1 March 2011 /13 Years

Shareholding Percentage (as of 30 December 2024): 0.21%
Relationship with Directors and Management : - None -
Educations

Bachelor of Accountancy, Chiang Mai University

CFO's Orientation Course for New IPOs, SET
CFO's Refresher 2024, SET

Educations
Master of Telecommunications Enineering, King Mongkut's Institute of Technology Ladkrabang

Work Experience for the Past 5 Years

Work Experience for the Past 5 Years 2012-Present Senior Manager-Engineering and Service S P V | Public Company Limited

2024-Present Vice President (Accounting and Finance), Executive Director,
Member of Risk Management Committee S P V | Public Company Limited
2018-2024 Manager, Assurance EY Office Limited

Mr. Pairoj Ulisnant

56 years of age
Senior Manager - Retail

Mrs. Duangnapa Volyarngosol

59 years of age
Assistant Vice President (Product Management)

Appointment Date: 1 March 2011 / 13 Years
Shareholding Percentage (as of 30 December 2024): - None -
Relationship with Directors and Management : - None -

Appointment Date: 1 March 2011 / 13 Years

Shareholding Percentage (as of 30 December 2024): 0.37%
Relationship with Directors and Management :

Sister in Law of Mr.Trisorn Volyarngosol

Educations
. Vocational Certificate in Electrical Power
Educations
Bachelor Degree of Science, Computer Science, Chiang Mai University Work Experience for the Past 5 Years

. 2012-Present Senior Manager-Retail S P V | Public Company Limited
Work Experience for the Past 5 Years 9 pany
2011-Present Assistant Vice President S P V | Public Company Limited
1994-Present Director SPV Advance Corporation Limited
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Summary of Financial Information

Summary of Financial Information

For the year ended December 31

Total Assets

Total Liabilities
Shareholders’ Equity
Total Revenues
Total Expenses

Net Profit

Financial Ratio

Net Profit Margin (%)

Debt to Equity Ratio (times)
Return on Assets (%)
Return on Equity (%)

Information per share

0 Basic Earnings per share (Baht)
Number of shares-Issued and paid up
(share: Million)

Par value per share (Baht)

2024 2023
121333 123166
644.27 65162
569.06 580.04
6,83141 6,770.05
6,783.02 6,669.86
4839 10019
0.71 148
113 112
550 174
8.42 17.73
0.12 0.25
400 400
0.50 0.50

(Unit : Million Baht)

2022

1,052.95
503.10
549.85

5,615.76

5,489.20
126.56

225
091
18.05
24.30

032
400

0.50

enue from (Uniit : Million Baht)
le Product

6,28172

Summary of Financial Information

\
enue from (Unit : Million Baht)
-Apple Product

MBasic earnings pershareis calculated by dividing profit for the year (excluding other comprehensive

income) by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year

\
anue Comparisons
9.34% 702%
. 094% 062% 0% 06%%
pleprs
Apple Non-Apple Service Other Apple Non-Apple Service Other
Product Product Product Product
- J
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6,032.65 632.07
47950
2022 2023 2024 2022 2023 2024
J J
(Unit : Million Baht) (Unit : Million Baht)
63.31
47.25
4202
2294
2022 2023 2024 2022 2023 2024
J J
\
al Revenues (Unit : Million Baht)
6,83141 I
6.770.05 . 1,231.66 121333
1,052.95
I - . I
2022 2023 2024

Total Libilities . Total Assets
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Vision Mission

To be leader in digital solutions provider that creates superior digital experience
for all generations

1. Committed to be a social contributor in educational development by encouraging
teachers and students to utilize technology in data analysis, idea creation, planning,

researching, problem solving, co-working and presentation to enter in “LifeLong Learning”

2. Committed to create best experience in technology for everyday lifestyle for all ages

3. Committed to develop our team and cultivating a positive working attitude in order
to professionally serve our customers. We also place an emphasis on building our
knowledge to keep pace with today’s rapid technological advancements so as to
achieve the best possible results.

4. Committed to offering the best service and providing innovative technology that
caters for a modern, creative and digital lifestyle

S P V | : Digital Experience and Solutions for all generations

S - Service Excellence
Providing the best service to accommodate our customers’ digital lifestyles

P - People

Continuing to develop and care for our team in order to move forward together

V - Value

Ensuring our customers, staff and stakeholders receive the value they deserve

| - Integrity

Managing business with honesty and adhere to virtue.

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 (Form 56-1 One Report)
S P V | PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

Business and Performance

Business and Performance

Business Overview

S P V| Public Company Limited's core business is a
reseller of Apple products, including computers
(iMac, Macbook Pro, Mackbook Air), iOS devices
(iPod, iPad, iPhone) and various other accessories.
Also distributed are other brands compatible
with Apple products, such as software, network
equipment, printers, and graphic products.
SPVI also distributes products associated with
iOS devices, such as speakers, headphones,
protective cases, and screen protectors.
We provide products and services that cater
for all the needs of our end consumers through
variety retail channels thru iStudio by SPVi, iBeat
by SPVi, U-Store by SPVi and Mobi. We also provide
total solutions for organizations, as well as ed-
ucational institutions and state enterptrises.

Furthermore, SPVI operate service center which is
certified to the Authorized Apple Service Provider
under the name of “iCenter”. At all branches of
iCenter, the after sales service and consulting
service will be performed by Apple Authorized
Technicians.

Policy and Business Direction

SPVI's business strategy is focused on maintaining
sustainable growth by providing integrated
products and services that add value to both our
customers and society. We also support a learning
culture and develop our staff to uphold the
following corporate values, vision and missions:

Values

S P V | : Digital Experience and Solutions
for all generations

- Service Excellence : Providing the best service
to accommodate our customers’ digital lifestyles.
+ People : Continuing to develop and care for
our team in order to move forward together.
+ Value : Ensuring our customers, staff and
stakeholders receive the value they deserve.
- Integrity : Managing business with honesty
and adhere to virtue.

Vision
To be leader in digital solutions provider

that creates superior digital experience for
all generations

Missions

1. Committed to be a social contributor in
educational development by encouraging
teachers and students to utilize technology
in data analysis, idea creation, planning, re-
searching, problem solving, co-working and
presentation to enter in “LifeLong Learning”

2. Committed to create best experience in
technology for everyday lifestyle for all ages

3. Committed to develop our team and culti-
vating a positive working attitude in order to
professionally serve our customers. We also
place an emphasis on building our knowledge
to keep pace with today’s rapid technological
advancements so as to achieve the best
possible results.

4. Committed to offering the best service and
providing innovative technology that caters
for a modern, creative and digital lifestyle

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 (Form 56-1 One Report)
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Business Objectives (3-5 Year Plan)
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Our company aims to lead and improve comprehensive aspects of IT education with the Apple
Education Solution in order to promote Creative Learning; emphasis will be placed on Edutivity
which is the educational activities that lead the life-long learning to new generations. Our experi-
enced management team, sales team, solution engineer team as well as the quality services from
U-Store in leading universities in Thailand are able to approach our target groups, which range
from students, university professors, private enterprises to the general public. SPVI is committed
to solidifying its leadership role across diverse target groups and professions. This strategic ap-
proach in marketing is poised for expansion, aligning seamlessly with global economic trends. It
encompasses the dynamic growth and advancements in Internet network technology, as well as
the foray into the Internet of Things (loT). This initiative enhances connectivity across a spectrum
of devices, including communication tools, tablets, smartphones, wearables, mobility and integrat-
ed security systems. Furthermore, it facilitates swift and efficient access to previously constrained
knowledge and data. All our target groups on both individual and business levels are constantly
looking to develop their potential; most notably those with professions that rely on technology and
individuals that use technology creatively throughout their lives (Creative Life Long Learning). As a
result, SPVI also intends to expand its customer base to include more business groups, with the
use of more Diversified products and solutions such as a Color Management System, Smart Class
Room Solution, Smart Meeting Room Solution, Storage Area Network, Software Design Network,
VDO Conference System via IP Phone, Server Management System, VMWare Server, and MiHCM-
the digital HR Solutions.

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 (Form 56-1 One Report)
S P V I PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

Be Leader in IT
for Education with
Apple Education
Solution

Promote Creative
Learning Through
Technology

Enable
experience
of technology
utilization at all
ages

Expand to
Other Corporate
Customers with
IT Solutions

In 2024, the recovery of the tourism and export sectors, coupled with economic stimulus
measures in the latter part of the year, is expected to enhance the ease of travel for tourists
to Thailand, following the resolution of the COVID-19 pandemic. Consumer behaviors remain
largely unchanged, such as continued growth in online shopping and the widespread use of
online platforms for work and education, owing to their greater flexibility and ability to foster
open learning exchanges. Additionally, the government has implemented measures to stimulate
consumer spending, such as the “Easy E-Receipt 2024" initiative.

This aligns with the Company’s strategic objectives to drive sales growth by expanding both
sales channels and service centers through physical retails locations, including iStudio, U Store,
Mobi and iCenter as well as AIS Shop. At the same time, the Company remains dedicated to ad-
vancing and enhancing its presence on online marketplace platforms and e-commerce stores,
ensuring it meets the evolving needs of customers and broadens accessibility to its products
and services.

Drive Sales Growth Through Store Expansion

Store Expansion in 2025-2029

SPVI plans to create store expansions for 3-5 branches per year for all kind of stores including
iStudio, U-Store, Mobi and AIS Shops as well as plans for renovations at existing stores. The store
expansions plan is subject to be adjusted according to the overall and economic situations as well
as the opportunities for investment. SPVI also plans for online expansion in order to penetrate into
wider areas as well as integrated the offline and online channels together for omnichannel retails

In the year 2024, the company operates a total of 77 branches, which can be categorized as
follows: 6 iStudio branches, 4 iBeat branches, 26 U-Store branches, 5 Mobi branches, 5 iCenter
service centers, 13 AIS Shop by Partner stores, 8 AIS Telewiz stores, 1 AIS Buddy stores, and 9
A-Store branches.

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 (Form 56-1 One Rep
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SPVI's Significant Events
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SPVI's Significant Events

Vs

S P V | Company Limited

was established with

a registered capital

of 120,000,000 baht

from the joint venture

between SPV Advance

Company Limited and IT

City Public Company

- Acquired all kinds of
store type from SPV
Advance Company
Limited including 4
iStudio, 1iShop, 1 iBeat,
7 U-Stores and 2 Smart
Bars

- Opened 2 new U-Stores,
28 Apple corners in
IT City and 26 Apple
corners in Big C

- Totally, S P V | store
network was 17 branches
and 54 points of sell
nationwide

The Company was
registered as the Public
Company and started its
first trading in MAI Stock
Exchange in December
19, 2013

7

S P V | store network

became 31 branches

+ Opened 4 new branches
including 1 iBeat, 2
Smart Bar and 1 Mobi

- Acquired license and
started to operate 2
branches of AIS Shop
by Partner

- Terminated all Apple
Corners in IT City

7

S P V | stores network

became 40 branches

+ Opened 9 new stores
including 1 iBeat, 3
Mobi, 2 iCenter, 1 AIS
Shop by partner and 2
AlS Telewiz

- Terminated 2 branches
of mobi

Vs

S P V | stores network

became 48 branches

- Opened 6 new stores
including 1 AIS Shop by
partners, 2 AIS Telewiz,
and 3U-Stores

- Terminated 1 Mobi,
1iBeat and 1 iCenter

~

S P V | stores network

became 66 branches

- Opened 9 new stores
including 1 U-Stores, 1
AIS Shop by partner, 3
AIS Telewiz, 1 A-Store/1
Mobi and 2 iCenter

- Transformed iBeat at
Central Plaza Rayong to
be iStudio by SPVi

7

S P V | stores network

became 80 branches

+ Opened 4 new stores
including 3 U-Stores
and 1 iStudio

+ Terminated 5 stores
including 4 AIS Telewiz
and 1 A-Store

+ S P VI store network

became 20 branches
and 54 points of sell
nationwide

+ Opened 3 new branches

within the year including
U-Stores, Smart Bar and
iStudio

—
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S P V | store network

became 25 branches and

23 points of sell nationwide

- Opened 6 new branches
within the year including
2 iBeat and 4 Mobi

+ Terminated all Apple
Corners in Big C and
Smart Bar at Head
Office

.

S P V | store network

became 33 branches

- Opened 5 new stores
including 2 Mobi,
2 Service Centers and
1 AIS Shop by Partner

+ Terminated 3 Mobi

- Rename authorized
service center called
“Smart Bar” to “iCenter”

R

S P V | stores network

became 45 branches

- Opened 10 new stores
including 4 AIS Shop by
partners, 3 AIS Telewiz,
1 AIS Buddy, 1 iCenter
and iSolution Experience
Center

- Terminated 1 U-Stores, 1
iStudio and 3 iCenter

-

S P V | stores network

became 57 branches

- Opened 12 new stores
including 8 U-Stores,
3 A-Store and 1 AIS
Telewiz

+ Terminated 1 iShop and
1 Mobi

-—

S P V | stores network

became 81 branches

- Opened 16 new stores
including 3 U-Stores, 2
AIS Shop by partner, 2
AlS Telewiz and 4 AIS
Buddy, 6 A Store and
1 Mobi

- Terminated 1 AlS Telewiz

—
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S P V | stores network

became 77 branches

- Opened 2 new stores
including 1 iStudio and
1 AIS Telewiz

« Terminated 1 AIS Telewiz,
1 Mobi, 2 iCenter, and 1
iSolution

-
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Nature of Business

Revenue Structure

2024 2023 2022

Revenue Classrﬁcatlon Million Million Million

Revenue from Apple Products

- MAC OS Computers (MAC Operating System) 44223 6.47 457.62 6.76 456.41 8.13
- iOS Devices 512.61 74.84 4,739.77 70.00 4,015.53 7150
- Apple Accessories 726.88 10.64 835.26 12.34 67255 11.98
Total Revenue from Apple Products 6,281.72 9195 6,03265 89.10 5144.49 91.61
Revenue from Non-Apple Products 479.50 7.02 632.07 9.34 397.90 7.09
Total Revenue from Sales 6,761.22 9897 6,664.72 98.44 5,542.39 98.69
Service Income 2294 034 63.31 0.94 2414 0.43
Other Income 47.25 0.69 42.02 0.62 4924 0.88
Total Revenue 6,831.41 100.00 6,770.05 100.00 5,615.77 100.00

Product Characteristics & Services

SPVI is one of the authorized resellers of Apple products, of which include Apple computers,
iOS devices and Apple accessories. It is also a reseller of other Non-Apple brands that can be
associated with Apple products in order to accommodate customers’ needs. As well as, SPVI
provides service centers called “Smart Bars” and, in 2016, upgraded their service standard to
Apple Premium Service Provider and has been renamed to iCenter.
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The Company’s products and services can be divided
into the following three categories:

1. Apple Products

SPVI was granted authorization from Apple South Asia (Thailand) Limited to be a reseller of
Apple products. SPVI purchased most of Apple products from Apple’'s Authorized Distributors.
The products were categorized as below:

Apple Computers with MAC OS (MAC Operating System), which consist of iMac, Mac Pro,
Mac Mini, MacBook Pro and MacBook Air.

iOS Devices, which consist of the iPod, the iPad , and Apple Watch. Since Apple appointed
mobile operators to be the resellers of the iPhone, SPVI will purchase iPhones from those
resellers.

Apple Accessories such as battery chargers, headphones, mouse devices, extension cords,
Internet routers and AppleCare Protection plan.

2. Non-Apple Products
In order to accommodate customers’ needs, SPVI was also granted authorization to be a reseller
of Non-Apple products, as categorized below;

Accessories such as headphones, Bumper Case, Screen Protector Film, Speaker, Power Bank
and Battery Charger

Smartphone from Non-Apple brand including Samsung, Vivo, Oppo, Huawei, Xiaomi and Realme
selling at Mobi Stores and AIS Shops

Graphic products including Inkjet Printer (Pro Series) from the brand “Epson”, imported paper
for printing from the Japanese brand “iPaper”, Digital Imaging and Graphics Art from the
brand “X-rite”

Software products such as Adobe, EFI (Colorproof XF Program) and Human Capital Management
Program (HCM)

Computer products such as Laptop from Dell, Lenovo, HP and Acer in order to provide options
to the customers who demand for Computer under other brand name.

3. Services

SPVI was granted authorization to be an Authorized Apple Service Provider from Apple South
Asia (Thailand) Limited. Thus, SPVI was eligible to operate service center called “Smart Bar” to
provide after-sale-service for all Apple products to all customers and was qualified to purchase
all spare parts directly from Apple and was renamed to “iCenter” in 2016. Currently, there are 5
“iCenter” located in following locations

- G Tower Grand Rama 9, G Floor

- Central Plaza Chiangrai, 1st Floor

- Passion Shopping Destination Center Rayong, 2nd floor
- Home Pro Center in Nakorn Prathom, 2nd Floor

- Central Phuket Festival, 2nd Floor
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Sales and Distribution Channel

SPVI distributed the product through 3 main channels, which were consist of

1. Retail Stores, the distribution channel to

individual customers
15 branches of iStudio / iBeat /Mobi by SPVi
located in shopping center, and office
building. The main service in iStudio was
to provide demonstration and encourage
customers to have direct experience with
the Apple products and accessories in order
to reassure the customers before making
decision
31 branches of AIS Shop by Partner, AIS
Telewiz, AIS Buddy and A-Store which was
granted the authorization from Advance
Wireless Network Company to operate AIS
Shop in order to sell products and services
with the same quality standard as provided
by AIS
26 branches of U-Store located in leading
universities. This customer segment primarily
consists of students, faculty members, and
staff affiliated with educational institutions.
The primary objective of this clientele is to
procure products for educational purposes.
Members of this group are entitled to pur-
chase Apple products at educational prices
exclusively at U-Store outlets.

2.0Online Channels are the distribution channels
for retail customers through various online
platforms, including Shopee, Lazada, and the
company’s e-commerce website.

3. Corporate sales channel, the direct sales
channel to business customers to offer diver-
sified products and solutions for example the
solution of Color Management System, Smart
Class Room Solution and Smart Meeting Room
Solution and Human Capital Management
(HCM) Solutions

For academic institutions, SPVI has set dedicated
sales team and provide demonstration and
training to reassure management team as well as
professors on the application for educational aid.
SPVI also joined the universities’ academic
days to provide demonstration and encourage
students to have direct experience for Apple’s
advance technology. This activity was to
strengthen SPVI's leadership image as the
leader in educational technology endorsed by
Apple technology.

SPVI initiated the “One to One Project” which
was co-project with educational institutions that
aimed to support computer to individual students
at school. SPVI also support academic institution
to service computer lab at school. The company
was responsible for system and equipment
delivery, installation and maintenance for the
academic institution. SPVI focused to service
academic institution customers in order to
increase its market share and increase its
reputation in the market.

Marketing and Competitiveness

Competitive Strategies

1. Distribution Channel Management

Due to most of the revenue came from retail
channels which contribute 93.28 percent, 92.24
percent, and 94.51 percent of total revenue in
2022, 2023 and 2024 accordingly, SPVI focus
the store expansion in the area contained of
high purchasing power population and conve-
nience for customers. The company consid-
ered location only on prime area in building or
shopping plaza to ensure the visibility and able
to lead traffic to stores. Moreover, SPVI also
considered expansion for all kinds of stores
including U-Store which is the distribution channel
for Apple Product. This channel targeted to
University Students, Professors and Institution
Staffs who have need the product for educational
purposes. As well as, the expansion for Mobi
Stores where sell both Apple’s iOS and Non-Apple
SmartPhone, AIS Shop by Partner as per licensing
by Advance Wireless Network Company and
AIS Telewiz.

In 2020, the Company has joined with AIS to
open A-Store located in Universities to sell Apple
products and provided the same service as
AlIS shop. This kind of store targeted to university
student and institution officers. This joined
business made SPVI became more competitive
from the variety of retail channels in 2024 in-
cluding iStudio by SPVI, iBeat by SPVI, Mobi,
U-Store by SPVI, AIS Shop by Partner, AIS Telewiz,
AlS Buddy and A-Store.

Furthermore, the Company maintains its com-
mitment to delivering end-to-end services,
while concurrently extending the outreach of
product and service offerings through online
platforms and social media channels.

2. Strengthen good relationship with partners
especially the manufacturer

The Company has been an Apple’s authorized
reseller for 30 years and able to always maintain
good relationship and good support from Apple.
To be appointed as Apple’s reseller, the Company
must be validated in its strong financial status
and distribution capability. The Company got
supports from Apple for the staffs training to
train product knowledge and selling skill for
Apple products.

In addition, the Company also has good rela-
tionship with non-Apple product manufacturers
including Epson, EFl and Adobe which allowed
more capability of the Company to serve more
variety needs of customers with more variety
of products. Due to these good relationship
with partners, the Company was able to reach
more beneficial information including new
product launch, outdated products, new trend,
or technologies. This information supported
the Company to have more accuracy forecast,
be up-to-date and able to have a good product
purchasing plan that match with customer
needs.

3. Focus on Comprehensive Service and Ser-
vice Excellence

The Company gave priority to the quality of service
especially from salesperson who directly contact
to customers at the retail stores. The Company
emphasized on their politeness, attentiveness,
and their product knowledge. The Company
believed that the good service quality will build
good relationship between the Company and
the customers and able to create word of mouth
on the company reputation.

In addition, the Company provided after sale
service to customers through 5 stores of iCenter,
where provided repair service for Apple products
either under warranty or expired. iCenter open
every day for its comprehensive service which
aim to provide convenience to customers.
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Nature of Business

4. Emphasize on Quality and Capability

of Personnel

Due to the aim for service excellence, the Com-
pany emphasize on people development to
build capability and readiness to service with
qualitytothe customersbothbeforeandaftersell.
All salespersons must attend product knowl-
edge training to qualify the service standard.
The training course aim to provide under-
standing in product latency and its instruction.
As well as, the salespersons always got update
on product information from time to time in
order to be able to convey to the customer
for their thoroughly understanding. The Com-
pany provided elLearning system which allowed
salespersons at every retail outlet to reach
the information at anytime from anywhere.
The learning content was being update con-
stantly as well as the new product update and
technical issues found in retail stores were
consolidated in this system in order to encourage
the corporate culture in knowledge sharing. In
addition, this learning system supported time
and cost saving. Aftersale service staffs, es-
pecially iCenter's technicians, will be trained
through Apple’s learning system and their senior
technicians to have knowledge, expertise, and
various skills. The iCenter’'s technicians must
be certified by Apple. The Company also has
customers’ satisfaction survey for service stan-
dard improvement.

5. Effective Inventory Management

The Company gave precedence to inventory
management due to the Company’s products
relied on changing of technology which hap-
pened at all time and caused product became
out-of-date got less potential to sell. With that,
the Company has developed the online inventory
management system that combined inventory
data from all stores to support better anal-
ysis for ordering product at optimum stock.
This system also allowed faster investigation
of inventory aging and support the Company
to manage the slow moving inventory on time.
The Company also gave policy to every retail
stores to do stock take and report to head-
quarter every day for better update inventory
movement for the effective inventory control.

6. Marketing Strategies

Target Customers
The Company set difference strategies for 2
target customers including

1. Corporate Customers

The Company assigned dedicated team from
Headquarter to approach to private enterprise,
state enterprise and institutional enterprise.
The sales team together with technician will
showcase their presentation, analysis and, in
some case, arranged seminar to corporate
customers in order to activated demand or
build credibility in the Company’s expertise.

2. End User or Individual Customers

The Company provide service to individual

customers through 4 type of retail outlets

2.1 iStudio / iBeat / Mobi
This store type will target to end-user by
providing product demonstration to allow
customer to get direct experience and
confident in buying the product. The Com-
pany will focus promoting in social media.

2.2 U-Store
This store type will target to university
student, professor and institutional officers
who need the product for their educational
purpose. To reach this target customer,
the company will promote through social
media and arrange on-ground activities
with university to showcase Apple product
or technology for education to university
students.

2.3 A-Store
The target customers for this store is university
student and educational institute officers.
The Company will focus on promotion offer
to the target and also arrange playground
for innovation projects.

2.4 AIS Shop by Partner, AIS Telewiz and
AIS Buddy
This store type will aim to serve end-cus-
tomers who have general needs which is
not limited to Apple product. The service
provided by this store will be the same as
AIS Shop operated by AlS.

Pricing Policy

Apple Product
The price offered at the Company’s retail store

will be aligned with Apple’s website until Apple
launch new model for replacement. Apple will
compensate according to the model, condition
and time agreed to allow the Company to mark
down price for the outdated product. This policy
is exceptional for iPhone Product which the
Company ordered from Advance Wireless Net-
work Company Limited (AlIS's affiliate company)
and AIS will set bundle price with AIS air-time
package for the Company.

Nature of Business

Non-Apple Product
As the Authorized Reseller, the Company will

apply the recommended price from the product
owner except the imported products, the Com-
pany will set own price policy by considering
on competitiveness to the market.

Revenue from Sales and Services Classified by Customer Type

Customer Type

Milion Baht Millon Baht Millon Baht

Corporate Customer

- Educational Institute 202.40
- Private Enterprise and State Enterprise 169.81
Revenue from Corporate Customer 372.21

Individual Customer from Retail Store

- iStudio, iBeat, Mobi 2,688.71
- U-Store 528.95
- A-Store 74.29
- AIS Shop by Partner, AIS Telewiz, AIS 69392
Buddy

- On-ground Event 511
- Online Stores 2,301.27
- iCenter 73.70
Revenue from Individual Customer 6,411.95
Total Revenue from Sales and Services 6,784.16

298 2221 330 229.62 413
250 299.70 4.46 144.28 259
549 521.81 776 373.90 6.72
39.63 244371 36.32 2,537.85 4559
7.80 82318 12.24 894.33 16.07
110 116.06 172 107.02 192
10.23 72523 10.78 673.38 12.10
0.75 86.09 128 54.95 0.99
3392 1,914.61 28.46 829.90 14.91
1.09 97.34 145 95.20 17
94.51 6,206.22 9224 5192.63 93.28
100.00 6,728.03 100.00 5,566.53 100.00
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Product & Service Sourcing Non-Apple Products
The Company also place order for non-Apple product through following manufacturer and

Apple Product distributors
The company has been appointed by Apple South Asia (Thailand) Limited to be the Authorized

Reseller of Apple products under the agreement of Apple Premium Reseller, Authorized Apple
Thailand Reseller and Apple Campus Store Reseller. The Company placed order to Apple’s Autho- Product Category Brand Manufacturer / Distributors
rized Distributor for Apple’s Computer and Accessories for example battery charger, headphone,
mouse, device connectors cable, internet router, and iOS product including iPhone, iPad and Apple

\Nature of Business Nature of Business a
(@)
@)
pd
—
m
pd
—

. . . Accessories Headphone and Small Bose Asavasopon Company Limited
Watch. For AppleCare Protection Plan, the Company will place order directly to Apple. Speakers BL Mahajak Development Company Limited
Jabra RTB Technology Company Limited
Jawbone W Gadget Company Limited
Product Category Manufacturer / Distributors
Case iPhone / iPad Variety of Distributors
Computer Desktop Computer : iMac, Ingram Micro (Thailand) Company Limited
hi Pri EPSON EPSON (Thail Ltd.
Mac Mini, Mac Pro Synnex (Thailand) Public Company Limited Graphic Prfn:far P T 50 T SO G( ;I;and) Company Ltd
VST ECS (Thailand) Company Limited rinting .aper. ecc.:o ec.:co m o
Color Calibration Tools X-Rite Union TSL Limited
MacBook Pro, MacBook Air Ingram Micro (Thailand) Company Limited
Synnex (Thailand) Public Company Limited
VST ECS (Thailand) Company Limited Software Design Software Adobe Adobe Systems Software Ireland Ltd.
Printing Software Fiery Fiery B.V., The Netherlands
iOS iPad Ingram Micro (Thailand) Company Limited Human Capital HCM iOperation Co., Ltd.
Synnex (Thailand) Public Company Limited Management Software
VST ECS (Thailand) Company Limited Device Management Jamf Jamf Software, LLC
Solution

Advance Wireless Network Company Limited

iPhone Advance Wireless Network Company Limited Smartphone SAMSUNG Wireless Device Supply Company Limited
Synnex (Thailand) Public Company Limited OPPO Advance Wireless Network Company Limited
Vivo Synnex (Thailand) Public Company Limited
Apple Watch Ingram Micro (Thailand) Company Limited Huawei
Synnex (Thailand) Public Company Limited Xiaomi
VST ECS (Thailand) Company Limited Realme
Advance Wireless Network Company Limited
Computer Laptop Dell Synnex (Thailand) Public Company Limited
Accessories Apple Care Protection Apple South Asia (Thailand) Limited Lenovo VST ECS (Thailand) Company Limited
HP AIS Distribution (Thailand) Public Company Limited
Battery Charger, Headphone, Ingram Micro (Thailand) Company Limited Acer Ingram Micro (Thailand) Company Limited
Device Connector Cable, Internet Synnex (Thailand) Public Company Limited
Router VST ECS (Thailand) Company Limited
Service

The Company has been appointed to Authorized Service Provider by Apple South Asia (Thailand)
Limited to operate iCenter, the service center for Apple product and able to order all parts
directly from Apple.
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Shareholder Structure

Shareholder Structure

200,000,000 baht consisting of 400,000,000 common

Registered Capital stocks with a par value of 0.50 baht per share.

Amount of Registered
Capital and Paid-up
Capital Issued and
Paid-up Capital

200,000,000 baht consisting of 400,000,000 common
stocks with a par value of 0.50 baht per share.

Top Ten Major shareholders as of 30 December 2024 include:

No. of Shares

Name of Shareholders % of shareholding

1. IT City Public Company Limited 116,000,000 29.00
2. Mr. Viroj Kosolthanawong 67,900,000 16.98
3. Mrs. Petcharat Volyarngosol 27,994,000 7.00
4. Mr. Trisorn Volyarngosol 26,024,116 6.51
5. Mr. Tiwa Shintadapong 6,368,600 159
6. Ms. Patchara Kiatnuntavimon 6,175,000 154
7. Mr. Veerapan Volyarngosol 5,603,576 140
8. Mr. Kittiyawadee Piriyapong 5,000,000 125
9. Mr. Sakda Phiwkhaw 4120,000 1.03
10. Mr. Perapat Volyarngosol 4,046,602 1.01
1. Other Shareholders 130,768,106 32.69
Total 400,000,000 100.00

Dividend Policy

The company’s dividend policy is to pay shareholders at least 40 percent of its net profit after tax.

However, the payout ratio may be lower if the company plans to expand its operations.
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Risk Management

Risk Management

Risk Management Policy and Risk Management Plan

The Company gave important to risk management in order to prepare for prevention and adaptation
to various risks as well as seeking for business opportunity from those risks. The Company had
established the Risk Management Committee as well as risk management policy, assessment
tools, and analysis of risk factors both internal and external factors that affect the Company in
order to implement and control the risk of the entire company.

Risk Management Process and Tools

The Company has implemented a risk management framework
in its business operation. The framework Is divided into 4 main
processes including identifying risks or business opportunities,
assessing the risks, developing an appropriate response to the
risks and reporting the risks to the committee by Quartery.

Forthe year 2024, the Company continued to operate in accordance
with the risk management policy set forth and this is in line with
the business direction. The risk factors were identified as follow.

1. Risk from being terminated as an authorized reseller of Apple products

SPVI was appointed by Apple South Asia (Thailand) Limited to be a reseller of Apple products and
to open service centers in order to provide after sales services for Apple customers. The company
purchased Apple products in the proportion of 93.18 percent, 92.63 percent and 94.00 percent
of the total products purchased by the company respectively during 2022-2024. The contract
with Apple is a year-to-year contract, which could be terminated at any time. If it happens, it will
have a significant adverse impact on the company’s business.

However, SPVI have experience as an Apple reseller for more than 30 years as well as generated
a sizeable sale figure and has strictly complied with the terms and conditions of the contract. The
management is confident that the company will continue to gain credibility and support from Apple.

2. Risk associate with the product obsolescence

Apple products are those with fast-paced technological changes. Driven by rapid ICT changes,
new Apple products are developed and launched into the market with an increasing speed to meet
customers’ demands, just like other IT products. Therefore, the company may encounter problems
with inventory management for the outdated or obsolete models, which cannot be sold in the market.

However, since the management team has a long-time experience in the business, it has a good
understanding of customers’ needs. The company has dedicated personnel to implement product
management. They will closely monitor product inventory, product selection and submit appropriate
amount of order to prevent the risk of outdated products. For the order of products, product
managers will regularly conduct surveys on customers’ requirements through salespersons and

branch managers. Furthermore, the company follows new product information, technology and
other trend updates from Apple and other resellers, which help the company to select products
that best fit its customers’ demands. Moreover, SPVI has an efficient inventory management by
implementing an online inventory system to link inventory data from all branches. At the end of
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each day, the company will perform a random check on the inventory of each branch and compare
to the report generated by the company’s inventory system. For branches with low inventory turnover,
the products will be transferred to the other branches as well as organize sales promotional
activities to help boost the sales. On the other hand, branches with inventory shortage will be
able to check inventory of other branches real-time. As a result, products are normally sold
before their popularity decline. Besides, when Apple launches new products to replace the old
models, the company will be compensated for price difference according to agreed models,
conditions and timing. This will enable the company to reduce old products’ prices in order to
be able to compete in the market.

3. Risk associated with the competition

The rapid growth of Information and Communication Technology (ICT) industry, particularly smartphone
and tablet PC, has made the competition among vendors such as Apple, Samsung, and Oppo be more
intense. The vendors have to develop andlaunch new products frequently to increase their market shares.
However, Apple has unique product propositions such as Mac OS for Apple Computer, iOS for
smartphones and tablets, Cloud System and Retina Display for laptop, which gives higher resolution
display performance. In addition, it has a wide variety of applications as well as safety system with
modern design and user-friendliness. All these qualities have made Apple continue to gain popularity
among consumers. Nevertheless, the company may face risk associated with competitors who may
become Apple’s reseller in Thailand and are authorized to open iStudio, iBeat, U-Store, Apple outlets
in their retail stores or department stores as well as online stores. However, there is a restriction that
each department store or office building or community mall can have only one type of Apple store
in the same location (except for outlets that sell Apple products i.e. in Power Buy or Power Mall).
Consequently, to be successful, each reseller has to efficiently manage their own distribution channels
in order to access a wide range of customers as well as providing better quality services.

The Company as an authorized Reseller of Apple
provided distribution channels which mostly located
in prime area throughout Bangkok. In addition,
the Company has service centers that provided
quality and full service for after sale service to all
products of the Company.

Compared to those of competitors which are Apple
resellers, most of them focused on retailing business
and retail stores expansion while the Company,
with long experience in operating business, utilized
its competency in corporate customer base and its
strategy for product bundling to penetrate into
corporate and educational segment by offering
solutions for educational instruction. In addition,
the Company has a team with experienced in
applying technology for educational instruction
and installing various systems in many leading

schools and universities, which support the Company
to market these segments effectively.
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4. Risk associated with lease agreements

The company currently provides Apple and Apple related products and services to retail customers
through its 77 branches 6 iStudios, 4 iBeat, 26 U-Stores, 5 Mobi as well as, 5 iCenter, 13 AlS shops
by Partner, 8 AIS Telewiz, 1 AIS Buddy and 9 A-Store. Since they are located either in shopping
malls, office buildings and universities both in Bangkok and up country. Therefore, the company
has to rent and enter into either short-term or long- term lease agreements with landlords. There
are risks that the company might not be able to renew the contracts or encounter changes in
terms of agreements that could resulting in increasing costs to the company. As of December 31,
2024, SPVI has a branch with a long-term lease agreement, which has the remaining contractual
term of 6 years. Others are short-term contracts, which are usually no longer than 3 years. How-
ever, the management of the company has been a good tenant for an average of more than 10
years. Therefore, the non-renewal risk remains low.

5. Risk associated with fraud (Operational risk)

The company needs to distribute various products to branches. Those products are usually valuable,
mobile and in demand. There are risks that the company may face fraudulent actions in the level
of operational staff. Therefore, the company has set a tight internal control and auditing system.
It also deploys information technology system to support the inventory management. Moreover,
the company makes it a responsibility of the branch managers to conduct a daily random check
on products, especially those high-value products. Moreover, Operation Audit officer will check
the inventory of each branch once a month. Staff in each branch will be obliged to be jointly
responsible for lost items. The company beliefs that the introduced policy measures would limit
possible damages within the scope that has insignificant impact on the company’s performance.

6. Risk associated with cyber security (Cyber Security Risk)

The company realized that, nowadays, various of digital system become more importance role to
the business. The Company had utilize various of data in working process as well as analyse data in
order to design business to serve the needs of all stakeholders effectively. The said stakeholders
are including customers, business partners, and employees. In addition, the epidemic of COVID-19
caused the company to adapt to work from outside the office or work from home in order to
keep business running continuously.

In order to manage and mitigate such risks, the Company has taken various actions such as the
preparation of a personal data security policy, manage up-to-date and secure information technology
system, arrange training session for employee to raise awareness on cyber security risk and set
procedures and measures as follows

- Assign authorized access to specific persons who have relevant duties to that information

- Manage data backup

- Continuously develop hardware and software systems to be up-to-date to deal with new forms
of cybercrime and prevent unauthorized access to information

- Install systems and equipment to prevent threats (Firewall) and monitor threat behavior from
both head office and branches.
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Driving Business For Sustainability

Policy and Sustainability Management Goals

The Company has been strongly committed to growing its business in accordance with the con-
ceptual framework of sustainable development. The Company believes that sustainable business
operation is not about making a business run for long but enabling business for sustainable growth
by establishing strong foundation to grow its business together with supporting better society and
environment. Therefore, when the Company is operating well on the strong business foundation as
well as taking into account the mutual benefits of the stakeholders, the Company will be able to
sustain its business to deliver good products and services as well as, eventually, create value and
sustainability for the society.

To emphasize on sustainable business practices, the Company has implemented measures on social
responsibility in its business process (CSR - in - Process) for sustainable development, which cover
various dimensions of sustainability-related issues including economic, social, and environment.
These measures have been implemented through the main point of operating framework including
good corporate governance, human rights, labor practices, environment, fair operation to consumers,
engagement, and development to society to gain trust in business operation from stakeholders.
In this regard, the Company has communicated the conceptual framework of sustainable development
to all departments to get understanding and raise awareness of its importance. This will help create
cooperation to drive the Company’s operation on sustainable management guidelines.

Managing Impact on Stakeholders in the Company’s Value Chain
Corporate’s Value Chain

The Company'’s business operations are divided into 4 main activities, all of which impact stakeholders
in the value chain. Details are as follows:
1. Sourcing and Procurement

3. Retail and Marketing

2. Logistic and Distribution
4. Responsibility to consumer and After Sales Service

Product & Service After Sales Service

Logistic & Distribution Retail & Marketing

Stakeholders Stakeholders Stakeholders Stakeholders

Partner Partner Customer Partner Customer Partner Customer
Customer Employee Employee Employee
Employee Community and Society Shareholder / Investor Shareholder / Investor
\ / \ / \Community and Society/ \ /

Sourcing Recruiting Technology
and and and
Procurement Developing Information

Personnel Technology

Good Corporate Governance / Risk Management

To ensure the smooth main business operations, the Company recognizes the importance of operating
supporting activities as much as main activities. Such supporting activities include sourcing and
procurement, recruiting, developing and retaining personnel, technology and information tech-
nology management, risk management, information security and cyber security.
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Analysis on stakeholders

Stake
holders

Shareholders
/ Investors

Employee

Customer

Business
Partner

Community

Expectation

- Good performance and
good return on investment
- Good corporate
governance

- Data Transparency

- Disclosure of accurate
information in a timely
manner

- Good governance on
human right and equality

- Treat employee with
respect to Human Rights
- Provide reasonable

and fair compensation

as well as other benefit

- Comply to labor ethics

- Life and property safety
- Knowledge development
- Opportunity for career
advancement

- Quality of product and
service both before and
after sales

- Reasonable price of prod-
uct and service

- Accurate information

of product attribute and
promotional activity

- Fair Trade

- Anti-bribery and
corruptions

- Compliance with
commercial terms

- Fair treat to business
partner

- Ontime debt settlement

- Promote and support
social activities that are
beneficial to community
and society

- Employment

Driving Business For Sustainability

in corporate’s value chain

Company’s Response

- Review the Company’s strategies and
goals to create sustainable returns

- Encourage shareholders to attend the
Annual General Meeting and participate
in asking question and raise opinion in
the meeting

- Disclosure of company information in a
transparent and timely manner through
the Stock Exchange of Thailand and
other channels including on the
Company's website

- Provide opportunity for shareholder
to directly present their opinions and
complaints to the Company

- Manage appropriate and fair
compensation including welfare

- Fair treat to all employee with equality
and respect in Human Right

- Provide opportunity and career
advancement

- Organize training to develop
capability to employee

- Provide safety workplace

- Training product knowledge to
employee for service efficiently

- Provide demonstration product for trial
before purchase

- Organize workshop to educate
product knowledge and technique both
at stores and webinar

- Equitable treatment to business partner
- Well-defined purchasing process

- Knowledge sharing and improvement
of product and service

- Compliance with trading regulations
and conditions

- Free trade and fair competition

- Give precedence to manufacturing
standard

- Operations with ethics

- Career supports in the local community
- Promote and support activity related
to society and community

Channel to Participate

- Annual Report

- Annual General Meeting

- Contact Investor Relation at
Tel. 02-559-2901 -10

Email : ir@spvi.co.th

Website : www.spvi.co.th

- Orientation for new
employees

- Information providing to
employee

- Complaint Center or Human
Resource Department

- Direct complaint to the man-
agement Email
companysecretary@spvi.co.th
- Annual performance
assessment

- Interaction with customers
while providing service

- Workshop or seminar to
provide knowledge and skill
to customers both at stores
and online

- Customer satisfaction survey

- Meeting and discussion with
mutual agreement

- Opinion exchange including
suggestion for improvement

- Community engagement
through employment

- School and university
activities

- Stores located in each uni-
versity
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Sustainability Focus

Points

The Company addresses pertinent matters pertaining to both internal and external business oper-
ations, undertaking a thorough evaluation aligned with the expectations of diverse stakeholders.
Consequently, critical sustainability assessments have been conducted as follows.

-

1. Identification of Key Issues
The company systematically

considering the framework of
including related businesses.
This encompasses factors such

as changes in consumer be-

covering economic, social, and
environmental dimensions.

gathers key sustainability issues,

its operations and stakeholders,

havior and market competition,

N 7
2. Prioritization of Critical Issues
The company meticulously
screens and ranks the gathered
sustainability issues, evaluating
their impact on both the orga-
nization and stakeholders. This
rigorous process results in the
development of a hierarchical
table delineating the signifi-
cance of each identified issue

~

4 )

3. Comprehensive Review and
Continuous Enhancement

The meticulously screened and
prioritized sustainability issues,
accounting for their multifac-
eted impacts on stakeholders
within economic, social, and
environmental realms, undergo
continuous scrutiny. The key
issues, strategically ranked, are
presented to senior management
for meticulous examination,
ensuring the accuracy and
comprehensiveness of pivotal
matters. A commitment to regular
monitoring and refinement of
the sustainability assessment
process underscores our dedica-
tion to perpetual enhancement.
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The Impact on Organization

Driving Business For Sustainability

The Results of the Evaluation of Crucial Sustainability Matters

4 N [

Environment Aspect: Social Aspect:
1. Offering products and services
of superior quality.

2. Implementation of strategic en-
ergy management. initiatives for staff.
3. Adoption of rigorous waste
management practices. services.

development.

- J L

4. Occupational health and safety
measures for employees.
5. Professional development

6. Accessibility to products and ences.

7. Community and societal

N D

Economic Aspect:

8. Sustainable and stable financial
performance.

9. Provision of excellent services
and innovative customer experi-

10. Customer expectations and
satisfaction.

AN J

Environmental Sustainability

Management

The Company is mindful of its responsibility
toward the environment and natural resources.
As such, it prioritizes the efficient use of these
resources by raising awareness among em-
ployees through education on environmental
management, including water conservation,
energy saving, and the efficient use of re-
sources via communication and campaigns.
The Company has implemented practices
aimed at reducing its environmental impact,
as outlined below:

(1) Sourcing environmentally friendly products
that are safe for customers:

As a distributor of Apple products, the company
derives over 90% of its revenue from Apple
products. Apple products are manufactured
using recyclable and renewable materials, in-
corporating clean energy from manufacturers
utilizing renewable electricity. Additionally, the
product design focuses on minimizing energy
consumption throughout the lifecycle. This
strategic alignment ensures that the products
offered are not only environmentally friendly
but also safe for our customers.
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(2) Monitoring and controlling the Company’s
operations to not damage the quality of life of
the community, society, and environment:

The company takes proactive measures to
prevent any adverse effects of its operations
on the quality of life in communities and the
environment. Waste management practices
include the separation and storage of waste in
designated areas, categorizing it into biode-
gradable, general, recyclable, and hazardous
waste. This meticulous waste segregation not
only preserves the nearby environment but
also ensures clear identification for disposal
personnel.

Moreover, as an authorized Apple service center,
the company is responsible for managing the
disposal of defective Apple components. Once
replaced for customers, these components are
returned to Apple for proper and eco-friendly
disposal. This reflects our commitment to en-
vironmental stewardship and sustainable busi-
ness practices.

In 2024, the Company managed electronic
waste and documents containing personal in-
formation by sending them for disposal to a
certified company with ISO 9001, ISO 14001, and
ISO 27001 standards. This ensures the proper,
correct, and environmentally friendly destruc-
tion process. A total of 466.80 kilograms of
electronic waste and 888.40 kilograms of doc-
uments containing personal information were
destroyed, resulting in a reduction of 5,040.37
KgCo2/eq in greenhouse gas emissions

(3) Cultivating the concept of environmental
responsibility among employees:

The company instills a sense of environmental
responsibility in its workforce to foster an under-
standing of the significance of environmental
stewardship. Continuous employee training and
development programs in environmental
awareness are organized to ensure the efficient
operation of the environmental management
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system. In the year 2024, employees underwent
training for a total of 2.39 hours on environ-
mental topics, emphasizing the company’s
commitment to building a culture of environ-
mental responsibility.

Reducing energy consumption

The Company has launched campaigns to en-
courage the efficient use of energy in order
to reduce energy consumption. Employees are
motivated to participate in energy-saving
practices in their work processes through various
communication channels, such as turning off
lights and unplugging electrical devices when
not in use, turning off air conditioners during
lunch breaks, reducing air conditioning usage
hours, adjusting air conditioning temperatures
appropriately, and regularly inspecting and
cleaning electrical appliances to ensure they
operate efficiently. The Company also uses
energy-efficient light bulbs in both branch offices
and the head office, and holds video con-
ferences to replace in-person meetings. The
Company has recorded electricity and water
consumption data in 2024 as a guideline for
further energy reduction efforts, as follows:

Head Office 2023
Electricity Consumption (kWh): 250,081

Water Consumption (units) 2,995

4 N\
Head Office 2024

Electricity Consumption (kWh): 282,555

Water Consumption (units) 3,252
\_ J

Reducing the use of natural resources

The company has implemented various activities to promote the prudent use of resources, demon-

strating a commitment to resource conservation. These initiatives include:

- Eliminating the use of plastic packaging in company stores, opting for cloth bags for customer
use instead. In 2024, this resulted in a reduction of approximately 332,048 plastic bags.

- Choosing certified green label photocopiers and utilizing ink cartridges certified for health,
safety, and environmental protection to minimize the environmental impact of document
reproduction.

- Implementing waste segregation practices to facilitate the recycling of specific types of waste,
such as paper, cardboard packaging, and plastic, resulting in the segregation of 8,185 kg of waste
in 2024.

- Managing end-of-life products by selling obsolete items to recycling stores instead of disposing
of them outright.

- Adopting E-Tax systems for invoice generation, leading to a significant reduction in paper usage,
saving approximately 592,699 sheets of paper and helped reduce greenhouse gas emission by
2,725.30 kgCO2/eq.

Social Sustainability Management

The Company recognized the value and the crucial role of the employee. The Company believes
that quality employees are the most important factor that led the organization to sustainable
growth. In addition, the Company gives precedence to business operation under good corporate
governance and adherence to ethical principles along with social responsibility by taking into
account the stakeholders related both inside and outside organization from shareholders, cus-
tomers and society.

Human Capital Management
The Company has a policy to reinforce and develop its employees to be knowledgeable, skilled,
and experienced in their work, while maintaining strong ethical standards and integrity in their duties.

In 2024, the Company organized training sessions for both management and staffs, including internal
and external training programs. The percentage of management and staffs who have been trained
are 53.43 percent of the average number of employee during the year which is proportionate to
more than 50 percent of average number of employees and the total number of training hours is
66 hours per year and accounted for an average of 6 hours per person per year.

In addition, the company places great emphasis on succession planning and has prepared for the
development of future leadership by offering Leadership training to employees identified as part
of the Talent group.
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Biosafety

The Company has a policy that focuses on the quality of work life of employees and treating
the employees fairly, as well as providing a good working environment and taking into account
the employee’s welfare for their safety. Therefore, the Company has provided life insurance and
health insurance to the employees as well as provident fund and annual health check program
for all employees. In addition, the Company also cooperated with Siam Commercial Bank to
provide benefits of special rate for loan to employees. Moreover, the Company provides a good
working environment and takes into account the welfare to ensure safety for employees. Referring
to data on accidents and absence from work status in 2024, it was found that the statistics of
accidents or the rate of absence due to work-related illness were zero.

Respecting Human Right

The Company adheres to the principle of equality and human rights as well as uses it as the main
idea to drive organizations. The Company gives equal importance to employees at all levels by
not discriminating against any individual person due to their race, religion, gender, age, marital
status, and disability. The Company also strictly complies with the policy of no child and illegal
labor as well as prepared guidelines for its responsibility to the employee in the Code of Conduct
and Ethics manual. In 2024, the Company had a harmonious labor environment with no reported
disputes or human rights violations.

Principled Treatment of the Workforce

The Company maintains a steadfast commitment to recognizing employees as invaluable assets

crucial to propelling and guiding the company towards achieving its objectives. To this end, the

company ensures diligent compliance with legal standards and ethical practices across various facets,

including opportunities, compensation, appointments, promotions, and capacity development.

The foundational principles adhered to are as follows:

(1) Treat employees with courtesy and dignity

(2) Provide fair compensation to employees

(3) Maintain a working environment that is safe for the employee’s life and property at all times

(4) Appointment and job transfer as well as rewarding and punishing employees by considerate
their trustworthy, knowledge, abilities, and appropriateness of the employees

(5) Give precedence to developing competencies of the employees

(6) Comply with laws and regulations related to employees strictly

(7) Avoid any unfair behavior affecting to job security of employees or any threat action and put
pressure on the employees

Employment of Persons with Disabilities

The Company has a policy of non-discrimination and provides equal employment opportunities,
including the employment of persons with disabilities in accordance with the relevant employment
laws. The Company also supports and promotes the equal employment of persons with disabilities
in positions they are capable of performing. In 2024, the Company employed a total of 6 persons
with disabilities, representing 1.17% of the total permanent staff, which exceeds the 1.0% requirement
set by the Empowerment of Persons with Disabilities Act, B.E. 2550.

Driving Business For Sustainability

Employee Statistics Information for the Year 2024

Proportion by gender Proportion by Age

6%

37%
33%

63% 61%

® Male © Female @ Under 30 years @ 30-50 years @ Over 50 years

Proportion of Compensation for Female
Employees versus Male Employees

Proportion of Employees participating in the
Provident Fund

N%
46%

59% 54%

@ Male © Female @ Employees who are not members of the provident fund

® Employees who are the members of the provident fund

Fair Trade

The Company has operated its business and managed it with ethics. The Board of Directors has
provided a code of conduct manual to the committee, executives and employees to use as a
guideline for work with honesty, integrity, quality, morally and fairness to all stakeholders including
shareholders, employees, customers, competitors, partners and creditors. The said code of con-
duct has been disclosed on the Company’s website https://www.spvi.co.th/en/code-of-conduct

Anti-corruption

The Company realizes the importance of conducting business with integrity by adhering to good
corporate governance to support work with transparency, verifiable, and free from any kind of
corruption. The Board of Directors has established an anti-corruption policy and guideline which
covers various issues including gifting, supporting entertainment expenses, supporting political

activities, business connection and government procurement, whistle-blowing and complaint, as
well as the process of handling complaints and protecting the whistleblowers and related persons.
This policy is for the directors, executives and employees of the Company to use as guidelines for
anti-corruption practices.
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Responsibility to Consumers

The Company is committed to build satisfaction and confidence in its customers by providing

the good products and services as well as maintaining good relationships by focusing on trading

with integrity and fairness. The practice guidelines are as follows.

(1) Committed to providing up-to-date goods and always improving services to serve the needs
of customers

(2) Offer the qualified product and service at fair price

(3) Provide accurate information to customer without exaggeration that causes misunderstanding
in quality, quantity or any conditions of that product or service

(4) Provide after-sales service in order to facilitate customers efficiently

As a recognized Authorized Apple Service Provider, our Customer Service Center undergoes
rigorous monthly evaluations by Apple to gauge customer satisfaction. In the fiscal year 2024,
the company achieved an exemplary average customer satisfaction rating of 91.89%, highlighting
our commitment to delivering exceptional service.

Community and Social development

The Company recognized that the Company survived and grew up by the support of society and

community. Therefore, to maintain a good society and community, the Company has adhered to

the following principles.

(1) Participating in social activities in providing support to educational activities and knowledge
development for all ages and genders

(2) Conducting business in a way that does not conflict with Thai tradition and custom and with
no harm to society.

In 2024, the Company provided continual support for multiple educational projects to support
university instructors, educational staff, as well as youth, and their parents. The projects are as
follows.

- The “Learning with iPad” project which aims to educate teachers to use iPad for teaching and
educate students to use iPad for learning at school. The participating schools are La Salle Chotiravi
Nakhonsawan School, Princess Sirindhorn’s College, Sansaiwittayakom School, Suankularb Wittayalai
Chonburi School, Takhliprachasan School, Thanyarat School, and Thanyasitthisin School.

Driving Business For Sustainability

- The “Learning with Mac” project with Hatyai Wittayalai School, which aims to educate teachers
to use Mac for teaching.

The Company participated in the SET Social Impact Gym 2024 program under the concept “From
Planting to Plate,” which was organized by the Stock Exchange of Thailand (SET) in collaboration
with the Listed Companies Association (maiA). This program aims to enhance the business capabilities
of Social Enterprises (SE) to help them operate effectively and efficiently, with the goal of encouraging
social entrepreneurs to take part in addressing social issues across various dimensions, such as
community development, agriculture, healthcare, and the environment. The program also seeks
to achieve sustainable outcomes in both business and social impact. Mr. Trisorn Volyarngosol,
Managing Director, volunteered as a coach for Kit Forward Co., Ltd. for a period of 9 weeks, totaling
27.50 hours.

Kit Forward Co., Ltd. is a social enterprise focused on addressing community development and
agricultural issues. The company provides organic vegetable farm management services through
a smart farming system enhanced with loT technology to improve farm management efficiency
and reduce production costs, while maintaining product quality. The company oversees the entire
growing process to ensure that the vegetables delivered to consumers are truly high-quality
and safe. The production process is also fully traceable, allowing farmers to manage production
effectively and consistently.

Mr. Trisorn Volyarngosol provided in-depth business model consultation, focusing on business planning,
consumer research, and building an alliance network. He also helped in the development of knowledge
through research and technological system development, and offered guidance on brand building
and marketing strategies, all aimed at ensuring the business’s sustainability in the future.

Economic Sustainability Management

The Company conducts business with transparency and integrity, adhering to the principles of
good corporate governance. We prioritize economic considerations by creating positive customer
experiences through the utilization of our products and services. In our company stores, customers
have the opportunity to test and experience our products through demo units. Additionally, customers
can participate in learning sessions and explore other features of our products through workshops
conducted by our staff at iStudio by SPVi. Customers can check demonstration workshop schedule in
advance at https://www.istudiobyspvi.com/demo-workshop. Furthermore, we organize monthly event
namely as “Yes i Can WORKSHOP”, providing workshops with experts in various fields.

e
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Mac Test Drive
41 session/week

In-Store Group Demo
38 session/week
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Management Discussion and Analysis:
MD&A

Executive Summary

In 2024, the Thai economy is projected to grow by 2.7% (with an estimated range of 2.2% to 3.2%),
according to the Ministry of Finance’s forecast. This reflects a continued expansion following the
1.9% growth recorded in 2023. The anticipated growth is underpinned by the recovery of the
tourism and export sectors, along with a sustained rebound in private consumption, supported
by various government measures that have bolstered public confidence despite economic challenges
such as localized flooding.

Looking ahead to 2025, the Ministry of Finance forecasts an acceleration in economic growth
to 3.0% (with a range of 25% to 3.5%). This is expected to be driven by sustained growth in
private consumption, an improvement in exports, the ongoing recovery of the tourism sector,
and investments from both the public and private sectors. Furthermore, the economic policies of
the government, coupled with the 2025 fiscal year budget, are expected to enhance business
confidence and stimulate domestic consumption, thereby fostering overall economic expansion.
In 2024, Apple maintained its position as the leading player in the smartphone export market
(according to data from International Data Corporation, IDC). However, the company experienced
a slight decline in market share compared to the previous year due to the growth of Chinese
smartphone brands, which have intensified competition through aggressive pricing strategies
and a wide range of promotions. In response, Apple implemented price reduction strategies and
offered various promotional programs in collaboration with its authorized dealers to retain its
customer base.

The Company has made every effort to maintain customer loyalty across multiple sales channels,
including offline, online, Omni channel, Marketplaces, and E-commerce. This includes ensuring
product availability to meet customer demand, recommending products that best meet cus-
tomer needs, and tailoring marketing activities to each channel in order to strengthen customer
relationships.

In 2024, Apple launched several new products, including the iPhone Series 16, Apple Watch Series 10,
iPad Air 6, iPad Mini 7, and MacBook Pro M4, all of which received significant customer interest.
However, due to product shortages, particularly with the iPad in the third quarter, the Company’s
revenue growth did not reach the anticipated levels. Additionally, participation in promotional
programs with Apple had an impact on gross profit margins. The Company also faced increased
selling and administrative expenses due to the opening of new stores and the expansion of online
sales channels, which led to a decrease in net profit compared to the previous year.
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2024 Overall Operating Result Unit : Million Baht

Total Revenue 6,831.41 6,770.05 5,615.77
Gross Profit 673.08 678.81 59107
Net Profit 48.39 100.19 126.57

The 2024 operating result of the Company, comparing to the previous year, is as follows.
Total Revenue is 6,83141 million baht which is 61.36 million baht or 0.91 percent increase
Gross Profit is 673.08 million baht which is 5.73 million baht or 0.84 percent decrease
Net Profit for the period is 48.39 million baht which is 51.80 million baht or 51.70 percent decrease

Discussion and Analysis of the Company Operation
and Financial Position

Summary of 2024 Operating Result

The Company’s total revenue in 2024 is 6,831.41 million baht which is 6136 million baht or 0.91
percent increase from 6,770.05 million baht in 2023. Total revenue consists of revenue from sales,
revenue from service, and other revenue, which are calculated as 98.97 percent, 0.34 percent
and 0.69 percent, respectively.

The Company’s revenue from sales is derived from two main segments: revenue from Apple products
and revenue from non-Apple products. In 2024, revenue from Apple products amounted to
6,281.72 million baht, representing an increase of 249.07 million baht or 4.13% compared to 2023,
which recorded 6,032.65 million baht. This growth was primarily driven by increased sales of the
iPhone, particularly the iPhone 16, which was launched at a more competitive price point relative
to previous models, resulting in a strong consumer response. Additionally, sales of the iPhone 15
and iPhone 13 also experienced positive growth, reflecting continued consumer demand.

The revenue from selling non-Apple products in 2024 amounted to 479.50 million baht, reflecting
a decrease of 152.57 million baht or 24.14 percent compared to 2023. This decline was primarily
attributed to reduced revenue from equipment used in project installations. However, sales of
smartphones from other brands through the AIS channel showed a positive trend, helping to
mitigate some of the revenue decline.

Revenue from services in 2024 amounted to 22.94 million baht, reflecting a decrease of 40.37
million baht or 63.77 percent compared to 2023. The decline was primarily due to the absence
of large-scale projects for audiovisual equipment installations in 2024, which were present in
2023. In contrast, 2024 saw a shift towards smaller, general projects, such as the installation of
personnel management systems.
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The selling and administrative expense of the Company in 2024 amounted to 653.05 million baht,
an increase of 66.23 million baht or 11.29 percent compared to 2023. This increase was primarily
driven by higher depreciation expenses and lease service fees associated with the opening of
new branches and new headquarters, as well as platform fees related to the increased volume
of sales through online channels.

The financial expense of the Company in 2024 amounted to 7.19 million baht, representing an
decrease of 1.35 million baht or 15.81 percent compared to 2023. This increase was primarily due
to a reduction in short-term debt from financial institutions used for business operations.

For the fiscal year 2024, the Company reported a net profit of 48.39 million baht, a decrease of
51.80 million baht or 5170 percent compared to 2023, which had a net profit of 100.19 million
baht. The net profit margins for 2024 and 2023 were 0.71 percent and 148 percent, respectively.”

2024 Financial Position

Total Asset

As of December 31, 2024, the total asset of the Company is 1,213.33 million baht decreased by
18.33 miillion baht or 149 percent from the amount of 1,231.66 million baht in the previous year.
Total assets decreased due to a reduction in inventory by 117.48 million baht, as a result of more
efficient inventory management practices, maintaining adequate stock levels to meet sales demand.
However, the Company experienced an increase in cash and deposits by 58.77 million baht, driven
by operational cash flows, while other current financial assets have increased by 10.00 million
baht from a 6-month fixed deposit. Additionally, equipment and right-of-use assets increased by
17.25 million baht and 47.50 million baht, respectively, due to the relocation of the office.

Total Liabilities

As of 31 December 2024, the total liabilities of the Company is 644.27 million baht decreased by
7.35 million baht or 112 percent decrease compared to 651.62 million baht in 2023. The decreased
of total liabilities at the end of 2024 came from the decrease in short-term debt from financial
institution, amounting to 183.06 million baht. However, trade and other payables increased by
118.27 million baht due to the purchase of iPhones and iPads in late 2024 to support sales for
early 2025. Additionally, lease liabilities increased by 53.53 million baht, resulting from the leasing
of a new office space.

Shareholders’ Equity
The company has a total registered capital of 200 million baht, consisting of 400 million ordinary

shares with a par value of 0.50 baht per share, fully paid up. At present, the Company has fully
book legal reserved. As of December 31, 2024, the shareholders’ equity accounted to 569.06
million baht decreased by 10.98 million baht or 189 percent from 2023 which was 580.04 million
baht, with the book value of 142 baht per share.

Debt to Equity Ratio
The debt to equity ratio increased from 1.12 time in 2023 to 113 times in 2024, came from the

decreased in shareholders’ equity resulting from the dividend payment based on the 2023
financial performance, while the total liabilities saw only a slight reduction.

T~
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Statement of Comprehensive Income Unit : Million Baht

. Year 2024 Year 2023 Year 2022
Statement of Comprehensive Income

o 6o o 6o o B

Revenues

Sales 6,76122 98.97 6,664.72 98.44 5,542.39 98.69
Service Income 2294 0.34 63.31 0.94 2414 0.43
Other Income 47.25 0.69 42.02 0.62 4924 0.88
Total Revenues 6,83141 100.00 6,770.05 100.00 5,615.77 100.00
Expenses

Cost of Sales 6,102.69 89.33 6,009.44 88.77 4,967.48 88.46
Cost of Service 839 0.12 39.78 0.59 7.98 0.14
Selling and distribution expenses 530.93 777 476.31 7.04 379.44 6.76
Administrative expenses 12212 179 110.52 163 94.42 1.68
Total expenses 6,764.13 99.02 6,636.04 98.02 5,449.32 97.04
Operating Profit 67.28 0.98 134.01 198 166.45 2.96%
Finance cost (7.19) (0.1) (8.54) (0.13) (8.47) (0.15)
Profit before income tax expenses 60.09 0.88 125.47 185 157.98 281
Income tax expenses (11.70) (0.18) (25.28) (0.37) (31.41) (0.56)
Profit for the year 4839 0.70 100.19 148 126.57 225
Other comprehensive income:

Actuarial loss (1.71) (0.03) - 0.00 153 0.03
Less : Income tax effect 034 0.00 - 0.00 (0.31) (0.07)

Other comprehensive income for the
year to profit or loss in subsequent (1.37) (0.02) - 0.00 122 0.02
periods - net of income tax

Other comprehensive income for the year (1.37) (0.02) - 0.00 122 0.02
Total comprehensive income for the year 47.02 068 10019 148 127.79 228
Basic earnings per share 0.12 0.25 0.32

Weighted average number of ordinary 400.00 400.00 400.00

SharePar Value (Baht)s (million shares)

Par Value (Baht) 0.50 0.50 0.50
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Statement of Cash Flow

Unit : Million Baht

31 December 2024 31 December 2023 | 31 December 2022

Unit : Million Baht

50

Statement of Financial Position Statement of Cash Flow (Unit : Million Baht) Year 2024 | Year 2023 | Year 2022
AmCurrent Assets Cash flows from operating activities
Cash and cash equivalents 12236 105 6359 516 5028 478 Profit before tax , . , 6008 12547 157.98
Trade and other receivables 119.88 9.86 154.58 1255 68.87 6.54 Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to cash provided by
Inventories 52410 4312 64158 5209 60376 57.34 (paid from) operating activities:
Other current financial assets 10.00 0.82 - 0.00 - 0.00 Depreciation and amortization 134.08 m70 9530
Other current assets 15.83 131 2198 178 18.89 179 Allowance for expected credit losses 0.00 (0.03) (0.16)
Reversal of inventory to net realizable value 110 259 (8.21)
Total current assets 79217 65.35 88173 7159 741.80 70.45 Provision for equipment impairment 6.10 0.00 0.00
Non-current assets Provision for intangible assets impairment 0.02 0.00 0.00
Equipment 136.67 125 119.42 970 9268 8.80 Provision for lease deposit impairment 0.14 0.00 0.00
Right-of-use assets 18911 1556 14161 1150 134.61 1278 Loss (gain) on disposal/write-off of equipment and intangible assets 328 343 0.77
Intangible assets 33‘49 2‘.76 36..71 2:98 37'_11 3:52 Provision for long-term employee benefits 422 244 220
Other non-current assets 4532 373 39.03 317 34.21 3.25 Interest income (0.58) (0.30) (0.09)
Deferred tax assets 1657 136 1316 107 1254 119 Interest expense 719 854 658
Gain on lease reassessment (0.05) - (1.59)
Total non-current assets 42116 34.65 34993 2841 3115 29.55 Gain on lease modification (0.46) (0.56) (0.52)
Total assets 121333 100.00 123166 100.00 105295 100.00 Profit from operating activities before changes in operating assets 21512 253.28 252.26
- ’ o ’ o ’ and liabilities
Liabiliti nd shareholders’ i . .
Current liabilities Operating assets (|ncre§se) decrease:
Short-term loan from financial institution - 0.00 183.06 14.86 . 0.00 Trade and other receivables 34.78 (8568) 7.84
Trade and other payables 417.83 34.44 29956 2432 33373 3169 Inventories n3.73 (4215) (27355)
Dividend payable 017 0.01 0.16 0.01 013 0.01 Other current assets 6.15 (3.09) (8.12)
Long-term lease liabilities - net of Other non-current assets (6.43) (4.82) (9.80)
current portion 7345 6.05 68.92 5.60 6373 6.05 Operating liabilities increase (decrease):
Income tax payable 164 0.14 2.01 0.16 178 112 Trade and other payables 19M (28.76) 212.03
Other current liabilities 0.96 0.08 112 0.09 1.82 0.17 Other current liabilities (0.16) (0.70) (0.14)
| liabi Provision for long-term employee benefits (1.50) (0.78) -
Total liabiliti 494.05 40.72 554.83 45.05 4119 39.05
otal llabtiities Cash flows from operating activities 480.80 87.30 180.52
Non-current liabilities Cash received from interest income 0.49 (0.30) 0.09
Long-term lease liabilities - net of Cash paid for income tax (15.13) (35.67) (3169)
current portion 123.88 10.21 74.88 6.08 7166 6.81
Provision for long-term employee benefits 26.34 217 2191 178 20.25 192 Net cash flows from operating activities 466.16 5193 148.92
Total non-current liabilities 150.22 12.38 96.79 7.86 9191 8.73 Cash flows from investing activities
Other current financial assets increase (10.00) 0.00 0.00
Total liabilities 64427 53.10 65162 5291 503.10 4778 Proceeds from sales of equipment 0.19 004 0.05
Shareholders’ equity Acquisitions of equipment (63.33) (67.70) (38.31)
Share Capital Increase in intangible assets (1.59) (7.41) (25.48)
Registered Capital Cash paid for right-of-use assets (217) (2.42) (4.20)
Issued and fully paid up 200.00 16.48 200.00 16.24 200.00 18.99
Share premium 3981 3.28 3981 323 3981 3.78 Net cash flows used in investing activities (86.90) (77.49) (67.94)
Retained earnings ) . .
; - Cash flows from financing activities
SgaproE);la:;?edstatutory reserve 320%32 25123 322%022 26185 Zéggg 2;22 Increase in short-term loans from financial institution 412.50 1,977.88 1,244.30
pprop ' ' ’ ’ ’ ' Repayment of short-term loans from financial institution (595.56) (1,794.82) (1,244.30)
Total shareholders’ equity 569.06 65.85 580.04 47.09 549.85 5222 Dividend paid (57.99) (69.97) (69.95)
Payment of pricipal portion of lease liabilities (72.00) (65.93) (53.70)
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 1,213.33 100.00 1,231.66 100.00 1,052.95 100.00 Cash paid for interest expenses (7.44) (8.29) (6.49)
Net cash flows from (used in) financing activities (320.49) 38.87 (130.14)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 58.77 13.31 (49.16)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 63.59 50.28 9944
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 122.36 6359 50.28
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Management Discussion

\ndAnalysis: MD&A

Summary of financial ratios

Financial ratios

Year 2024 Year 2023 Year 2022

General Information

General Information

Company
Type of business

S P V | Public Company Limited
S P V | Public Company Limited's core business is a reseller of

Liquidity Ratio Apple products, including computers, iOS devices (iPod, iPad,
Liquidity Ratio (Times) 160 159 180 iPhone) and various other accessories. It also distributes products
Quick Ratio (Times) 054 043 034 compatible with Apple in order to provide convenience to
Trade Receivable Turnover Ratio (Times) 4944 60.22 76.56 . .
Average Collection Period (Days) 738 6.06 477 customers, such as hard drives for video storage, portable
Inventory Turnover Ratio (Times) 1048 971 1072 hard drives, printed and graphic products (iPod, iPad, iPhone).
Average Sales Period (Days) 34.81 3757 34.06 SPVI also distributes products associated with iOS devices, such
Payable Turnover Ratio (Times) 17.04 19.10 2210 as speakers, headphones, protective cases and screen protectors.
Repayment Period (Days) 2142 9.m 16.52 Address 2 Premier Place Building, 1st Floor Zone A, 3rd Floor Zone A,
Cash Cycle (Days) 2077 2452 2231 Zone B, Soi Premier 2, Srinakarin Rd., Khwaeng Nongbon, Khet
Profitability Ratio . Prawet Bangkok 10250
Gross Margin Sales Revenue (%) 9.74% 9.83% 10.37% Company Registered Number 0107556000264
Gross Margin Service Income (%) 63.43% 37.16% 66.95% Website www.spvi.co.th
Gross Margin : Revenue from Sales and Services (%) 9.92% 10.09% 10.62% Telephone no. 0-2559-2901-10
Operating Profit Margin (%) 0.98% 1.98% 2.96% Fax no. 0-2559-2488
Net Profit Margin (%) 0.71% 148% 2.25% Registered capital 200,000,000 Baht

. . ' Paid-up capital 200,000,000 Baht
Operating Efficiency Ratio Par value 0.50 Baht
Return on Assets (%) 5.50% 1.73% 18.05% .
Return on Equity (%) 8.42% 17.73% 2430% Amount and type of 400,000,000 Ordinary shares
Asset Turnover (Times) 559 593 6.09 Outstanding Shares
Financial Policy Analysis Ratio
Debt to Equity Ratio (Times) 113 112 091 .
Interest Coverage Ratio (Times) 935 15.69 25.62 InveStor Relatlons
Dividend Payout Ratio (%) 66.13% 57.89% 55.31%

Mr. Trisorn Volyarngosol
Miss Sunsanee Horanikom

Managing Director
Company Secretary

ows used in investing activities

1. Share Registar

Thailand Securities Depository Co., Ltd.
93 Stock Exchange of Thailand
Ratchadapisek Road, Dindaeng,

Bangkok 10400
Tel : +66 (0) 2009-9000
Fax : +66 (0) 2009-9991

2. Auditor

Mr. Chawalit Chaluayampornbuti

Certified Public Accountant No. 8881

EY Office Limited

33rd Floor, Lake Ratchada Office Complex
193/136-137 Ratchadapisek Road, Bangkok
10110

Tel : +66 (0) 2264-0777

Fax : +66 (0) 2264-0789-90
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\LegalDispute
Legal Dispute

As of December 31, 2024, the Company is no a litigant or a party involved in the following cases.

1. Lawsuits that can negatively affect the assets of the Company or its subsidiaries amounting to
more than 5% of equity as of December 31,2024

2. Lawsuits that can significantly affect the business operations of the Company but cannot be
assessed in numbers

3. Cases not arising from the normal course of business of the company.

iIStudio

by SPVi

#iPhone15Pro
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Corporate Governance

Corporate Governance

The Board of Directors realizes the importance
of good corporate governance with corporate
transparency and equitable treatment to all
concerned parties. The Board believed that
good corporate governance policy is an important
factor in business operating. Therefore, the Board
has established a “Good Corporate Governance
Policy” which covering the content of the Rights
of Shareholders, the Equitable Treatment
of Shareholders, the Company’s Conduct
Towards Relevant Stakeholders, Disclosure
and Transparency and Responsibilities of the
Board of Directors.

The Board has already reviewed and improved
the Company’s Good Corporate Governance Policy,
latest on August 6, 2024, for its appropriate to
the business circumstance and compliance with
the principles of Good Corporate Governance
for Listed Company 2012, established by the
Stock Exchange of Thailand as well as CG Code
of the Securities and Exchange Commission and
the Stock Exchange, The Company disclosed
the content of “Good Corporate Governance Policy”
in its website: https://www.spvi.co.th/corporate-
governance-report

In 2024, the company conformed to the Good
Corporate Governance Policy, which can be
summarized as follows:

Chapter 1:
The Rights of Shareholders

The company realizes and gives importance to
various basic rights of the shareholders, such
as the rights to buy, sell or transfer shares;
to obtain relevant and adequate information
on the company; to participate and vote in
the shareholders’ meetings to elect or remove
Directors of the company, to appoint the external
auditor, to make decisions on important issues,
such as dividend payment, amend the company’s
Memorandum of Association and Articles of
Association and increase or decrease capital etc.

Apart from various basic rights of the shareholders
mentioned above, the company takes various
actions to promote and facilitate the exercise
of the shareholders’ rights, as follows.

Before the Meeting

1. The company invited minority shareholders
to propose agenda and nominate a person to
be a director during 1-31 December 2023. The rules
and procedures for proposal was announced
and published in the website of Stock Exchange
of Thailand and company website. Nevertheless,
none of minority shareholder presented the
proposal.

2. The invitation notice of the meeting was
prepared and sent along with support documents
to shareholders prior to the meeting date and
also was published on the company website
www.spvi.co.th/investor-relations/ for 30 days
in advance and also documents delivery 21
days in advance so that shareholders would
have enough time to study the information
beforehand.

An invitation notice provided correct, clear and
adequate information as follows:
Invitation notice of each agenda clearly
stated that it was for acknowledgement or
consideration including facts, reason and
the comments from the Board of Directors.
Registration form with printed barcode was
attached with the invitation notice to ac-
commodate faster registration process for
shareholders.
Attached 3 proxy forms so that shareholders
who were unable to attend the meeting might
appoint any person as their proxies by using
one of the three proxy forms enclosed with
the notice of the meeting.
A copy of previous minutes of meeting.
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Information of those who had been nominated
for election as directors. The details included
the name, age, education, work experiences,
training organized by the Thailand Institute
of Directors (IOD), number of companies that
each director maintained directorship, type
of the proposed directorship, directorship
commencement date.

Details of 2 directors who can act as share-
holders’ proxies. All of the proposed directors
are independent directors. A shareholder
may appoint one of them as a proxy to attend
and vote on the shareholder’s behalf.
Articles of Association in connection with
shareholder meeting.

Map of the location of the meeting for travelling
by car or public transportation.

On the day of the Meeting

1. The company organized the Annual General
Meeting of Shareholders on April 4, 2024 at
the Conference Room, 31th Floor, MS Siam Tower,
Rama Il Road, Chongnonsi, Yannawa, Bangkok.
That conference room was considered as in
appropriate size that could adequately accommo-
date attendees. The registration process began
2 hours in advance of the meeting so that staff
wouldget enough time to check documents
of shareholders presented at the meeting
in person and a large number of proxies
appointed by shareholders. For the accuracy
and to speed up the registration process,
the company had prepared sufficient officers
and registration desks. Once registration was
completed, shareholders would receive a ballot
to vote on each agenda of the meeting.

2. Before the meeting started, the Secretary
of the meeting would inform shareholders on
how to vote according to the Articles of Association.
Holders of the company’s common shares were
entitled to cast one vote per one share. The
casting of votes would be conducted openly.
The company used a barcode system to count
the votes for accuracy and speed. After the
vote counting on each agenda was completed,
the company would display the outcome on
a screen to inform shareholders by dividing
the vote scores into approve, disapprove and
abstain.

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 (Form 56-1 One Report)
S P V I PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

3. Chairman of the Audit Committee, Audit
Committee, Independent Directors, Board
of Directors, Executive Chairman and Managing
Director of the company all gave priority and
attended the general meeting to provide
clarifications or answers inquiries from share-
holders in the meeting.

4. For those shareholders who attended the
meeting after it started, they could still attend
the meeting and vote on agendas, which were
being considered, or those had not been voted.

5. The shareholder meeting proceeded according
to the specified agendas. The meeting would
not consider additional agenda(s) not specified
in the invitation notice.

6. Chairman of the meeting assigned the
secretary to announce the vote result of each
agenda to shareholders immediately and no
shareholders raised any objections.

After the Meeting

1. The company disclosed resolutions from
the shareholder meeting with the outcome of
votes count within the same day through media
channels of SET.

2. The Company’s Secretary prepared minutes
of the meeting and submitted to SET within
14 days as specified by the laws and disclosed
on the company’s website within 14 days after
the meeting date.

Chapter 2:
The Equitable Treatment of
Shareholders

The company recognized the importance and
values the right of every individual shareholder,
whether executive or non-executive, major or
minor shareholders. Thus, the company would
not engage in any discriminatory act or cause
any unfair treatment to shareholders under the
provisions of the relevant laws. In 2024, the
company practiced the following procedures:

1. The Shareholder Meeting

The company delivered all three proxy forms
to holders of all shares so that shareholders
could choose the form that best fitted their
needs.

In the case where a shareholder was unable
to attend the meeting, the company had
nominated 2 independent directors. A
shareholder might appoint one of them as
a proxy to attend and vote on the share-
holder’s behalf.

2. The Directors and Executives.

The company had written measures to strictly

prevent wrongful use of inside information (In-

sider Trading). The company has determined

strict guidelines in written for the preventions

of the use of insider information. as follows;
Notify the Directors, Executives, and em-
ployees for the regulations and policies of
wrongful use of inside information to ensure
the acknowledgement and follow of those
regulations and policies
Prohibit trading the securities of the Company
for 30 days before the public disclosure of
financial statement. The Company's Secretary
will notify the Directors and Executives for
the silent period in advance

Define the person whose position or function
was allowed more chance to know or possess
the insider information than general em-
ployees as a group of people with random
risk who cannot perform trading or trans-
ferring the Company’s securities for 30 days
before the public disclosure of quarterly
and annual financial statements (Black out
period). In addition, the reporting of holding
and change of securities of their own, spouse,
and minor child to the Company’s Secretary
within 3 business days from the date of
such change.

The Company has established measures to
prevent conflicts of interest that may arise
from transactions between the Company and
persons who may have conflicts.
Directors and executives are required to
report to the company on any conflicts
of interest involving themselves or related
parties, particularly those associated with
the management of the company or its
subsidiaries
Directors and executives who have conflicts
of interests on a transaction shall abstain
from considering and casting their vote to
approve such transaction.
Directors and executives notify the Company
of any changes in their conflicts of interests.
The Company secretary report the changes
to the Board of Directors at each quarterly
meeting for acknowledgment.
Connected transactions that occurredinthe
year 2024 were all transparent and were
carried out in a fair manner in accordance
with ordinary courses of business.
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Chapter 3:
The Role of Stakeholders

The company respected the rights of relevant
stakeholders and treated them fairly as follows:

Employees: The Company adheres to the practice
guidelines for treating employees fairly, both in
terms of reward opportunities, appointments,
transfers, as well as potential development,
respect to individuality and human dignity, not
involve in human rights violations, maintain a safe
working environment for the lives and assets
of employees.

Partners and Creditors: The Company adhered
to good business practice and strictly complied
with commercial terms and/or agreements with
business partners and creditors including on-
time settlement, mortgage securities quality
assurance, and other agreement with creditors.
In case of non-compliance with the agreements,
the Company will promptly notify the creditors
to consider mutual solutions in reasonable
practices.

Customers: The Company strived to achieve
customers’ satisfaction and confidence by
keeping on improving products and services
as well as maintaining good relationships, in-
tegrity and fairness.

In 2024, the company made randomly and regularly
inspection the service quality of iStudio and iBeat
shops through outsourcing “Mystery Shopper”.
The company also invited Apple to rate the
customer satisfaction toward iCenter shop on
monthly basis and found that the overall satis-
faction rate of each branch was not less than
91 percent. The company acknowledged the
shortcoming and considered to improve service
quality to enhance customer satisfaction level.

Competitors: The Company treated competitors
in accordance with international standard under
legal frameworks on fair trade competition. It
observed the rules of fairness when competing
and would not acquire information from com-
petitors illegally or against its ethics.
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Communities and Society: The Company realizes
its responsibilities towards the communities and
society. It participated in charitable activities
and public services, for example, activities to
promote education.

Furthermore, the company held the anti-frauds
and corruptions policy and prohibits any kind of
bribery for the business interest of the company.
The company assigned the risk assessment
and guideline for corporate good governance
in order to prevent and monitor the frauds and
corruptions in the organization. As well as, the
company emphasized the participation of the
relevant stakeholders to determine business
transparency, compliance with corporate good
governance policy, as well as the best practice
to anti-corruptions in organizations. Those who
witness the violation can report to the board
of director through company secretary or internal
audit department. The report of violation will be
investigated and the whistle-blower will be well
protected by company.

Measure of Witness Protection

1. The company will keep the information of
corruptions, whistle-blowers, petitioners, and
suspects as confidential.

2. The company will disclose the information as
necessary by concern on safety of the source
of information and relevant persons.

3. The company will appropriately and fairly
mitigates the loss of injured person.

4. The company will not conduct any unfair action
toward the whistle-blowers and petitioners
whether change job position, job description,
workplace, suspend or terminate job, or any
other unfair action toward the whistle-blowers,
petitioners, and any person who cooperative
to the investigation.

Channel to report the offense

(1) Report to the company secretary at
S P V | Public Company Limited
2 Premier Place Building, 1st Floor Zone A,
3rd Floor Zone A, Zone B, Soi Premier 2,
Srinakarin Rd., Kwaneng Nongbon,
Khet Prawet Bangkok 10250
Email to : companysecretary@spvi.co.th

(2) Report to internal audit department at
Miss Yupa Benjawikrai
S P V | Public Company Limited
2 Premier Place Building, 1st Floor Zone A,
3rd Floor Zone A, Zone B, Soi Premier 2,
Srinakarin Rd., Kwaneng Nongbon,
Khet Prawet Bangkok 10250 or
Email to : yupa@spvi.co.th

Procedure upon receiving complaint

Upon receiving the complaint and whistleblowing
through the assigned channels, the Company’s
Secretary or Internal Audit Department will
gather the facts. The Internal Audit Department
will inspect before submit the complaint to
the head of relevant department. In addition,
the Internal Audit Department will propose
measures to solve such problems by adhering
to the principle of transparency and faired-
treat to all stakeholders.

To inspect the facts, Internal Audit Department
will consider and propose report of investigation
with comments and suggestions to Managing
Director to consider command next step as
appropriate and report to Audit Committee
for acknowledgement.

In 2024, none of complaints related to corruption
was reported. The complaints related to other
matters were solved and reported to relevant
departments for acknowledgement.

Instruction and Communication
The Company promotes knowledge and un-
derstanding to all level of employees to have
awareness of the anti-corruption. The human
resource department will communicate and
provide training to raise awareness for the
anti-frauds and corruptions policy and best
practice for the employees at all levels.

Chapter 4:

Disclosure and Transparency

The Board of Directors recognized the impor-
tance of accurate and transparent disclosure of
information, both financial and non-financial, as
stipulated by the regulations of the Securities
and Exchange Commission and the Stock Ex-
change of Thailand. It also disclosed other sig-
nificant information that might affect the price
of the company’s securities, and might have an
impact on investors and stakeholders’ decision.
This was carried out to ensure that related
parties obtain equal information. The company
disseminated information of the company to
shareholders, investors and general public
through various channels provided by the
Stock Exchange of Thailand and the company’s
website: www.spvi.co.th./investor-relations/

The Board of Directors was responsible to review
and ensure the reliability, completeness and
rationality of the company’s financial statements.
The company’s financial statements must be
prepared in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles and use appropriate ac-
counting policy with consistency and careful
judgment. The responsibility of the Board of
Directors to the financial statements together
with the report of the auditor must be included
in the Annual Report Form (56-1 One Report).
The roles of the Board of Directors and the
Audit Committee, number of board meetings,
and the number of meetings each director at-
tended during the past year, must be clearly
reported. In addition, the company was ap-
pointed to report the change of stockholding
of board of director and management in ev-
ery broad meeting. The stockholding of board
of director in 2024 was reported as following.
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Securities holding information of the directors

and management in 2024

Director / Management

Ordinary Share (shares)

31 Dec 2023

Buy (+) / Disposal (-)

31 Dec 2024

1. Mr. Teera Aphaiwongse
Chairman of the Board and Chairman of Audit Committee
Spouse and minor children

2. Mr. Sujin Suwannagate
Vice-Chairman of the Board and Member of Audit Committee
Spouse and minor children

3. Mr. Min Intanate
Director and Executive Chairman
Spouse and minor children

4. Mr. Narathorn Wongvises
Director and Chairman of Risk Management Committee
Spouse and minor children

5. Mr. Trisorn Volyarngosol

Director, Executive Director, Member of Risk Management
Committee and Managing Director

Spouse and minor children

6. Mrs. Petcharat Volyarngosol

Director, Executive Director, Member of Risk Management
Committee and Vice President (Operations)

Spouse and minor children

7. Mrs. Susama Rativanich
Independent Director and Member of Audit Committee
Spouse and minor children

8. Mr. Sophon Intanate
Director
Spouse and minor children

9. Mr. Hathaiwat Puapunt
Vice President (Accounting and Finance)
Spouse and minor children

10. Mrs. Duangnapa Volyarngosol
Assistant Vice President — Product Management
Spouse and minor children

11. Mr. Pongsakorn Boonsrimuang
Senior Manager — Service (iCenter)
Spouse and minor children

12. Mr. Pairoj Ulisnant
Senior Manager — Retail
Spouse and minor children

400,000

300,000

300,000

2,825,200

26,024,116

27,994,000

27,994,000

26,024,116

300,000

1,480,480

3,075,200

831,186

400,000

300,000

300,000

2,825,200

26,024,116

27,994,000

27,994,000

26,024,116

300,000

1,480,480

3,075,200

831,186
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The company set up an Investor Relations Department to handle information and communication with
shareholders. Investors and securities analysts could reach the company via the following contact
details:

Telephone: 0 2559 2901-9 Email: ir@spvi.coth  Correspondence: Investor Relations
In addition, investors could also study the company’s information on the website: www.spvi.co.th.

In 2024, The Company has attended in Opportunity Days organized by the Stock Exchange of
Thailand for 4 times in order to provide information about business and operation of the company
to analysts, investors, and the media. From the attendance in February 21, May 16, August 16
and November 19, the company got good feedback from the investors, shareholders and other
participants.

Chapter 5: Responsibilities of the Board of Directors

The company has appointed Nomination and Remuneration Committee to nominate the company’s
directors, it was confident that the current Board of Directors comprised highly qualified individuals
with knowledge, capabilities, skill sets and experience. They were well recognized and had a good
understanding of the roles and responsibilities of the Board of Directors.

1. Structure of the Board of Directors
11 Currently, the company’s Board of Directors consisted of 8 members comprising:
(a) 2 Executive Directors
(b) 6 Non-Executive Directors, including among others, the Chairman. Of all the Non-
Executive directors, there were 3 Independent Directors (The number of Independent
Directors was more than one-third of the total number of directors.)

\
Portion and structure of Directors
25%
375% ‘Non—Executive Directors
. Independent Directors
37.5% . Executive Directors
G J
I N\
Male/Female Length of directorship
Ix2 ‘\rsons ' 'I‘ 'I‘ 'I' >8 - 11 Year (4persons)
| | ‘
'I m 'I 'I 'I 6 persons l 'I‘ 'I‘ 'I‘ >11 Year (4persons)
\
. RN J
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In addition, the Board of Directors also appointed the following committees to assist in overseeing

the overall operations of the company.

11 The Executive Committee: responsible for
determining business operation directions
and strategies to be in accordance with the
objectives set by the Board of Directors and
to facilitate the management and operation
of the company.

1.2 The Audit Committee: responsible for specific
duties and proposing issues to the Board of
Directors for consideration and acknowledge-
ment. The Audit Committee had the rights and
duties as set out in the Scope of Responsibilities
of the Audit Committee. At least one of the
members of the Audit Committee must be
knowledgeable and experienced enough to
review the reliability of the company’s financial
statements.

1.3 Risk Management Committee : shall assistant
to the Board of Director in considering variety
risk factors such as operationalrrisk, financial risk,
marketing risk in order to ensure the capability
to manage the risk to be in acceptable level
and suit to the changing environment.

1.4 Nomination and Remuneration Committee :
perform the duty to recruit and determine re-
muneration for directors and top executives
in order to ensure the appropriate nomination
and remuneration procedure to the Board of
Director.

The Board of Directors had established a policy
that a person might not hold the position as
the Chairman and the Managing Director at the
same time. This was to clearly segregate duties
and responsibilities between policy setting &
supervision duties and daily operation manage-
ment duties. The Board of Directors would be re-
sponsible for setting policies and supervising the
performance of the management. Meanwhile,
the management would be responsible for
managing the company’s day-to-day business
operations to be in line with approved policies.

X3
0,00
N

The Chairman of the Board

Acts as the Chairman of board, shareholders’
and non-executive meetings.

Call the Board of Director’s meeting or
appoint other person to perform this duty.
Encourage all board members to debate
issues vigorously during meetings, ask
questions and express opinions.

Cast decisive vote, in case the casting vote
in the Board of Director meeting are equal.

- J

B N
Managing Director

Prepare business policies, business plan,

business objectives, operation plan, business
strategies, annual expenditure budget and
propose to the Board of Director to consent.
Manage and controls all aspects of the Com-
pany’s business according to the approved
policies and plans.

Promotes the highest standards of integrity,
ethics and corporate social responsibility
throughout the organizations.

2. Roles, Duties and Responsibilities of the
Board of Directors
ThecompanystipulatedthattheBoardofDirectors
complied with “the Code of Best Practices” for
directors of listed companies under the guide-
lines of SET. The Board must understand and be
aware of their roles and responsibilities as well as
carry out their assignments in accordance with
relevant laws, the company’s objectives and
Articles of Association. They should direct the
company in accordance with resolutions of the
shareholders’ meeting with honesty, integrity,
while seriously taking into consideration the in-
terests of the company and shareholders. The
Board of Directors would act as the policymak-
er who determined business targets, operating
plans and budgets of the company as well as
supervise the management team to operate
the business according to specified policies,
plans and budgets. It should also ensure that
the plan be effectively and efficiently executed
for the best benefits of the company and
shareholders.

3. Board of Directors’ Meetings

The company had set a policy that the Board of
Directors would hold a meeting at least once
every 3 months and had been scheduled in
advance throughout the year. In addition, a special
meeting could be called if it was deemed
necessary. Agendas would be clearly defined,
and the meeting documents would be sent
7 days in advance to allow sufficient time for
the directors to review prior to the meeting.
Each meeting would be recorded, and minutes
of meeting would be prepared in writing. All
approved documents must be properly stored
for future reference and inspection.

In 2024, there were 5 meeting arranged. The
meetings were scheduled in advance throughout
the year in order to ensure the attendance of all
directors. The board’s members who attended
the meeting are as shown in “"Management
Structure”.

4. Non-Executive Director Meeting

The Board of Director had determined to arrange
non-executive meeting at least 1time in order to
encourage non-executive directors to exchange
opinion and consider variety of issue both the
company'’s business and public interests. In 2024,
the company has arranged non-executive meeting
to determine the performance of the Board of
Director, the compliance of Corporate Good
Governance (CG Code) for the 2017 Listed
Company, and other issues.

5. Remuneration of Directors

and Management Team

The company had a policy to provide reasonable
remuneration for the company’s directors and
management team, which should be sufficient
to attract and retain the directors and the
management team. The remuneration would
be justified with their responsibilities and
competitive with other companies’ remuner-
ation within the same industry. Factors to be
considered include experience, duties, roles
and responsibilities of the directors. Moreover,
the remuneration of the directors must be ap-
proved by the general meeting of shareholders.
Meanwhile, remuneration of the management
team must comply with the principles and pol-
icies set by the Board of Directors, which was
also based on obligations, responsibilities and
performance of each executive as well as the
operating results of the company.

6. The Orientation of new director

The Board of Director provided an orientation
program for new directors to gain a thorough
understanding of the Company's business and
managements in order to prepare the directors
to perform their duties.
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7. Development of Directors

and Management Team

The Board of Directors had set a policy to promote
and support training and education for corporate
governance to related parties, including directors,
Audit Committee, management team and corporate
secretary. This was to encourage and continuously
enhance their efficiency and effectiveness.

In 2024, there were 8 directors who attended
training courses to enhance their knowledge.
Details of training course are as following;

- Broadening Board's Perspective on Risk and
Compliance

- ESG: Understanding & Crisis Management

8. Self-assessment of Board of Directors

The Board of Directors has set a self-assessment
of Board of Directors, individual director, and
sub-committee in order to evaluate performance,
as well as to review and evaluate the comments
toward any issues related to company’s oper-
ations and performance of Board of Directors.
This process will improve corporate governance

- The Board of Director’s Self-assessment
The Board of Directors has set 2024 perfor-
mance review for which covered following issues:
1. Structure of the Board of Directors

2. Corporate strategies and business direction
3. Responsibilities of the Board of Directors

4. Corporate Governance

5. Relationship between the Board of Directors
and Management

Sub-committee

1. Audit Committee
2. Nomination and Remuneration Committee

3. Risk Management Committee

o~

The 2024 performance appraisal of the entire
Board of Director was evaluated "excellent”
with 99.69 percent to these 5 issues

- Self-assessment for individual director

The Board of Director has set the performance
evaluation of the year 2024 for individual director.
The assessment covered following issues;

1. The structure and qualifications of the Board
of Director

2. The meeting of Directors

3. The role, responsibility and authority of the
Board of Director

The 2024 performance appraisal of individual
director was evaluated “excellent” with 100 percent
to these 3 issues

- Self-assessment for sub-committees

The Board of Director has set the performance
evaluation of the year 2024 for each sub-com-
mittee. The assessment covered following issues;
1. The structure and qualification of the Board
of Director

2. The meeting of Directors

3. The role, responsibility and authority of the
Board of Director

The 2024 performance appraisal of each
sub-committee was evaluated "excellent” as
following;

Performance (percent)

100

100

9853
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- Assessment procedure

At the end of year, the company’s secretary
shall provide assessment form to all directors
for self-assessment. The form will be collected
and report to the Board of Director in order to
acknowledge and discuss for further improve-
ment.

« Performance assessment of Managing Director
Nomination and Remuneration Committee set a
performance review of Managing Directors, by
using assessment form consented by the Board
of Director, in order to determine remuneration.
The assessment covered following issues:

1. Leadership skill

2. Strategic and implementation plan

3. Financial planning and performance

4. Relationship to Directors

5. Management skill and relationship to personnel
6. The succession

7. Product and service knowledge

The 2024 performance appraisal of Managing
Director was evaluated “Excellent” with 99.06
percent to these 7 issues.

Nomination of Directors

Nomination and Remuneration Committee has
been authorized to set annual review the skill and
attributes required by the law of the directors
in order to assure the appropriate composition
of the Board of Director that align with business
directions and business strategies both in present
time and in the future. The procedure of selection
of director as follow;

1. Selection and Appointment of New Director
11 Nomination and Remuneration Committee
will prepare a Board Skill Matrix to consider and
define the deficient skills of the directions as well
as the diversity of occupied skills, experience,
knowledge, independence, age and gender.

Corporate Governance

1.2 Nominationand Remuneration Committee will
consider the most qualified nominee from various
sources as follows:

- Board of Director’s recommendations

- Shareholders representing not less than 1
percentage of the total share with voting right
of the company

- Database of Directors from Thai Institute of
Directors

1.3 Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall
perform a preliminary evaluation of individual
candidates and select a number of candidates
for interview.

1.4 Nomination and Remuneration Committee
proposes the most appropriate nominee to the
Board of Directors in order to propose at
shareholder’s meeting for their consent.Incase
the position is vacant for reasons other than
retirement by rotation, the Board of Directorsis
authorized to appoint that nominee to the
position.

2. Re-appointment of Directors

To consider the existing directors to maintain
their position, the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee shall determine a variety of criteria
such as performance, number of attendances
in the meeting, the participation in the meeting
and participation in various activities of the
Board of Directors.
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Composition and Appointment

of the Directors

The composition, selection, appointment, dis-
missal, and withdrawal of the company’s Direc-
tors are prescribed in the company’s Articles of
Association and can be summarized as follows:

1. The Board of Directors of the company will
include at least 5 members. No fewer than half
of the directors must reside in Thailand, and all
members must possess qualifications prescribed
by the law.

2. Shareholders’ meetings shall elect Directors
according to the following rules and proce-
dures:

(1) Each shareholder shall be entitled to one
vote per one share.

(2) Each shareholder may cast his/her vote for one
or more candidates for the Board membership
but may not differentiate his/her voting rights
among the candidates.

(3) Nominees with the largest number of votes
shall be elected to fill the available positions
Board in respective order. In the event that a
number of nominees receive an equal vote, re-
sulting in the number of Directors being more
than is required at such time, the Chairman
of the meeting shall cast the deciding vote.

3. Ateach annual general shareholders’ meeting,
one-third of the directors shall vacate their
positions. If the number of directors cannot
be divided equally into thirds, the number
closest thereto will be applicable. In the first
and second years following the registration
of the company, the directors shall conduct a
random draw to decide which members are
to vacate their positions. In subsequent years,
directors who have been in their positions
longest shall vacate their posts. Directors,
whose term in office has thus ended, may be
reelected as directors by shareholders.
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4. Any director, who wishes to resign from office,
shall submit a letter of resignation to the company.
The resignation shall be effective on the date
on which the company receives the letter.

5. Directors, who wish to resign as above, may
notify the Registrar of his resignation. In the
event that director’s position becomes vacant
for any reason other than the end of the office
term, the Board of Directors shall, during the
next board meeting, appoint a person to be
a new director, with all the necessary qual-
ifications according to the Public Limited
Companies Act and / or Securities and Stock
Exchange Laws. This is not applicable if the
remaining office term is less than 2 months.
The appointed person shall remain a director
only for the remaining term of the person
whom they are replacing. This resolution must
be approved by at least three-fourths of the
number of remaining directors.

6. A shareholders’ meeting may also remove
a director from office before the end of the
term. Only if such a resolution is made with
at least three-fourths of eligible votes from
shareholders who attend the meeting. Such
voters must hold at least one-half of the total
number of all shares owned by all eligible
shareholders that attend that particular meeting.

i, Y "
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Compositions and Appointment

of Independent Director

The Board of Directors shall collectively consider
the qualifications of a candidate to be filled
in a position of Independent Director basing
on the qualifications and prohibited attributes
prescribed in the Public Limited Companies Act,
Securities and Stock Exchange Laws, Notifica-
tions of the SEC and/or other related rules and
regulations. In addition, the Board of Directors
shall determine candidates with qualified work
experience and suitable skills for the position of
Independent Director and then propose these
candidates to a shareholders’ meeting for their
consideration and appointment. The company
has a policy that at least a third of the Board of
Directors (consisting of at least three people)
must be Independent Directors.

Qualifications of Independent Directors

1. Not hold shares exceeding one-half (0.5)
percent of the total number of voting shares
of the company including the shares held by
related persons of the independent director.

2. Not be or not have been a member of
Management Committee, employee, officers,
consultant who receives a salary, or the au-
thorized person of the company unless they
are clear from the foregoing status not less
than two (2) years before being appointed as
Director.

3. Not be a person related by blood or reg-
istration under law with management, major
shareholders, authorized person, or a person
to be nominated as executives or authorized
person of the company. Neither being parents,
spouse, sibling, child nor spouses of children.

4. Not be or have had a business relationship
with the company or its conflict of interest
companies in the manner that inhibits their
independent judgment unless they are clear
from the foregoing status not less than two
(2) years before being appointed as Director.

5. Not be or have been an auditor of the com-
pany, its conflict of interest companies, major
shareholder, non-independent director, exec-
utive or partner of an audit firm which em-
ploys auditors of the company or corporate
that may have conflict of interest unless they
are clear from the foregoing status not less
than two (2) years before being appointed as
Director.

6. Not be or have been any kind of profession-
al advisor including a legal or financial advisor
who receives an annual service fee exceeding
two (2) million baht from the company or its
conflict of interest companies, including major
shareholder, non-independent directors, ex-
ecutives or partner of the professional advisor
unless they are clear from the foregoing sta-
tus not less than two (2) years before being
appointed as Director.

7. Not be a director who has been appointed
to be a representative of the Board of Direc-
tors, major shareholder or shareholder related
to major shareholder of the company.

8. Not be in other characteristics which will
inhibit the independent opinion toward the
operation of the company.

Compositions and Appointment

of Audit Committee

The Board of Directors will appoint at least 3
members to the Audit Committee and each
member must be an Independent Director.
The Audit Committee members must possess
the qualifications stipulated by the Securities
and Exchange laws, notifications, rules and/or
regulations of the Stock Exchange of Thailand.
The Board of Directors also establishes the
qualifications and the scope of responsibilities
of the Audit Committee from the previously
mentioned rules. Other than being an Indepen-
dent Director, members of the Audit Committee
shall also possess the following additional
qualifications:
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1. A member of the Audit Committee shall
not be a Director appointed by the Board to
make decisions on any business operations
of the company, the company’s subsidiaries,
any joint ventures, its subsidiaries, affiliates or
entities that may lead to a conflict of interest.
2. A member of the Audit Committee shall not
be a Director of a mother company, a subsidiary,
or an affiliate of the same level that is a listed
company..

3. A member of the Audit Committee should
possess sufficient knowledge and experience to
carry out the responsibilities that are required
by the Audit Committee. There must be at least
member in the Audit Committee with enough
knowledgeable and experience to review the
reliability of financial statements.

The positions of the Chairman and the members
of the Audit Committee shall remain valid until
the end of their respective responsibility as
Directors of the company.

Upon completing their term, the Chairman and
the members of the Audit Committee can be
reelected to the Audit Committee by share-
holders

Controls on the Use of Inside

Information

Directors, management and employees were
not allowed to disclose or take advantage of
confidential and/or internal information of the
company for the benefits of themselves or any
other person, whether directly or indirectly.

Directors, management and employees of the
company as well as their spouses and depen-
dent children were prohibited from using in-
ternal information of the company. Internal in-
formation was defined as information that had
or might have an impact on the price of the
company'’s securities and which had not been
disclosed to the public. Directors, management
and employees of the company were restrict-
ed to use the internal information to buy, sell,

offer for sale, or persuade others to buy, sell or
offer for sale the company’s securities, whether
directly or indirectly before the information
was revealed to the public. They were also
prohibited to do so for their own or others’
benefits, or to knowingly allow others to do so
for their benefits. Those who violate such rules
would be punished according to disciplinary
guidelines specified by the company.

The company had taken measures to ensure that
its executives understand and acknowledge
their obligations to report the holding of the
company’s securities by themselves, their
spouses and dependent children. This includes
the report of any change in the holding of such
securities to the SEC according to Section 59
of Securities and Exchange Act BE. 2535.

The company notified its directors, manage-
ment and employees as well as their spouses
and dependent children to refrain from making
any transaction on the company’s securities,
1 month prior to the public disclosure of the
company’s financial statements.

The company had duly notified its directors,
management team and employees of the
above-mentioned requirements.

For the year 2024, the company’s secretarial
department has notified directors, executives,
and individuals in positions or roles that may
have access to insider information through
email communication regarding the blackout
period, which prohibits the trading of secu-
rities of the Company. It is confirmed that,
during the blackout period, neither directors,
executives, nor related employees engaged in
securities trading using internal information.

Corporate Governance

The Appointment and Compensation of Auditor

The Audit Committee considered the qualifications and performances of auditors and proposed
the Board of Directors to appoint company’s auditors every year. As well as, considered the
compensation of auditors and propose in shareholders’ meeting for approval.

The compensation of auditors in 2024 was consist of:

1. Audit fee
In 2024, the company has paid audit fee of
1,395,000 baht to EY Company Limited

2. Non-audit service

In 2024, the company has paid the fee of
25,000 baht to EY Company Limited for
observation in product write-off process.
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Board of Directors Board of Directors and Sub-Committee
Chairman of the Board The company’'s management structure consists of the Board of Directors and 4 groups of
Sub-Committees which are Audit Committee, Executive Committee, Risk Management Committee
and Nomination and Remuneration Committee. The list of Committee with their tenure and details
of meeting attendance in 2024 are as follows:

Risk Management .
Committee Board of Directors
Chairman of Risk J

The company’s Board of Directors consists of committees who are knowledgeable and experi-
enced in various fields of business. As of December 31, 2024, the Board of Directors consists of
8 committees.

Management Committee

Audit Committee
Executive Committee Chairman of

Executive Chairman Audit Committee

Name — Last Name Position

Nomination and
Remuneration Committee
Chairman of Nomination —/
and Remuneration

1. Mr. Teera Aphaiwongse Chairman of the Board (Independent Director) / Chairman of Audit
Committee / Chairman of Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Committee
Manaaina Director Internal Audit ) 2. Mr. Sujin Suwannagate Vice-Chairman of the Board (Independent Director) / Member of Audit
SS9 ) Committee / Member of Nomination and Remuneration Committee
( h 3. Mr. Min Intanate Director / Executive Chairman
L Training
o 4. Mr. Narathorn Wongvises Director / Chairman of the Risk Management Committee
N
Information Technology 5. Mr. Trisorn Volyarngosol Director / Executive Director / Member of the Risk Management /
J Managing Director
Cont ) 6. Mrs. Petcharat Volyarngosol  Director / Executive Director / Member of the Risk Management
ICenter
J
7. Mr. Sophon Intanate Director
Accounting & Finance Operations Strategy & 8. Mrs. Susama Rativanich Independent Director / Member of Audit Committee / and Member of
Development Nomination and Remuneration Committee
) Company Secretary
retal Product Management Miss Sunsanee Horanikom
J
. \ . .
Es:tzatloze& ;( Administration Authorized Directors
rpri . . . . . .
° J Mr. Narathorn Wongvises or Mr. Min Intanate co-signs with either Mr. Trisorn Volyarngosol or
e N Mrs. Petcharat Volyarngosol and the company'’s official seal is appended.
usiness
% Development
J
N
% Marketing
J
N
% Human Resources
J
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Corporate Governance Structure and

The Attendance of Director Meeting and Sub-Committee Meetings for the year 2024

During the year 2024, the regular Board Meeting were arranged and, in each Board Meeting, there
was not less than two-third of total number of committee represented at the time of voting. The detail
of meeting attendance of each board committee are as following:

Number of Meeting Attendance / Total Meeting of the Year

. - . Nomination and
Board Meeting Audit Commlttee Risk Manageme.nt Compensation
Meeting Committee Meeting Committee Meeting
5/5 4/4 - 2/2

Director

Mr. Teera Aphaiwongse

Mr. Min Intanate 5/5 - - -
Mr. Narathorn Wongvises 5/5 - 3/3 -
Mr. Trisorn Volyarngosol 5/5 - 3/3 -
Mrs. Petcharat Volyarngosol 5/5 - 3/3 -
Mr. Sophon Intanate 5/5 - - -
Mr. Sujin Suwannagate 5/5 4/4 - 2/2
Mrs. Susama Rativanich 5/5 4/4 - 2/2

Authorities and Duties of the Board of Directors

1. To carry out its duties in compliance with all relevant laws, regulations, the company’s objectives
and Articles of Association as well as the resolutions of shareholder meetings. It shall carefully
act in the company’s best interest with integrity and discretion.

2. To elect an Executive Committee to perform a task, or multiple tasks as assigned by the Board.
The Board also has the authority to appoint a Executive Chairman and other members of various
committees such as the Audit Committee, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

3. To determine the company’s direction, policies, business plan and budget as well as supervise
the Executive Committee or any assigned person to ensure that they act in compliance with
the policies set by the Board.

4. To review and approve the company'’s visions, missions and corporate values.

In the Board of Director Meeting No. 5/2024, the board has reviewed the Company’s vision,
mission and corporate value and found that the details of such remain up-to-date and in
accordance with the current Company’s operating policy.

5. To review and approve the company’s policies, directions, strategies, business plans, annual
budget for the business, annual expenditure budget and large investment projects that have
been proposed by the Executive Committee.

6. To monitor the company’s performance according to the business plan and budget

7. To review and approve other important matters related to the company as deemed appropriate,
for the greater benefit of the company. However, the following transactions can proceed only
after receiving approvals from a shareholder meeting. It is further stipulated that if there is a
transaction, in which a director or a party has a conflict of interest, such director or party must
refrain from casting a vote on the said transaction.

(a) Transactions that are legally require a resolution from a shareholders’ meeting.
(b) Transactions in which directors may have a conflict of interest and are required by the law
or the Stock Exchange of Thailand'’s regulations to be approved by a shareholders’ meeting.

Corporate Governance Structure and
Other Information Related to Directors

Each of the following transactions can proceed only after receiving consent from a Board of
Directors’ meeting and at least an affirmative vote from three—fourth of shareholders who attend
the shareholder meeting:

(a) The sales or transfer of all or a substantial part of the company.
(b) The purchase or acquisition of another business or a private company.

(c) The entering, amendment or termination of any agreement relating to the lease of all or a
substantial part of the company’s business.

(d) The assignment for a third party to manage the company’s business or merging with a third party
with an aim to share revenues.

(e) The amendment in the company’s Memorandum of Association or Articles of Association.

(f) The increase, or decrease in capital, bond issuance, mergers or dissolutions of the company.

8. Directors are responsible for notifying the company of their own or any related persons’ interests,
whether directly, in any contracts entered into by the company, as well as any changes in their
shareholding or debenture holdings in the company.

The Important Issues Reserved for the Board’s Approval
Although the board committee has assigned the authorize to Sub-committee, Managing Director
and Senior Management, the board committee reserved the right of approval on the important
issues to the Board of Directors in order to protect the interests of company and shareholders.
For example:
Business strategy, business plan and budget.
Capital expenditure and the cost exceeded the Sub-committee or management’s approval limit.
Organization structure and designation of Managing Director.

Tasks undertaken by the Board in 2024 Board of Directors Meeting
4 )

Q1

- Considered the

Financial statement and
operating results of the
year 2023

- Considered the risks

management report
and the internal
control system
assessment result

- Considered the

selection and
appointment of the
committee

- Appointed the

External Auditor and
the remuneration of the
year 2024

- Considered the matters

to be proposed in the
Annual General Meeting
of Shareholders in 2024
to propose to the

+ Annual General Meeting

Acknowledged the
operating result of the
Sub-committee

Q2

- Considered the

Financial statement and
operating result of the
first quarter of 2024

- Acknowledged the

operating result of the
Sub-committee

- Arranged the 2024

Annual General Meeting
of Shareholder

Q3

- Considered the

Financial statement

and operating
performance of the
second quarter of 2024

- Acknowledged the

operating result of the
Sub-committee

Q4

- Financial statement and

operating performance
of the third quarter of
2024

- Approved the

company's budget
of the year 2025

- Reviewed and

approved the
company'’s visions and
missions of the year
2025

- Considered the

assessment of the
Board’s operating
result of the year 2024
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Corporate Governance Structure and

Executive Committee

Name-Surname Position

1. Mr. Min Intanate Executive Chairman

2. Trisorn Volyarngosol Executive Director

3. Petcharat Volyarngosol Executive Director

4. Miss Pakjira Tassanasewee* Executive Director

5. Mr. Hathaiwat Puapunt** Executive Director

T~

Remark : *Held this position until 21 August 2024
**Appointed this position on 19 December 2024

Authorities and Duties of the Executive Committee

1. To propose the company’s targets, policies, business plans and strategies, annual budget, to
the Board of Directors for consideration.

2. To monitor business operations of the company to be in accordance with policies, plans and
budgets as approved by the Board of Directors.

3. To consider and approve the company’s normal business transactions under budget or investment
approved by the Board of Directors. Each transaction must be approved within the given
authority approved by the Board of Directors.

4. To present the company’s organizational structure, number of required human resources and
management authority for the Board of Directors’ approval.

5. To consider and adjust remuneration and bonuses for employees that are ranking below Managing
Directors, including manpower not accounted for in the annual budget.

6. To appoint or hire a consultant regarding the administration of the company, in order to
achieve highest efficiency.

7. To consider profit and loss of the company and propose both interim and annual dividends for
the Board of Directors’ approval.

8. To assign any person(s) to perform a task under the Executive Committee’s supervision or
to delegate authority to the person(s) and within a period as deemed appropriate by the
Executive Committee. The Executive Committee may dismiss, withdraw, change or reassign the
authorized person(s) or the delegation of authority as it sees fit.

9. To perform other duties as assigned by the Board of Directors.

The Executive Committee must not assign its power to a person or a party to perform activities
that may have a conflict of interest with the company, subsidiaries or related companies (as
defined by announcements from the Securities and Exchange Commission and/or the Stock
Exchange of Thailand and/or other related agencies). The Executive Committee would not have
authority to approve such transaction and must propose to a Board of Directors’ Meeting and/
or a shareholders’ meeting (as the case may be) for their consideration and approval. Exceptions
can be made for transactions that conform to normal courses of business as defined by the SEC
and/or the Stock Exchange of Thailand and/or related agencies.

Corporate Governance Structure and
Other Information Related to Directors

Audit Committee

Name-Surname Position

Chairman of the Audit Committee

1. Mr. Teera Aphaiwongse*

2. Mr. Sujin Suwannagate * Member of the Audit Committee

3. Mrs. Susama Rativanich Member of the Audit Committee

Remarks: * Mr. Teera Aphaiwongse and Mr. Sujin Suwannagate are directors with sufficient knowledge and experience to
review financial statements.

Secretary of the Audit Committee
Ms. Yupa Benchawikai

Authorities and Duties of the Audit Committee

1. To review the company’s financial report and ensure its reliability and adequacy.

2. To review that the company has appropriate and effective internal control and internal audit
systems and to determine an internal audit unit's independence as well as to consider the
appointment, transfer or dismissal of the chief of an internal audit unit or any other positions
responsible for the internal audit.

3. To review the company’s compliance with the Securities and Exchange Act, the regulations of
the Stock Exchange and the laws relating to the company’s business.

4. To consider, select, nominate and recommend an independent individual to be the company’s
auditor and to propose the remuneration for the said individual, as well as attend a non-executive
meeting with the company’s auditor at least once a year.

5. To review connected transactions and transactions that may lead to a conflict of interest to
ensure they conform with all relevant laws and regulations of the Stock Exchange, reasonable
and are for the best interest of the company.

6. To prepare an Audit Committee report and disclose it in the company’s annual report. Such
report must be signed by the Chairman of the Audit Committee and must include at least
the following information:

(a) An opinion on the accuracy, completeness and creditability of the company’s financial report.

(b) An opinion on the adequacy of the company’s internal control system.

(c) An opinion on the compliance with the Securities and Exchange laws and the regulations
of the Stock Exchange and any laws pertinent to the company’s businesses.

(d) An opinion on the suitability of an auditor.

(e) An opinion on transactions that may lead to conflict of interest.

(f) The number of Audit Committee meetings, and the attendance of such meetings by each
committee member.

(g) Opinions or remarks received by the Audit Committee through the performance of its duties
as defined in the Committee’s charter.

(h) Other transactions, which the Audit Committee views appropriate to disclose to the
shareholders and general investors, within the scope of duties assigned by the Board of
Directors.

7. To perform any other tasks assigned by the Board of Directors, with the consent of the Audit
Committee.
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Risk Management Committee

Name-Surname Position
1. Mr. Narathorn Wongvises Chairman of the Risk Management Committee
2. Mr. Trisorn Volyarngosol Member of the Risk Management Committee
3. Mrs. Petcharat Volyarngosol Member of the Risk Management Committee
4. Miss Pakjira Tassanasewee”* Member of the Risk Management Committee

5. Mr. Hathaiwat Puapunt™ Member of the Risk Management Committee

Remark : *Held this position until 21 August 2024

**Appointed this position on 19 December 2024

Secretary of the Risk Management Committee
Miss Sunsanee Horanikom

Authorities and Duties of the Risk Management Committee

1.

To propose risk management policies in various areas to the Board of Directors for consideration
and approval.

2. To control, oversee and review risk management process in various aspects of the company

to ensure that there is a proper and acceptable level of risk management and in line with the
risk management policy.

3. To report the progress of operational development and improvement to reduce the company

risk exposure, to the Board of Directors for acknowledgement on a quaterly basis.

4. Consider and review the suitability of the risk management policy at least once a year or when

the company’s risk factors are significantly changed. In the event that there is a change to
the risk management policy, the Committee must propose the Board of Directors for approval.

5. To perform other risk management related tasks assigned by the Board of Directors.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Name-Surname Position
1. Mr. Teera Aphaiwongse Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
2. Mr. Sujin Suwannagate Member of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
3. Mrs. Susama Rativanich Member of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Secretary of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
Miss Natarin Werasilapachai
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Authorities and Duties of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
1. Nomination
11 To consider the structure and composition of the Board of Directors and Sub-committee.
Including to consider qualification of the directors that appropriate to business size and
nature of business in order to propose to the Board of Director and/or the shareholder
meeting for approval as appropriate.
12 To set the guideline and appropriate procedure in nominating Board of Directors and
other Sub-committee.
13 To select appropriate persons to assume the position of the Company’s directors and propose
approval to the Board of Directors and proposed appointment to the shareholder meeting.
14 To select appropriate persons to assume the position of directors in Sub-committee and
propose appointment to the Board of Director.
15 To manage the orientation and provide useful information to the new appointed directors.

2. Remuneration

21 To review the guideline and policies of the Board of Directors and other sub-committees’
remuneration and propose to the Board of Directors to consent and to Shareholder’s
meeting for approval.

2.2 To consider the guideline for performance assessment of Managing Director and propose
to the Board of Director for approval.

23 To determine remuneration for directors as per policies and propose to the Board of
Director to consent and to Shareholder’s meeting for approval.

2.4 To evaluate the annual performance of Chief Executive Officer and determine the appropriate
remuneration in order to propose to the Board of Director to consent.

3. Others
Perform other tasks related to nomination and remuneration as per assigned by the Board of Director.

Management Team

Name-Surname Position
1. Mr. Trisorn Volyarngosol Managing Director
2. Mrs. Petcharat Volyarngosol Vice President - Operations
3. Mr. Hathaiwat Puapunt* Vice President - Accounting & Finance
4. Mrs. Duangnapa Volyarngosol Assistant Vice President - Product Management
5. Mr. Pongsakorn Boonsrimuang Senior Manager - Service (iCenter)
6. Mr. Pairoj Ulisnant Senior Manager - Retail

Remark : *Appointed as Vice President of Accounting & Finance Department on 22 August 2024
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Authorities and Duties of the Managing Director

1. To supervise, administer and manage normal business operations in the company’s best interest
in compliance with the company objectives and Articles of Association as well as regulations,
resolutions, policies, plans and budgets approved by the Board of Directors Meeting and /
or the Shareholders’ Meeting and are under the relevant laws and authorities prescribed by
the Board of Directors.

2. To supervise and/or manage daily business operations of the company.

3. To prepare and present business policies, business plans, objectives, operation plans, business
strategies, annual expenditure budgets for business operations, and annual expenditure
budget and determine management authorities, to the Executive Committee and the Board
of Directors.

4. To adopt policies from the Board of Directors in order to determine the direction, strategies
and business goals and set missions for the company’s management and operation teams.

5. To supervise, monitor and follow up on the performance of the company’s management and
operation team as well as provide solutions to solve the problems so that the executives and
management team can move forward in accordance with the set strategic and business plans,
in accordance with the company’s policies.

6. To monitor and evaluate the performance of the management and operation teams; to report
progress their progress to the Executive Committee, the Audit Committee and the Board of
Directors on a regular basis.

7. Toissue orders, regulations, notifications and memorandum of understandings in order to ensure
that the operations conform with the company’s policies and are for the company’s best interest
as well as to maintain discipline within the organization.

8. To determine management plans including details of the selection, training, hiring and dismissal
of employees as well as the rates of wages, salaries, commissions, bonuses and welfares for
employees, all within a framework approved by the Board of Directors;

9. The Managing Director has the power to appoint and dismiss employees of the company in
positions below an executive director.

10. The Managing Director has the authority to approve expenses for normal business operations
such as purchasing assets, making important investments and authorizing other transactions in
the company’s best interest. The Managing Director is only authorized to approve transactions
under normal courses of business and according to the budget prescribed in the Authority
Table, which has been approved by the Board of Directors.

Determination of the authority of credit limit approval

The Company has established the authority to approve spending limits of normal transactions
of the Company as well as the financial transactions with the following details:

Product Product

. . Asset
Financial Procurement Procurement

Procurement
on Budget

Asset Procurement
out-of-budget

Transaction for Sales — for Sales — Non
Apple Products | Apple Product

Board of Directors < 120 Million Baht < 120 Million Baht < 10 Million Baht - < 1 Million Baht
Executive Chairman - < 70 Million Baht < 5 Million Baht No Limit < 0.70 Million Baht
Managing Director - < 50 Million Baht < 3 Million Baht < 1 Million Baht < 050 Million Baht

T~

Corporate Governance Structure and
Other Information Related to Directors

Company Secretary

The company’s board of directors has appointed Miss Sunsanee Horanikom as the company secretary,
effective from November 3, 2015. The qualifications of the company secretary are outlined in
Attachment 1.

Duties and Responsibility of Company Secretary
1. Prepare and store the Company’s documents as follows;
a) Director registration
b) Invitation letter of the Board meeting, minute of the Board meeting, and the Company’s
Annual Report
c) Invitation letter and minute of the shareholders’ meeting
2. Retain and store a report of equity interest reported by directors or executives.
3. Other administrations as announced by the Capital Market Supervisory Board

Remuneration of Directors and Management Team

Remuneration of Directors

The Nomination and Remunerations Committee has reviewed the guidelines and type of remuneration
of the Committee and Sub-Committee and proposed the Board of Directors to proposed approval in
the Annual General Meeting 2024. On April 4, 2024, the shareholders resolved to approve the remu-
neration of Directors 2024 as follows;

1. Monetary Remuneration

Monetary Remuneration (Baht)

Monthly Remuneration Meeting Allowance “

Directors

The Board of Directors

Chairman 130,000 5,000 &

Vice-Chairman 60,000 5,000 (v)

Member 40,000 5,000 (V)
Audit Committee

Chairman 20,000 - -

Member 10,000 - -

Sub-Committee

Chairman - 5,000 -
Member - 5,000 -
Remarks :

1) The Directors who is the Company’s executive/ or employee will not be paid for the remuneration of Directors
2) The Directors who is the Company’s executive/ or employee will not be paid for the meeting allowance for Sub-committee
meeting
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2. Non-Monetary Remuneration
No other benefits than monthly remuneration, meeting allowance and bonus.

In 2024, the Company has paid remuneration of 5,975,000 baht (included the bonus payment
for 2024 which was 1,050,000 baht) to the Directors which was 385,000 baht or 6.53 percent
decreased from 6,360,000 baht of 2023. Details as follow;

Others

Monthly Meeting T |
Benefits ota

Name- Surname Position Remuneration | Allowance =)

=)

(CELI)] (Baht) [(E109)

1. Mr. Teera Independent Director 1,800,000 35,000 390,000 - 2,225,000
Aphaiwongse Chairman of the
Board
Chairman of Audit
Committee
Chairman of
Nomination and
Remuneration
Committee

2. Mr. Sujin Independent Director 840,000 35,000 180,000
Suwannagate Vice-Chairman of the
Board
Member of Audit
Committee
Member of
Nomination and
Remuneration
Committee

3. Mr. Min Intanate Director 480,000 25,000 120,000 - 625,000
Executive Chairman

4. Mr. Narathorn Director 480,000 40,000 120,000 - 640,000
Wongvises Chairman of Risk
Management
Committee

5. Mr. Trisorn Director - 25,000 - - 25,000
Volyarngosol Executive Director
Member of Risk
Management
Committee
Managing Director

6. Mrs. Petcharat Director - 25,000 - - 25,000
Volyarngosol Executive Director
Member of Risk
Management
Committee

7. Mrs. Susama Independent Director 600,000 35,000 120,000
Rativanich Director
Member of Audit
Committee
Member of
Nomination and
Remuneration
Committee

8. Mr. Sophon Director 480,000 25,000 120,000 - 625,000
Intanate

1,055,000

755,000

Total 4,680,000 245,000 1,050,000

5,975,000

Corporate Governance Structure and
Other Information Related to Directors

Remuneration of Managing Director and Management Team

The Board has determined the policy and guidelines for remuneration for Managing Director and
management team. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee will consider the remuneration
of Managing Director in order to propose approval to the Board of Directors. Such remuneration
has been determined appropriately according to the Company’s remuneration structure as well
as the performance in accordance with roles and responsibilities.

The Managing Director will consider the appropriate remuneration and annual salary adjustment

of Executive Directors by considering the performance and operating results of the Company as
well as the performance in accordance with target set forth.

The Remuneration Structure of the Company

Managing
Director

Management | Employee

Short-term Incentive

Fixed Compensation and To motivate and retain

Benefits o o o com-petent employees and

- Base Salary reward performance in
accordance with duties and
responsibility by job title

Q Q o Establish the level of

security for employees

« Other Welfares i.e.
Providence Fund

Performance-related To reward the
Variable Compensation o 0 o achievement of defined
- Bonus goal for each year

The company paid remuneration of 2127 million baht and 23.40 million baht to the management
team in 2024 and 2023 respectively. The remuneration includes salary, bonus, and other welfares.

Year 2024 Year 2023

No. of the Executives Remuneration No. of the Executives Remuneration
(Person) (Baht) (Person) (Baht)

Salary 6 13,768,112.00 7 14,280,121.00
Bonus 6 1,347123.58 7 3,167,760.62

Other Welfares 6 6,151,235.09 7 5,955,938.52

Total 6 21,266,470.67 7 23,403,820.14
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Personnel

As at 31 December 2024, the company employs a total of 513 employees (exclusive of 6 executives),
which can be divided into 486 full time employees and 27 part time employees with the details
as follows:

Full Time Employee Part Time Employee Total
Department (Person)
13 1 14

1. Accounting

2. Finance 8 - 8
3. Marketing 12 1 13
4. Sales 41 1 42
5. Retail 298 14 312 Human Resource Development Policy
The company places great emphasis on the training and development of employees and has
6. Engineering & Service 47 2 49 established a training division created specifically to instruct employees. This training division has
the objectives of developing the specialized and technical knowledge, skills and experience of
7. Product Management 32 1 33 employees. Stimulating these qualities is vital to the development of our employees as it helps
) them to accomplish their assignments effectively as well as supports and prepares them towards
8. Business Development 12 ) 12 fulfilling their own career goals. These processes will, in turn, strengthen the operations of the
company as well.
9. Human Resource 5 - 5
10. Train 4 4 The company is providing the following trainings to employees:
- fraining ) Training Course for New Employees: to prepare employees for their new job
11 Administrati s 5 . Orientation course to provide the information of the Company
- Administration Selling skill training which covers customer service techniques and techniques for creating
1. Internal Audit 4 4 better customer experiences.
- internal Aud Product knowledge and demonstrations as well as product innovation
13. Sales Online 5 5 10 On the job training
Advanced Training Course: to review knowledge of employees in every position
Total 486 27 513

Training for trainers
Training for cashiers
Training for product demonstrations staffs

Remuneration of Employees

Monetary Remuneration Furthermore, the company also encourages employees to take training courses outside the company
Excluding executives, the company paid remuneration of 197.36 million baht and 194.42 million and also take certification exams held by brand owners such as Apple. This would allow
baht to employees in 2024 and 2023, respectively. The remuneration includes salary, bonus, employees to develop their own professional, specific skills and also improve the company’s
overtime wage, and other welfares. competitiveness.

The company also foreseen and gave priority to personnel succession plans, especially for top
management, in order to give confidence to the company for the readiness of personnel replace-
ment when necessary and to support business expansion in the future. For the position of top
management, senior manager and above, the company will identify the successor for immediate
replacement. In case there is no one qualified for the position, the company will provide develop-
ment plan to the subordinate as well as recruit from outside the company.
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Risk Management and Internal Control

RISK
MANAGEMENT

Risk Management

The company realized that risk management is
an integral part of the company’'s operations
and appointed a Risk Management Committee
in the Board of Directors meeting No. 2/2014,
on the 6th of May 2014. This Committee would
have the responsibility to prepare policies, control,
supervise, and review the risk management
process. The Risk Management Committee will
ensure that the company performs risk man-
agement at an acceptable level. The Committee
shall then report their findings to the Board of
Directors on a regular basis, for their consider-
ation and acknowledgement.

Internal Control

The company places great importance on internal
control, as it is a vital tool in preventing possible
damages that happen because of wrongful,
misconduct or fraudulent actions by executives
and employees.

During the Board of Directors meeting no. 1/2024
on 15th February 2024, the Board of Directors
together the Audit Committee, reviewed and
evaluated the internal control systems according
to evaluation guidelines recommended by the
Capital Market Supervisory Board. There were
five following areas: Control Environment, Risk
Assessment, Control Activities, Information
Technology and Communication and Monitoring
and Evaluation. It is in the opinion of the Board
that the company has an adequate and effective
internal control system. It did not find any sig-
nificant flaws regarding the company’s internal
control system.

Internal Audit

The company has designated an internal audit
department as an independent entity of the
company reporting to the Audit Committee.
This department is responsible for providing
administrative recommendations to the manag-
ing director. It advises, audits and assesses the
internal control system, the risk management
system, and oversees operations to ensure that
the company has an efficient internal control
system.

Anti-Corruption Policy

The company is committed to conducting its
business with honesty, integrity, transparency,
equitable and responsibility for society and all
the company’s stakeholders according to the
principle of good governance. The company
realizes that bribery or corruption is threatening
to destroy free and fair-trade practices and
is causing damage to economic and social
development. The company has established
policies and guidelines to prevent corruption.
Details have been disclosed on our website:
https://www.spvi.co.th/anti-corruption-policy

Internal Control and Related Transactions

Practice Guideline on Anti-Corruption

1. The process of risk assessment and

risk management

The company has established Internal Audit
department to examine the operation perfor-
mance of all departments in accordance with
the company’s risk issues including risks from
corruption. This to ensure that all departments
have established the appropriate internal control
system. In case any department has established
inadequate internal control system or found
corruption cases, such matters shall be reported
to the Audit Committee and Executives as well as
the proposal of preventive guidelinestoimprove
that internal audit control system.

2. Protection

To ensure that the remuneration provided to
employees is appropriated enough to raise
conscious to employee and not be source of
corruptions, the Human Resource Department has
exchanged information with others companies
in computer retails industries and shall use
that information for consideration on provision
of remuneration to the employees.

3. Training and Communications

To encourage compliance with anti-corruption
policy, the company has provided training to
employees to promote honesty, integrity, and
guidelines on good conduct and ethics for
employees including a code of business ethics
of the Company during the new employee’s
orientation. All employees can access such
information on the website of the Company
under the section on Corporate Governance.

4. Reporting and Reporting Channels

In order to manage good governance for
compliance with anti-corruptions policy, the
Company has encouraged employees and
stakeholders to report any violation to company’s
policy as well as any unfair practice to the company
by providing the channels for stakeholders to
report any misconduct action including action
that against good governance policy, ethics,
rule and regulations of the company, as well as
against laws. Employees and stakeholders can
study the process and method of whistleblowing
on the Company’s website at https://www.spvi.
co.th/whistleblowing-complaint
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Related Transactions

A list of related parties with nature of relationship and related transactions together with pricing
policy was disclosed in the Notes to the Annual Financial Statements ended 31st December 2024.
It was listed under Item 6 of the Notes: “List of Related Parties and Transactions”. The company
has set up the following policy measures with regard to related transactions:

The Need and Reasonableness of the Related Transactions

The Audit Committee of the Company reviewed information about related transactions and
acknowledged that the transactions were necessary and reasonable. They were transacted in the
best interest of the company and in line with the normal course of business.

The Related-Transaction Approving Process

The company set up policy measures to govern any transaction with an entity that might have a
conflict of interest. It had assigned the Audit Committee to review and give opinions regarding
the necessity, justification and pricing appropriateness of the transactions. The Audit Committee
would judge if conditions associated with the transactions were in line with normal course of
business and competitive with market prices and offers from other independent suppliers. In the
event that the Audit Committee did not have specific expertise to consider a related transaction,
the company would engage an advisor with relevant knowledge to comment on such transactions.
The advisor must be independent from the company or those who might have a conflict of interest
with the company. Independent advisors might include, for instance, auditors, appraisers, or legal
officers. The Audit Committee might rely on advice given by independent advisors when considering
the appropriateness of a related transaction before proposing it to the Board of Directors or the
Shareholders’” Meeting, as the case may be.

In addition, the company had stipulated that an executive or any person who might have a conflict
of interest, either directly or indirectly, must be refrained from participating in the approval
process of that transaction. The Board of Directors would ensure that the company comply with
securities and exchanges laws and regulations as well as announcements and notifications issued
by the SEC and SET. It had to also ascertain that the company complied with requirements on
the disclosure of related transactions, acquisition or disposal of important assets of the company
or its subsidiaries. Furthermore, the Board would oversee that the company applied generally
accepted accounting principles as stipulated by the Federation of Accounting Professions and
Certified Public Accountants of Thailand. Related transactions would be disclosed in the notes to
financial statements, audited or reviewed by the auditors of the company.

Related Transactions in the Future

The company might continue to have related transactions in the future, that were in line with
the normal course of business. It would set a clear policy on related transactions, particularly on
pricing and conditions, which would have to be in line with the normal course of business and
competitive with offers from other independent suppliers. Related transactions might cover, for
example, the selling and buying of products, rendering or providing services, etc. Related trans-
actions would be carried out if they were required to support the business operation and for the
best interest of the company. The Audit Committee would monitor whether related transactions
complied with the set policy measures and give opinions on the reasonableness of the transac-
tions on a quarterly basis.
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For any possible related transactions that were not in accordance with normal course of business,
the company would arrange for the Audit Committee to review and give comments on the ap-
propriatenessof the transactions before the company entered into the transactions. The consid-
eration would be made in accordance with the measures and procedures as specified above.
For any possible related transactions that might have conflicts of interest, the Board of Directors
will ensure that the company comply with securities and exchanges laws and regulation, as well
as announcements and notifications issued by the SEC and SET. It had to also ascertain that the
company complied with requirements on the disclosure of related transactions, acquisition or
disposal of important assets of the company or its subsidiaries. Furthermore, the Board would
oversee that the company applied generally accepted accounting principles as stipulated by the
Federation of Accounting Professions and Certified Public Accountant of Thailand.

Detail of Related Transaction

In 2022, 2023 and 2024, the Company made transactions with persons who may have conflicts of interest.
The details can be summarized as follows:

Penl;zonﬁav::o Type of Value of Transactions Audit Committee’ Opinions
y Necessity and Validity of

. Relationship ;
conflicts of Transaction S
interest. 2022 2023 2024

IT City Public - Co-Director is Mr. Revenue :

Company Limited  Sophon Intanate 1. Selling products - 0.24 - Selling products as normal trading
(“IT City") transactions with a corresponding
- Be majority market price

shareholder of Expense :
the Company with 1. Purchase products 0.73 0.05 0.62 Purchasing products as normal
29 percent of trading transactions with a
shareholding corresponding market price
2. Purchase assets
and equipment 0.09 0.05 - Purchasing office suppliers as
normal trading transactions with a
corresponding market price
3. Dividend
20.30 20.30 16.82 Dividend payment to shareholders
at the prescribed interest rate
SPV Advance - Co-Directors are Expense :
Corporation Mr. Trisorn and 1. Service Expense 245 258 257 Service Expenses including:
Limited Mrs. Petcharat
("SPV Advance”) Volyarngosol 11 Rental Fee 1.88 192 196 11 The rental fee paid to SPV

Advance to rent their building as

- Majority shares held the Company office, which is a

by Mrs. Petcharat useful transaction for the Company
Volyarngosol and Mr.

Trisorn Volyarngosol 1.2 Others 057 0.66 0.61 1.2 The others expense which SPV
with 26.81 and 14.73 expense Advance do advance payment
percent of shares for the Company, for example

of SPV Advance decorations, accommodations, and
respectively later charge to the Company at

actual amount.
Outstanding Balance :
Outstanding payable - - 0.05
as of December 31,
2024
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Persons who

Value of Transactions

. L Persons who
Audit Committee’ Opinions

Value of Transactions

Internal Control and Related Transactions

Audit Committee’ Opinions
may have Type of ‘ A may have Type of ‘ A=
y~ Relationship e : Necessity and Vahd'ty of y Relationship s : Necessity and Vahd'ty of
conflicts of Transaction . conflicts of Transaction .
Transaction Transaction
interest. 2022 2023 2024 interest. 2022 ployk 2024
S P V Digital - Co-Directors are Expense : ARIP Public - Co-Director is Revenue :
Service Company  Mr. Trisorn and 1. Service Expense 144 182 140 Company Limited  Mr. Min Intanate 1. Selling Products 0.57 0.50 0.48 Selling products as normal trading
Limited Mrs. Petcharat 11 Rental Fee 07 0.73 0.75 11 The rental fee paid to S P V ("ARIP") transactions with a corresponding
("SPV Digital") Volyarngosol Digital to rent their building as the market price
- Majority shares held Company office, which is a useful Expense :
by Mrs. Petcharat transaction for the Company 1. Service Fee 1.00 136 136 Service fees are including
Volyarngosol and Mr. - Space rental fee for IT exhibition
Trisorn Volyarngosol 1.2 Others service 0.73 1.09 0.65 12 The others expense which S and media fee in IT magazine which
with 12.00 and 9.50 expense P V Digital do advance payment is normal trading transactions with a
percent of shares for the Company, for example corresponding market price
of S P V Digital accommodations, and later charge Outstanding Balance :
respectively to the Company at actual amount, Outstanding payable - - 0.04
as well as brochure and poster as of December 31,
printing cost. 2024
Outstanding Balance :
Qutstanding payable - - 0.14 Data One Asia - SVOA holding Revenue :
as of December 31, (Thailand) share in D1at 9999 1. Selling Products 013 - - Selling products as normal trading
2024 Company Limited percent and being transactions with a corresponding
("D1") majority shareholder market price
SVOA Public - Majority Revenue : in IT City who is the ~ Expense :
Company Limited  shareholder of IT 1. Selling Products 0.20 0.60 312 Selling products as normal trading majority shareholder 1. Purchasing Product - - - Purchasing office equipment as
("SVOA") City who is majority transactions with a corresponding of the Company normal trading transaction with a
shareholder of the market price corresponding market price
Company Expense :
1. Purchasing Product 0.26 0.87 154 Purchasing products as normal trading 2. Purchasing Assets - 0.06 - Purchasing software product which
transactions with a corresponding is a reasonable transaction with a
market price corresponding market price
2. Purchasing Assets - 0.07 0.20 Purchasing office equipment as 3. Service Expense - 0.36 0.48 Service expense for E-Tax system
normal trading transaction with a which is a reasonable transaction with
corresponding market price a corresponding market price
Outstanding Balance :
3. Service Expense 0.21 0.18 on Service expense paid for human Outstanding payable - - 0.03
capital management. The Company as of December 31,
hire SVOA to manage as follows. 2024
- Employees database Other accrued - - 0.03
- Payroll system expense
- Tax and Social Security
Management. Due to SVOA has Business Online - Co-Director is Revenue :
already invested in human capital Public Company  Mr. Min Intanate 1. Selling Products 0.06 - 025  Selling products as normal trading
management and being capable to Limited ("BOL") transactions with a corresponding
support this service to the Company market price
at reasonable price, it is worth
investing in when compared to hiring ARIT Company - Co-Director is Revenue :
more staff and investing in own Limited ("ARIT") Mr. Min Intanate 1. Selling Products 0.12 0.09 012 Selling products as normal trading
system. transactions with a corresponding
market price
4. Product 8.90 8.89 1.68 Inventory management. The
Management Fee ﬁz:fa:é::fjusevg%{z; An\(l)r\eNnr:ory Advance - Co-Director is Revenue :
J . Research Group Mr. Min Intanate 1. Selling Products 022 164 0.65 Selling products as normal trading
warehouse space as well as qualified L . . )
) Company Limited transactions with a corresponding
for the inventory management . W X
. . ("ARG") market price
standards and security. The service Expense :
fee is reasonable and worth |nve§t|ng 1. Purchasing Product 0.30 1.06 1.09 Service fee for additional branches
in when compared to self-operating. . ) .
) registration with Department of
SVOA has to manage their product :
‘ ) Business Development and legal
and delivery to SVOA point of sales ’
T advisory fee
where is similar to the Company.
ncing Balan 2. Purchasing Assets 5.01 109 1232 Development fee for POS system
- Outstanding - - 212 A . .
. as normal trading transactions with
receivables as of ricing agreed by the parties
December 31, 2024 . P g a9 4 P
_ Outstandin B B 265 Outstanding Balance :
9 ’ Outstanding - - 1232
payable as of receivables as of
December 31, 2024
~ Other accrued B B 100 December 31, 2024
' Other accrued - - 0.50
expense
expense

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 (Form 56-1 One Report)
S P V | PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 (Form 56-1 One Report)
S P V | PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

88




90

Internal Control and Related Transactions

\

Persons who
may have
conflicts of
interest.

ANET Company
Limited ("ANET")

PCC International
Company Limited

Touch Printing
Republic
Company Limited

National Credit
Bureau Company
Limited

Lease IT Public
Company Limited
“uT)

Ulite Digital
Company Limited

Ares International
(Thailand) Limited

Relationship

- Co-Director is
Mr. Min Intanate

- Co-Director is
Mr. Narathorn
Wongvises

- Co-Director is Mr.
Sophon Intanate

- Co-majority
shareholder is IT City
(24.00 percent of
share)

- Co-Director is
Mr. Min Intanate

- SVOA hold 35.80
percent in LIT and
being majority
shareholder in IT City
who is the majority
shareholder of the
Company

- Lease It Public
Company Limited
hold 99.99 percent
shares in Ulight
Digital, of which
SVOA hold 35.80
percent in Least It
while SVOA hold
30.48 percent in IT
City and IT City is
majority shareholder
of the Company

- Co-Director is
Mr. Min Intanate

Type of
Transaction

Revenue :
1. Selling Products

Revenue :
1. Other revenue

Expense :
1. Purchasing office

supply

Revenue :
1. Selling Products

Revenue :
1. Selling Products
holds a 30.48% with

Revenue :
1. Selling Products

Outstanding Balance :
Outstanding
receivables as of
December 31, 2024

Expense :
1. Purchasing Assets

Value of Transactions
2022 2023 ployZi

0.04

0.61

0.60

0.98

69.69

3.87

- 0.04
0.001 -
2369 62.12

- 937

- 0.69

Audit Committee’ Opinions
Necessity and Validity of
Transaction

Selling products as normal trading
transactions with a corresponding
market price

The revenue came from promotional
fees supported by platform where
the company has opened the shop. In
which the PCC International Co.Ltd
has entered into a memorandum of
agreement to be responsible for that
promotional fees on behalf of the
platform.

Purchasing office supply as
normal trading transactions with a
corresponding market price

Selling products as normal trading
transactions with a corresponding
market price

Selling products as normal trading
transactions with a corresponding
market price

Selling products as normal trading
transactions with a corresponding
market price

Development fee for accounting
software and maintainance as normal
trading transactions with pricing
agreed by the parties
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Report on the Board of Directors’
responsibilities for Financial Statements

Report on the Board of Directors'
responsibilities for Financial Statements

The Board of Directors is responsible for S P V | Public Company Limited’s financial statements,
including the financial information presented in this annual report. The aforementioned financial
statements are prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, using
careful judgment and the best estimations. Important information is adequately and transparently
disclosed in the notes to financial statements for the Company’s shareholders and investors.

The Board of Directors has provided and maintained a risk management system and appropriate
and efficient internal controls to ensure that accounting records are accurate, reliable and adequate
to protect its assets and uncover any weaknesses that may be presented in order to prevent fraud
or materially irregular operations.

The Board of Directors has appointed an Audit Committee to be responsible for reviewing the
accounting policy, financial reports, internal controls, internal audit and risk management system.
The Audit Committee has also reviewed a disclosure of related party transactions. All their comments
on these issues have been included in the Audit Committee Report which is presented in this
annual report.

The financial statements of the Company have been examined by an external auditor, EY Office
Limited. To conduct the audits and express an opinion in accordance with generally accepted
auditing standards, the auditor was provided with all of the Company’s records and related data
as requested. The auditor’s opinion is presented in the auditor’s report as part of this annual report.

The Board of Directors believes that the Company’s overall internal control system has functioned
up to a satisfactory level and rendered credibility and reliability to S P V | Company Limited's
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024. The Board of Directors also believes
that all these financial statements have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles and related regulations.

A 00 MMBM
Mr. Teera Aphaiwongse
Chairman

-

Mr. Min Intanate
Executive Chairman
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To the Shareholders of S P V | Public Company Limited

QOpinion
S P V I Public Company Limited

Report and financial statements
31 December 2024

| have audited the accompanying financial statements of S P VV | Public Company Limited (the
Company), which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2024, and the
related statements of comprehensive income, changes in shareholders’ equity and cash flows for
the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material accounting policy
information (collectively “the financial statements”).

In my opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of 8 P V | Public Company Limited as at 31 December 2024, its financial
performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting
Standards.

Basis for Opinion

| conducted my audit in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing. My responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of my report. | am independent of the Company in accordance with
the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants including Independence Standards issued by the
Federation of Accounting Professions (Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants) that are
relevant to my audit of the financial statements, and | have fulfiled my other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants. | believe that

the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.
Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgement, were of most significance
in my audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of my audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming my opinion thereon,

and | do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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| have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of my report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly,
my audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to my assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements. The results of my audit procedures,
including the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for my audit
opinion on the accompanying financial statements as a whole.

Key audit matters and how audit procedures respond for each matter are described below.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is a material accounting entry which directly affects profit or loss of the Company.

In addition, the Company has many branches, and receives rebates and sales promotions from
its vendors. There are therefore risks with respect to the amount and timing of the recognition of
revenue and the rebates and sales promotions from the vendors. | have therefore focused on the
revenue recognition of the Company.

| examined the revenue recognition of the Company by assessing and testing its internal controls
with respect to the revenue cycle. | applied a sampling method to select sale transactions
occurring during the year and near the end of the reporting period to check against the supporting
documents and | reviewed credit notes that the Company issued after the end of the reporting
period. | also performed analytical procedures on disaggregated data to detect possible
irregularities in sales transactions throughout the period, particularly for accounting entries made
through journal vouchers. Moreover, | applied a sampling method to select supporting documents
for rebate and sale promotion transactions during the year to examine the recognition of the
rebates and sale promotion granted by vendors.

Inventories

Computers and mabile phone are technology products which are constantly developing. Any
changes in technology could affect the values of inventories. Estimating the net realisable value
of inventories, as disclosed in Note 4 and Note 9 to the financial statements, thus requires
significant management judgement, particularly with regard to the estimation of provision for
diminution in the value of slow-moving and obsolete inventories. This requires detailed analysis of
the product life cycle, the competitive environment, economic circumstances and the situation
within the industry, which impact the amount of provision set aside.

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 (Form 56-1 One Report)
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| assessed and gained an understanding of the internal controls of the Company relevant to the
determination of provision for diminution in the value of inventories by making enquiry of
responsible executives. In addition, | assessed the criteria used in determining such provision
and reviewed the consistency of the application. | also compared the inventory holding periods
and inventory movements to identify product lines with indicators of lower-than-normal inventory
turnover, and performed analysis to compare the net proceeds from sales of goods occurring
after the date of the financial statements with the cost of inventories.

QOther Information

Management is responsible for the ather information. The other information comprise the
information included in annual report of the Company, but does not include the financial
statements and my auditor's report thereon.

My opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and | do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with my audit of the financial statements, my responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or my knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work | have performed, | conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, | am required to report that fact. | have nothing to report in
this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with Thai Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting

process.
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Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,

but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing, | exercise professional

judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. | also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If | conclude that a material uncertainty exists, | am required to
draw attention in my auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of my auditor's report. However, future events or

conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Financial Statements

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

| communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that | identify during my audit.

| also provide those charged with governance with a statement that | have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, | determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. | describe these matters in my auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
| determine that a matter should not be communicated in my report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits
of such communication.

| am responsible for the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report.
G 67

Chawalit Chaluayamparnbut
Certified Public Accountant (Thailand) No. 8881

EY Office Limited
Bangkok: 13 February 2025
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S P VI Public Company Limited
Statement of financial position
As at 31 December 2024
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S P V| Public Company Limited
Statement of financial position (continued)
As at 31 December 2024

Financial Statements

(Unit; Baht) (Unit: Baht)
Note 2024 2023 Note 2024 2023
Assets Liabilities and shareholders' equity
Current assets Current liabilities
Cash and cash equivalents 7 122,362,250 63,588,049 Short-term loans from financial institutions 15 - 183,065,090
Trade and other receivables 6,8 119,883,159 154,676,747 Trade and other payables 6, 16 417,833,034 299,558,138
Inventories 9 524,097,237 641,583,487 Dividend payable 173,146 161,067
QCther current financial assets 10 10,000,000 - Current portion of long-term lease liabilities 17 73,450,138 68,916,261
Other current assets 11 15,832,469 21,979,862 Income tax payable 1,635,975 2,004,740
Total current assets 792,175,115 881,728,145 Other current liabilities 958,499 1,122,160
Non-current assets Total current liahilities 494,050,792 554 827 456
Equipment 12 136,689,987 119,424,956 Non-current liabilities
Right-of-use assets 17 189,111,185 141,605,068 Long-term lease liabilities - net of current portion 17 123,884,042 74,874,922
Intangible assets 13 33,470,691 36,706,841 Provision for long-term employee benefits 18 26,335,448 21,914,078
QOther non-current assets 14 45,317,723 39,029,729 Total non-current liabilities 150,219,490 96,789,000
Deferred tax assets 23 16,567,995 13,161,850 Total liabilities 644,270,282 651,616,456
Total non-current assets 421,157,581 349,928,444 Shareholders' equity
Total assets 1,213,332,696 1,231,656,589 Share capital
Registered
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 400,000,000 ordinary shares of Baht 0.50 each 200,000,000 200,000,000
Issued and fully paid up
400,000,000 ordinary shares of Baht 0.50 each 200,000,000 200,000,000
Share premium 39,809,592 39,809,592
Retained earnings
Appropriated - statutory reserve 19 20,000,000 20,000,000
Unappropriated 309,252,822 320,230,541
Total shareholders' equity 569,062,414 580,040,133
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 1,213,332,696 1,231,656,589
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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S P V | Public Company Limited
Statement of comprehensive income
For the year ended 31 December 2024
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Profit or loss:

Revenues

Sales 20
Service income 20
Other income 21
Total revenues

Expenses

Cost of sales

Cost of services

Selling and distribution expenses

Administrative expenses

Total expenses

Operating profit

Finance cost

Profit before income tax expenses

Income tax expenses 23
Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income:
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified

to profit or loss in subsequent periods:
Actuarial loss 18
Less: Income tax effect 23
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified

to profit or loss in subsequent periods - net of income tax
Other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year

Basic earnings per share 24
Profit

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (shares)

(Unit: Baht)
2024 2023
6,761,223,759 6,664,720,247
22,938,587 63,308,228
47,243,584 42,021,743
6,831,405,930 6,770,050,218
6,102,694,162 6,009,436,073
8,386,543 39,781,066
530,926,711 476,305,381
122,122,569 110,520,779
6,764,129,985 6,636,043,299
67,275,945 134,006,919
(7,192,189) (8,539,780)
60,083,756 125,467,139
(11,694,093) (25,274,713)
48,389,663 100,192,426
(1,709,877) :
341,975 s
(1,367,902) .
(1,367,902) -
47,021,761 100,192,426
0.12 0.25
400,000,000 400,000,000

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Financial Statements
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S P V | Public Company Limited
Statement of changes in shareholders' equity
For the year ended 31 December 2024

(Unit: Baht)
Issued and
paid up Share Retained earnings
Note share capital premium Appropriated  Unappropriated Total

Balance as at 1 January 2023 200,000,000 39,809,592 20,000,000 290,037,487 549,847,079
Profit for the year - - - || 100,192,426 100,192 426
Other comprehensive income for the year - - - - -
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - 100,192,426 100,192 426
Dividend paid 27 - - - {69,999.372) (89,9898,372)
Balance as at 31 December 2023 200,000,000 39,809,592 20,000,000 320,230,541 580,040,133
Balance as at 1 January 2024 200,000,000 39,808,592 20,000,000 320,230,541 580,040,133
Profit for the year - - - 48,389, SGj 48,389,663
Other comprehensive income for the year - - - (1,367,902 (1,367,802)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - 47.021,761 47,021,761
Dividend paid 27 = z 4 (57,999,480)  (57,999,480)
Balance as at 31 December 2024 200,000,000 39,808,592 20,000,000 308,252,822 560,062,414

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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S P V | Public Company Limited S P V1 Public Company Limited é
Cash flow statement Cash flow statement (continued) prd
For the year ended 31 December 2024 For the year ended 31 December 2024 B
(Unit: Baht) (Unit: Baht)
2024 2023 2024 2023
Cash flows from operating activities Cash flows from investing activities
Profit before tax 60,083,756 125,467,139 Increase in other current financial assets (10,000,000) -
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to Proceeds from sales of equipment 192,617 37,516
net cash provided by (paid from) operating activities: Acquisitions of equipment (63,328,605) (67,702,851)
Depreciation and amortisation 134,082,268 111,700,886 Increase in intangible assets (11,595,880) (7,408,589)
Reversal of allowance for expected credit losses - (30,000) Cash paid for right-of-use assets (2,170,000) (2,420,000)
Reduction of inventory to net realisable value 1,100,382 2,590,824 Net cash flows used in investing activities (86,901,868) (77,493,925)
Loss on disposal/write-off of equipment, intangible assets Cash flows from financing activities
and right-of-use assets 3,281,030 3,435,049 Increase in short-term loans from financial institutions 412,500,000 1,977,886,541
Allowance for diminution in value of equipment 6,102,106 - Repayment of short-term loans from financial institutions (695,565,090) (1,794,821,451)
Allowance for diminution in value of intangible assets 18,359 - Dividend paid (57,987,401) (69,968,727)
Allowance for diminution in value of rental deposit 138,042 a Payment of pricipal portion of lease liabilities (71,991,939) (65,933,730)
Provision for long-term employee benefits 4,215,353 2,442,218 Cash paid for interest expenses (7,440,188) (8,291,780)
inlerestincome (577,708) (300,508) Net cash flows from (used in) financing activities (320,484,618) 38,870,853
Interest expenses 7,192,189 8,534,331 Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 58,774,201 13,310,613
Gain on lease modification (463,848) (561,883) Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 63,588,049 50,277,436
T Tma— (54.617) ) Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 122,362,250 63,588,049
Profit from operating activities before
changes in operating assets and liabilities 215,117,312 253,278,056 Supplemental cash flows information:
Operating assets (increase) decrease: Non-cash related transaction
Trade and other receivables 34,780,369 (85,676,446) Payable for purchase of equipment 3,085,741 1,001,090
IRBRIoIas 113,738,081 (42,146,897) Payable for purchase of intangible asset 12,840 2,681,786
Oithiar currant assste 6,147,393 (3,004,371) Additions to right-of-use assets and lease liabiities 134,319,590 76,994,137
P —— (6,426,036) (4,820,379) Transfer inventory to equipment 2,641,187 1,733,715
Operating liabilities increase (decrease): Transfer inventory to intangible assets 6,600 -
Trade and other payables 119,107,190 (28,757,427)
Other current liabilities (163,661) (696,257) The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
Provision for long-term employee benefits (1,503,860) (780,520)
Cash flows from operating activities 480,796,788 87,305,759
Cash received from interest income 480,927 300,508
Cash paid for income tax (15,127,028) (35,672,582)
Net cash flows from operating activities 466,160,687 51,933,685
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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S P V| Public Company Limited
Notes to financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2024

Financial Statements

3.2 Financial reporting standards that will become effective for fiscal years beginning on

or after 1 January 2025

The Federation of Accounting Professions issued a number of revised financial reporting
1. General information standards, which are effective for fiscal years beginning on or after 1 January 2025. These
financial reporting standards were aimed at alignment with the corresponding International
S P V | Public Company Limited (“the Company”) is a limited company incorporated under Financial Reporting Standards with most of the changes directed towards clarifying
Thai laws on 6 January 2011 and registered the change of its status to a public limited accounting treatment and providing accounting guidance for users of the standards.
company under the Public Limited Companies Act on 10 April 2013 and domiciled in Thailand. . -
. , " . - ; ; h beli ' '
Its major shareholder is IT City Public Company Limited, a company incorporated in Thailand. e rr‘1an:gement attne (i;m(pzany ellevis Hrigk aldotption ° : AR Emendaanll BeERs
The Company is principally engaged in the distribution of computers, mobile phone, related e e e Ll
accessories and related service. Its registered address is No. 2, Premier Place, 1 floor Zone 4.  Accounting policies
A, 3floor Zone A, Zone B, Soi Premier 2, Srinakarin Road, Nong Bon, Prawet, Bangkck which -
) 4.1 Revenue and expenses recognition
was registered on 4 November 2024.
Sales of goods
As at 31 December 2024, the Company operates 77 branches (31 December 2023:
80 branches). Revenue from sale of goods is recognised at the point in time when control of the asset is
transferred to the customer, generally on delivery of the goods. Revenue is measured at the
2. Basis of preparation : ; : ; ;
amount of the consideration received or receivable, excluding value added tax, of goods
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting supplied after discounts.
Standards enunciated under the Accounting Profession Act B.E. 2547 and their presentation . .
Rendering of services
has been made in compliance with the stipulations of the Notification of the Department of
Business Development, issued under the Accounting Act B.E. 2543. Revenue from after-sale service is recognised at a point in time upon completion of the
service.
The financial statements in Thai language are the official statutory financial statements of the
Company. The financial statements in English language have been translated from the Thai Installation service revenue is recognsed over time when services have been rendered taking
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except where Selling support income and selling promotion income
otherwise disclosed in the accounting policies. Selling support income and selling promotion income are recognised as income on an accrual
3.  New financial reporting standards BB,
Interest income
3.1 Financial reporting standards that became effective in the current year
Interest income is calculated using the effective interest method and recognised on an accrual
During the year, the Company has adopted the revised financial reporting standards which basis. The effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset,
are effective for fiscal years beginning on or after 1 January 2024. These financial reporting unless the financial assets subsequently become credit-impaired when it is applied to the net
standards were aimed at alignment with the corresponding International Financial Reporting carrying amount of the financial asset (net of the expected credit loss allowance).
Standards with most of the changes directed towards clarifying accounting treatment and B
providing accounting guidance for users of the standards.
Interest expense from financial liabilities at amortised cost is calculated using the effective
The adoption of these financial reporting standards does not have any significant impact on interest method and recognised on an accrual basis.
the Company’s financial statements.
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4.2

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand and at banks, and all highly liquid

T~

4.5

Financial Statements

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment

investments with an original maturity of three months or less and not subject to withdrawal loss (if any).
restrictions. Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised on the straight-line basis over the economic
4.3 Inventories useful life and tested for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset

4.4

Finished goods are valued at the lower of cost (under first-in, first-out method) and net
realisable value.

The net realisable value of inventory is estimated from the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs to complete the sale.

Allowance for diminution in inventory value will be set up for obsolete, slow moving or
deteriorated inventories.

Equipment/Depreciation

Equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and allowance for loss on
impairment of assets (if any).

Depreciation of equipment is calculated by reference to their costs on the straight-line basis
over the following estimated useful lives:

4.6

may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method of such intangible
assets are reviewed at least at each financial year end. The amortisation expense is charged
to profit or loss.

A summary of the intangible assets with finite useful lives are as follows:

Useful lives
Computer software 5 years

Franchise fee Agreement term (5 - 7 years)

Leases

At inception of contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease.
A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an

identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

The Company as a lessee

Leasehald improvement - 5 years

Computer i o— The Company applied a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except
Office equipment ) 5 years for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. At the commencement date of the lease
Flanitiire ard fistiires ) 5 years (i.e. the date the underlying asset is available for use), the Company recognises right-of-use
Mtorvakicles ) 5 years assets representing the right to use underlying assets and lease liabilities based on lease

Depreciation is included in determining income.
No depreciation is provided on assets under installation.

An item of equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on disposal of an asset is
included in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

payments.
Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less accumulated depreciation, any accumulated
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-
of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities initially recognised, initial direct costs
incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date of the lease, and

an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying

asset or the site on which it is located less any lease incentives received.
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Depreciation of right-of-use assets are calculated by reference to their costs, on the straight-
line basis over the shorter of their estimated useful lives and the lease term.

Buildings - 2 -15 years

If ownership of the leased asset is transferred to the Company at the end of the lease term
or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the
estimated useful life of the asset.

4.7

Financial Statements

Related party transactions

Related parties comprise individuals or enterprises that control, or are controlled by, the
Company, whether directly or indirectly, or which are under common control with the Company.

They also include individuals or enterprises which directly or indirectly own a voting interest
in the Company that gives them significant influence over the Company, key management
personnel, directors and officers with authority in the planning and direction of the Company’s
operations,

Lease liabilities 4.8 Foreign currencies
Lease liabilities are measured at the present value of the lease payments to be made over The finenoiel statsments ofs: presemmead n Balt, which is siss:the Gampeny's; frchonal
. ; 3 : currency.

the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments less any lease incentives

receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Baht at the exchange rate ruling at the

to be payable under residual value guarantees. Moreover, the lease payments include the date of the transaction. Mcnetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are

exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and translated into Baht at the exchange rate ruling at the end of reporting period.

payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company Gain and losses on exchange are included in determining income.

exercising an option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index

. . — . i : 4.9 i -financial

or arate are recognised as expenses in the period in which the event or condition that triggers I nEnRor o alasneln

the payment occurs. At the end of each reporting period, the Company performs impairment reviews in respect of
the equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets whenever events or changes in

The Company discounted the present value of the lease payments by the interest rate implicit circumstances indicate that an asset may be impaired. An impairment loss is recognised

in the lease or the Company’s incremental borrowing rate. After the commencement date, when the recoverable amount of an asset, which is the higher of the asset'’s fair value less

the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for costs to sell and its value in use, is less than the carrying amount.

the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured )

: ; ; : , An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss.

if there is a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments or a change in the

assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset. 4.10 Employee benefits

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

A lease that has a lease term less than or equal to 12 months from commencement date or
a lease of low-value assets is recognised as expenses on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

Short-term employee benefits

Salaries, wages, bonuses and contributions to the social security fund are recognised as
expenses when incurred.

Post-employment benefits
Defined contribution plans

The Company and its employees have jointly established a provident fund. The fund is
monthly contributed by employees and by the Company. The fund's assets are held in a

separate trust fund and the Companv’s contributions are recoanised as expenses when
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Defined benefit plans

The Company has obligations in respect of the severance payments it must make to
employees upon retirement under labor law. The Company treats these severance payment
obligations as a defined benefit plan.

The obligation under the defined benefit plan is determined by a professionally qualified
independent actuary based on actuarial techniques, using the Projected Unit Credit Method.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from defined benefit plans are recognised immediately in
other comprehensive income.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of the date of the plan
amendment or curtailment and the date that the Company recognised restructuring-related
costs.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

Income Tax

Income tax expense represents the sum of corporate income tax currently payable and
deferred tax.

Current tax

Current income tax is provided in the accounts at the amount expected to be paid to the
taxation authorities, based on taxable profits determined in accordance with tax legislation.

Deferred tax

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts at the end of each reporting period, using the tax
rates enacted at the end of the reporting period.

The Company recognises deferred tax liabilities for all taxable temporary differences while
it recognise deferred tax assets for all deductible temporary differences and tax losses carried
forward to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which
such deductible temporary differences and tax losses carried forward can be utilised.

4.13

Financial Statements

At each reporting date, the Company reviews and reduces the carrying amount of deferred
tax assets to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.

The Company records deferred tax directly to shareholders’ equity if the tax relates to items
that are recorded directly to shareholders’ equity.

Financial instruments

The Company initially measures financial assets at its fair value plus, in the case of financial
assets that are not measured at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. However,
trade receivables, that do not contain a significant financing component, are measured at the
transaction price as disclosed in the accounting policy relating to revenue recognition.

Classification and measurement of financial assets

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as to be subsequently measured at
amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income (‘FVOCI”), or fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL"). The classification of financial assets at initial recognition is
driven by the Company's business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual cash flows characteristics of the financial assets.

Financial assets at amortised cost

The Company measures financial assets at amortised cost if the financial asset is held in
order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest
rate ("EIR") method and are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit
or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets measured at FVTPL are carried in the statement of financial position at fair
value with net changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

These financial assets include derivatives, security investments held for trading, equity
investments which the Company has not irrevocably elected to classify at FVOCI and
financial assets with cash flows that are not solely payments of principal and interest.

Dividends on listed equity investments are recognised as other income in profit or loss.
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Classification and measurement of financial liabilities

At initial recognition the Company’s financial liabilities are recognised at fair value net of
transaction costs and classified as liabilities to be subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities
are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process. In determining amortised
cost, the Company takes into account any fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR.
The EIR amortisation is included in finance costs in profit or loss.

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets

Regular way purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a
time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace are recognised on the
settlement date, i.e., the date on which an asset is delivered.

Derecognition of financial instruments

A financial asset is primarily derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the
asset have expired or have been transferred and either the Company has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or the Company has transferred control
of the asset.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. VWhen an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts
is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (‘ECLs") for all debt
instruments not held at FVTPL. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual
cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company

expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effective interest rate.

For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that are
possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which
there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance
is required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure (a lifetime ECL).

4.14
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The Company considers a significant increase in credit risk to have occurred when
contractual payments are more than 30 days past due and considers a financial asset as
credit impaired or default when contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in
certain cases, the Company may also consider a financial asset to have a significant increase
in credit risk and to be in default using other internal or external information, such as credit

rating of issuers.

For trade receivables, the Company applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs.
Therefore, the Company does not track changes in credit rigk, but instead recognises a loss

allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date.

ECLs are calculated based on its historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward-

looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the
contractual cash flows.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reported in the
statement of financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between buyer and seller (market participants) at the measurement
date. The Company applies a quoted market price in an active market to measure their assets
and liabilities that are required to be measured at fair value by relevant financial reporting
standards. Except in case of no active market of an identical asset or liability or when a quoted
market price is not available, the Company measures fair value using valuation technique
that are appropriate in the circumstances and maximises the use of relevant observable

inputs related to assets and liabilities that are required to be measured at fair value.
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All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy into three levels based on
categorise of input to be used in fair value measurement as follows:

Level 1 - Use of quoted market prices in an observable active market for such assets or
liabilities

Level 2 - Use of other observable inputs for such assets or liabilities, whether directly or
indirectly

Level 3 - Use of unobservable inputs such as estimates of future cash flows

At the end of each reporting period, the Company determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels within the fair value hierarchy for assets and liabilities held at the

end of the reporting period that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis.

Significant accounting judgements and estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with financial reporting standards at
times requires management to make subjective judgements and estimates regarding matters
that are inherently uncertain. These judgements and estimates affect reported amounts and
disclosures; and actual results could differ from these estimates. Significant judgements and
estimates are as follows:

Leases

Determining the lease term with extension and termination options - The Company as
a lessee

In determining the lease term, the management is required to exercise judgement in
assessing whether the Company is reasonably certain to exercise the option to extend or
terminate the lease considering all relevant facts and circumstances that create an economic
incentive for the Company to exercise either the extension or termination option.

Estimating the incremental borrowing rate - The Company as a lessee

The Company cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, the
management is required to exercise judgement in estimating its incremental borrowing rate
to discount lease liabilities. The incremental borrowing rate is the rate of interest that the
Company would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the
funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar

economic environment.

Financial Statements

Allowance for expected credit losses of trade receivables

In determining an allowance for expected credit losses of trade receivables, the management
needs to make judgement and estimates based upon, among other things, past collection
history, aging profile of outstanding debts and the forecast economic condition for groupings
of various customer segments with similar credit risks. The Company’s historical credit loss
experience and forecast economic conditions may also not be representative of whether a
customer will actually default in the future.

Allowance for diminution in value of inventory

The determination of allowances for diminution in the value of inventory, requires
management to make judgements and estimates. The allowance for decline in net realisable
value is estimated based on the selling price expected in the ordinary course of business less
the estimated costs to complete the sales; and provision for obsolete, slow-moving and
deteriorated inventories that is estimated based on the approximate aging of each type of
inventory.

Equipment/Depreciation

In determining depreciation of equipment, the management is required to make estimates of
the useful lives and residual values of the equipment and to review estimate useful lives and
residual values when there are any changes.

In addition, the management is required to review equipment for impairment on a periodical
basis and record impairment losses when it is determined that their recoverable amount is
lower than the carrying amount. This requires judgements regarding forecast of future
revenues and expenses relating to the assets subject to the review.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences and unused tax
losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences and losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is
required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon

the likely timing and level of estimate future taxable profits.
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those related companies are as follows:
The obligation under the defined benefit plan is determined based on actuarial technigues.

Such determination is made based on various assumptions, including discount rate, future (Unit: Thousand Baht)

salary increase rate, mortality rate and staff turnover rate. 2024 20723
' Trade and other receivables - related parties (Note 8)

6.  Related party transactions Related companies (related by common shareholders and

During the years, the Company had significant business transactions with related parties. common directors) 11,784 2,354
Such transactions, which are summarised below, arose in the ordinary course of business Total trade and other receivables - related parties 11,784 2,354
and were concluded on commercial terms and bases agreed upon between the Company Trade and other payables - related parties (Note 16)
and those related parties. Major shareholder = 53
(Unit: Million Baht) Related companies (related by common shareholders and
2024 2023 Pricing policy common directors) 16,722 2,690
Total trade and other payables - related parties 16,722 2,743

Transactions with major shareholder
(T City Public Company Limited)

Directors and management's benefits

Purchase of goods 1 - Approximately market price

Divvidatids 17 20 ZEAG dasared fite During the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, the Company had employee benefit
Fransaubionswiti related companiss expenses payable to their directors and management as below.

Sales of goods 66 27 Market price (Unit: Million Baht)
Purchases of goods 2 3 Market price 2024 2023
Purchase of fixed assets 13 8 Market price Short-term employee benefits 242 26.8
Service expenses 8 7 Prices agreed by the parties Post-employment benefits 0.9 0.9
Logistics and distribution fee 12 g Prices agreed by the parties Total 25.1 270

7. Cash and cash equivalents

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

2024 2023
Cash 2,685 2,406
Bank deposits 119,677 61,182
Total 122,362 63,588

As at 31 December 2024, bank deposits in savings accounts and fixed deposits carried
interests between 0.15 and 0.75 percent per annum (2023: between 0.15 and 0.95 percent
per annum).
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8. Trade and other receivables

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

2024 2023

Trade receivables - related parties
Aged on the basis of due dates
Not yet due 8,863 2,354
Past due

Up to 3 months 2,921 -
Total trade receivables - related parties 11,784 2,354
Trade receivables - unrelated parties
Aged on the basis of due dates
Not yet due 88,236 137,505
Past due

Up to 3 months 9,174 8,985

3 - 6 months 35 -

6 - 12 months - 63

Over 12 months 205 205
Total 97,650 146,758
Less: Allowance for expected credit losses (205) (205)
Total trade receivables - unrelated parties, net 97,445 146,553
Total trade receivable - net 109,229 148,907
Other receivables
Other receivables - unrelated parties 10,654 5,670
Total other receivables 10,654 5,670
Total trade and other receivables - net 119,883 154,577

The normal credit term is 30 days.

Set out below is the movement in the allowance for expected credit losses of trade receivables.

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

2024 2023
Beginning balance 205 235
Reversal of provision for expected credit losses - (30)
Ending balance 205 205

10.

1.

Financial Statements

Inventories
(Unit: Thousand Baht)
2024 2023
Finished goods 559,059 675,445
Less: Reduce cost to net realisable value (34,962) (33,862)
Inventories - net 524,097 641,583

During the current year, the Company reduced cost of inventories by Baht 1.1 million
(2023: Baht 2.6 million), to reflect the net realisable value. This was included in cost of sales.

Other current financial assets

The outstanding balance cof other current financial assets as at 31 December 2024 are

6-month fixed deposits carried interests of 1.75 percent per annum (2023: nil).
Other current assets

The outstanding balance of other current assets as at 31 December 2024 and 2023 are as

follows:
(Unit: Thousand Baht)
2024 2023
Input tax and value added tax refundable 7,987 15,791
Advance payments for purchase of goods 406 318
Others 7,439 5,871
Total other current assets 15,832 21,980
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12. Equipment As at 31 December 2024, certain equipment items have been fully depreciated but are still in
(Unit: Thousand Baht) use. The gross carrying amount before deducting accumulated depreciation of those assets
P— Office Furniiture MaleE  AesEIS e amounted to approximately Baht 101 million (2023: Baht 86 million).
improvement Computer equipment and fixtures  vehicles installation Total
13. Intangible assets
Cost:
i 2000 22492 §77e3 128205 L Rz BeeH The net book value of intangible assets, as at 31 December 2024 and 2023 is presented
Additions - 1,364 11,377 32,734 - 13,917 59,392
below.
Disposals and write-off = (203) (1.849) (2,858) - - (4,910)
Transfers in (out) - 1,514 4,837 18,229 . (22,648) 1,734 (Unit: Thousand Baht)
31 December 2023 2,000 25,810 81,918 171,370 1,178 613 282,889 Computer
Additions = 42 28,594 1,928 E 36,850 65,414 Franchise fee software Total
Disposals and write-off (2,000) (137) (3,421) (11,161) - - (18,719) As at 31 December 2024
Transfers in (out) - 2,580 61 37,390 - (37,390) 2,641 Cost _ 47 972 47 947 95 919
- 282 199, : 73 ; -
51 Beeprber 2024 A8 il B et AR Less: Accumulated amortisation (32,843) (29,587) (62,430)
Accumulated depreciation: ! )
Less: Allowance for impairment loss - (18) (18)
1 January 2023 2,000 18,330 39,137 73,601 835 - 133,993
Depreciation for the year . 2,999 9,766 18,841 138 g 31,744 Net book value 15,128 18,342 33,471
Depreciation on disposals
and write-off . (190) (1,040) (1,043) - - (2.273) As at 31 December 2023
31 December 2023 2,000 21,139 47,863 91,489 973 - 163,464 Cost 42,723 45 374 88,097
Depreciation for the year - 3,028 11,994 26,523 137 - 41,682 Laiisi ARsuiiiated s anisstion (27,951) (23,439) (51,390)
Depreciation on disposals 14772 21935 36707
and write-off (2,000) (08)  (2547)  (9.068) : - (13713) Net book value ’ : j

31 December 2024 . 24,069 57,310 108,944 1,110 4 191,433

A reconciliation of the net book value of intangible assets for the years 2024 and 2023 is
Allowance for impairment loss:

presented below.
1 January 2023 = = b = * = =

31 December 2023 . 5 % . 2 = s (Unit: Thousand Baht)
Increase during the year % 6 2,254 3.842 3 4 6,102 2024 2023
31 December 2024 - 6 2,254 3.842 = s 6,102 Net book value at beginning of year 36,707 37,111
Net book value: Acquisition of computer software 2,627 7,606
31 December 2023 : 4,671 34,055 79.881 205 613 119,425 lhosasaol Handileesfie 6,299 2,455
31 December 2024 * 4,220 45,588 86,741 68 73 136,690 Transfer from inventory 7 -
Depreciation for the year: Write-off of computer software (3) (902)
2023 (Baht 30.0 million included in selling expenses, and the balance in administrative expenses) 31,744 Write-off of franchise fee (465) -
2024 (Baht 38.8 million included in selling expenses, and the balance in administrative expenses) 41,682 Amortisation for the year (11,683) (9,563)
Loss on impairment (18) -
Net book value at end of year 33,471 36,707
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14. Other non-current assets 17. Leases
(Unit: Thousand Baht) The Company as a lessee
2024 2023
Rental deposit 45 456 39,030 The Company has lease contracts for various items of assets used in its operations. Leases
Less: Allowance for impairment loss (138) - generally have lease terms between 2 - 15 years.
Net other non-current assets 45318 39,030 .
a) Right-of-use assets
15: et Townt e HRaHcE ISt Movement of right-of-use assets for the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023 are
(Unit: Thousand Baht) summarised below:
Interest rate
@ (Unit: Thousand Baht)
(percent per
2024 2023
annum) 2024 2023 -
Balance at beginning of year 141,605 134,609
Pramissaty notes i . TR0 Additions 2,170 2,420
Trust receipt — 2 s Increase 134,320 76,994
Total : 183,065 Disposal (2,208) (754)
2 . _ Reduction in lease modification (4,808) (358)
As at 31 December 2024, the short-term credit facilities of the Company which have not yet )
. . Reduction from lease reassessment (1,251) (913)
been drawn down amounted to Baht 550 million (31 December 2023: Baht 367 million). o
Depreciation for the year (80,717) (70,393)
16. Trade and other payables Balance at end of year 189,111 141,605

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

b) Lease liabilities

2024 2023

Trade payables - related parties 313 46 (Unit: Thousand Baht)
Trade payables - unrelated parties 374,262 267,188 2024 2023
Other payables - related parties 14,881 1,099 Lease payments 216,451 151,924
Other payables - unrelated parties 13,144 13,635 Less: Deferred interest expenses (19,117) (8,133)
Accrued expenses - related parties 1,528 1,598 Total 197,334 143,791
Accrued expenses - unrelated parties 13,705 15,992 Less: Portion due within one year (73,450) (68,916)
Total trade and other payables 417,833 299,558 Lease liabilities - net of current portion 123,884 74,875
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Movements of the lease liability account during the years ended 31 December 2024 and
2023 are summarised below:

(Unit; Thousand Baht)

2024 2023
Balance at beginning of year 143,791 135,389
Additions 134,320 76,994
Accretion of interest 6,608 4 549
Repayments (78,600) (70,422)
Reduction in lease modification (4,993) (986)
Reduction from lease reassessment (1,305) (913)
Disposal (2,487) (820)
Balance at end of year 197,334 143,791

A maturity analysis of lease payments is disclosed in Note 29 under the liquidity risk.

Expenses relating to leases that are recognised in profit or loss

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

2024 2023
Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets 80,717 70,393
Interest expense on lease liabilities 6,608 4,554
Expense relating to leases of low-value assets 158 197
Expense relating te short-term leases 18 18
Others

The Company had total cash outflows for leases for the year ended 31 December 2024
of Baht 78.8 million (2023: Baht 70.6 million), including the cash outflow related to
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets.

T~

18.

Provision for long-term employee benefits

Financial Statements

Provision for long-term employee benefits, which represents compensation payable to

employees after they retire from the Company, was as follows:

Provision for long-term employee benefits at
beginning of year
Included in profit or loss:
Current service cost
Interest cost
Included in other comprehensive income:
Actuarial (gain) loss arising from

Demographic assumptions changes
Financial assumptions changes
Experience adjustments

Benefits paid during the year

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Provision for long-term employee benefits

at end of year

2024 2023
21,914 20,252
3,604 1,894
611 548
1,964 s
(620) s
366 s
(1,504) (780)
26,335 21,914

The Company expect to pay Baht 3.2 million of long-term employee benefits during the next

year (2023: nil).

As at 31 December 2024, the weighted average duration of the liabilities for long-term

employee benefit is 17 years (2023: 16 years).

Significant actuarial assumptions are summarised below:

(Unit: percent per annum)

2024 2023
Discount rate 2.6 2.1
Salary increase rate 3.0-6.0 40-7.0
Turnover rate 0.0-30.0 0.0-40.0
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the long-term employee benefit obligation as at 31 December 2024 and 2023 are Disaggregated revenue information

summarised below:

(Unit: Thousand Baht)
(Unit: Million Baht) 2024 2023
2024 Type of goods or service:
Increase 1%  Decrease 1% Sale of products 6,761,224 6,664,720
Discount rate (2.4) 2.8 After-sale services 20,280 26,695
Salary increase rate 2.8 (2.4) Installation services 2,658 36,613
Total revenue from contracts with customers 6,784,162 6,728,028
Increase 20%  Decrease 20% - s
Timing of revenue recognition:
Tumnover rate (1.7) 22 Revenue recognised at a point in time 6,781,504 6,691,415
(Unit: Million Baht) Revenue recognised over time 2,658 36,613
2023 Total revenue from contracts with customers 6,784,162 6,728,028
Increase 1% Decrease 1% i
21. Other income
Discount rate (2.1) 2.5
Salary increase rate 29 (2.5) (Unit: Thousand Baht)
2024 2023
oreass 20% Detraase 20% Selling support income 26,742 28,213
Tumover rate (2.2) \ 29 Selling promotion income 16,068 10,152
Gain on lease modification 464 687
19. Statutory reserve Gain on lease reassessment B5 -
Interest income 578 301
Pursuant to Section 116 of the Public Limited Companies Act B.E. 2535, the Company is i
Commission income 427 167
required to set aside to a statutory reserve at least 5 percent of its net profit after dedu:ti:g T 137 186
umulated deficit brought forward (if any), until the reserve reaches 10 percent of the _
s g oAt Ik At TESE P Others 2,773 2,316
registered capital. The statutory reserve is not available for dividend distribution. At present,
. Total 47,244 42 022
the statutory reserve has fully been set aside.
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23.

Expenses by nature

Significant expenses classified by nature are as follows:

Purchase of finished goods

Salaries and wages and other employee benefits

Change in inventories of finished goods

Depreciation and amortisation

Credit card fee

Sales fee

Rental and service center expenses from operating
lease agreements

Logistics and distribution fee

Utilities expenses

Office supply expenses

Loss on write-off of assets

Loss on impairment of assets

Income tax

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

2024 2023
5,985,208 6,047,258
239,314 235,768
116,386 (40,413)
134,082 111,700
61,582 60,594
108,416 83,085
22,169 19,222
11,114 9,759
9,787 10,267
4,631 6,830
3,281 3,501
6,259 -

Income tax expenses for the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023 are made up as

follows:

Current income tax:

Current income tax charge

Deferred tax:

Relating to origination and reversal of temporary
differences

Income tax expense reported in profit or loss

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

2024 2023
14,758 25,894
(3,064) (619)
11,694 25275

Financial Statements

The amounts of income tax relating to each component of other comprehensive income for
the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023 are as follows:

Deferred tax relating to actuarial loss

(Unit: Thousand Baht)
2024 2023
342 -

The reconciliation between accounting profit and income tax expense is shown below.

Accounting profit before tax

Applicable tax rate
Accounting profit before tax multiplied by
income tax rate
Effects of:
Non-deductible expenses
Additional expense deductions allowed
Total

Income tax expenses reported in profit or loss

The components of deferred tax assets are as follows:

Deferred tax assets
Allowance for diminution in value of inventories
Impairment for assets
Provision for long-term employee benefits
Lease

Allowance for expected credit losses
Total

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

2024 2023
50,084 125,467
20% 20%
12,017 25,093
182 219
(505) (37)
(323) 182
11,694 25,275

(Unit: Thousand Baht)
Statements of financial position

2024 2023
6,992 6,772
1,252 e
5,267 4,383
3,016 1,966

41 41
16,568 13,162

12
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24. Earnings per share 27. Dividend
Basi ) h . Total Dividend
asic earnings per s ividi [ i
gs p are is calculated by dividing profit for the year (excluding other Dividends Apiproned by AidERs Gar shaite Paid on
comprehensive income) by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during (Million Baht) (Baht)
the year. 2024
. . Final dividends for 2023 Annual General Meeting of the
25. Segment information
shareholders on 4 April 2024 58 0.145 25 April 2024
Operating segment information is reported in a manner consistent with the internal reports Totlfora024 58
that are regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision maker in order to make decisions b
about the allocation of resources to the segment and assess its performance. The chief FingliiaecHstonaies, [svuel Conam Hineing eithe
- =y . . . . shareholders on 4 April 2023 70 0.175 25 April 2023
operating decision maker has been identified as Managing Director. -
Total for 2023 70
The one main reportable operating segment of the Company is the distribution of computers,
mobile phone, related accessories and related service, and the single geographical area of "B GomnnitmEntsand continpens:liabilitios
its operations is Thailand. Segment performance is measured based on operating profit or 28.1 Capital commitments
loss, on a basis consistent with that used to measure operating profit or loss in the financial
statements. As a result, all of the revenues, operating profits and assets as reflected in these 28.1.1 As at 31 December 2024, the Company had capital commitments of approximately
financial statements pertain to the aforementioned reportable operating segment and Baht 0.5 million (2023: Baht 0.5 million), relating to the contract for website
geographical area. development project.
Major customers 28.1.2 As at 31 December 2024, the Company had capital commitments of approximately
Baht 0.5 million (2023: nil), relating to the contract for the SmartCore system
For the years 2024 and 2023, the Company has no major external customer with revenue of optimization project (Hardware and New System Architecture).
10 percent or more of an entity's revenues. . )
28.2 Lease and service commitments
26. Provident fund

The Company and its employees have jointly established a provident fund in accordance with
the Provident Fund Act B.E. 2530. Both employees and the Company contributes to the fund
monthly at the rate of 5 percent of basic salary. Currently, the fund is managed by Tisco Asset
Management Co., Ltd. and will be paid to employees upon termination in accordance with
the fund rules. The contributions for the year 2024 amounting to approximately Baht 4.4 million
(2023: Baht 3.8 million) were recognised as expenses.

28.2.1 The Company has entered into a logistics and distribution services agreement with a
related company whereby the Company was obliged to pay for the service fee on a
basis and at a rate as stipulated in the agreement. The term of agreement is 1 year

and shall be renewal for another year each time, unless cancelled by either party.

28.2.2 The Company has entered into several contracts in respect of lease of the low value
assets, short-term lease agreements and service agreement in respect of the

warehouse and branch areas. The terms of the agreements are generally between

1 and 5 years.
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28.3

29.

291

As at 31 December 2024, the Company has future minimum payments as follows.

(Unit: Million Baht)

202 2023
Payable within:
Less than 1 year 1.3 11.5
In over 1 and up to 5 years 1.4 2.2
Guarantees

As at 31 December 2024, there were outstanding bank guarantees of approximately
Baht 218.3 million (2023: Baht 198.9 million) issued by bank on behalf of the Company in
respect of the purchase of goods and services as required in the ordinary course of business
of the Company.

Financial instruments
Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company'’s financial instruments principally comprise cash and cash equivalents, trade
and other receivables, current financial assets, shori-term loans from financial institution and
trade and other payables. The financial risks associated with these financial instruments and
how they are managed is described below.

Credit risk

The Company is exposed to credit risk primarily with respect to deposits with banks and trade
accounts receivable and other financial instruments. The maximum exposure to credit risk is
limited to the carrying amounts as stated in the statement of financial position. The Company’s
maximum exposure relating to derivatives is noted in the liquidity risk topic.

Trade receivables

The Company manages the risk by adopting appropriate credit control pelicies and
procedures and therefore does not expect to incur material financial losses. Outstanding trade
receivables are regularly monitored and any shipments to major customers are generally
cavered by bank guarantees or other forms of credit insurance obtained from reputable banks
and other financial institutions. In addition, the Company does not have high concentrations
of credit risk since it has a large customer base in various industries.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date to measure expected credit
losses. The provision rates are based on days past due for grouping of various customer
segments with similar credit risks. The Company classifies customer segments by customer
type and rating, and coverage by bank guarantees and other forms of credit insurance. The
Company does not hold collateral as security. The calculation reflects the probability-weighted
outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and supportable information that is
available at the reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions.

Financial instruments and cash deposits

The Company manages the credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions by
making investments only with approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to
each counterparty. Counterparty credit limits are reviewed by the Finance Manager on an
annual basis, and may be updated throughout the year subject to approval of the Company’s
Board of Directors. The limits are set to minimise the concentration of risks and therefore

mitigate financial loss through a counterparty's potential failure to make payments.
Market risk

There are two types of market risk comprising currency risk and interest rate risk.
Foreign currency risk

The Company’s exposure to foreign currency risk arises mainly from purchasing transactions
that are denominated in foreign currencies.

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the outstanding balance of financial liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are not material.

interest rate risk

The Company's exposure to interest rate risk relates primarily to its cash at banks,
short-term loans from financial institution and lease liabilities. Most of the Company's financial
assets and liabilities bear floating interest rates or fixed interest rates which are close to the
market rate.

The Company manages its interest rate risk by having a balanced portfolio of fixed and floating
rate loans and borrowings. The Company's policy is to match between sources and uses of
funds.
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As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, significant financial assets and liabilities classified by type
of interest rate are summarised in the table below, with those financial assets and liabilities
that carry fixed interest rates further classified based on the maturity date, or the repricing

Financial Statements

Liquidity risk

The Company needs liquidity to meet its obligations and is responsible for its own cash
balances and the raising of credit lines to cover the liquidity needs.

date if this occurs before the maturity date.
(Unit: Million Baht) The Company monitors the risk of a shortage of liquidity position by a recurring liquidity
£l planning and maintains an adequate level of cash, cash at banks and unused committed and
SRS o Flaating o uncommitted credit lines with banks to meet its liquidity requirements.
within more than interest interest Effective
1 year 1 year rate bearing Total interest rate The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company's non-derivative financial
(% per annum) liabilities as at 31 December 2024 and 2023 based on contractual undiscounted cash flows:
Financial assets _ 4 Bt
Cash and cash equivalent - e 94 28 122 0.15-0.75 (Unit: Thousand Baht)
Trade and other receivables . = s 120 120 s As at 31 December 2024
Other current financial asset # - 10 = 10 1.75 Less than 1-5
- - 104 148 252 _ 1 year years Total
Financial liabilities Trade and other payables 417,833 - 417,833
Trade and other payables - - - 418 418 5 Lease liabilities 80,731 135,720 216,451
Lease liabilities 73 124 - - 197 3.45-5.25 —_—m" 498,564 135,720 634,284
73 124 g 418 615
(Unit: Thousand Baht)
(Unit: Million Baht)
As at 31 December 2023
2023
Fixed interest rates Floating Non- Less than 1-8
within more than interest interest Effective 1 year yodE Total
1 year 1 year rate bearing Total interest rate Short-term loans from financial institutions 184,116 - 184,116
(% per annum) Trade and other payables 299,558 - 299,558
Rinancizl asset Lease liabilities 73,093 78,831 151,924
Cash and cash equivalent - - 39 25 64 0.15-0.95 Total 556,767 78,831 635598
Trade and other receivables = - - 155 155 =
= ) ) 180 21 29.2 Fair values of financial instruments
Financial liabilities
Short-term loans from Since the majority of the Company'’s financial instruments are short-term in nature or carrying
financial institutions 183 g s - 183  4.27-4.30 interest at rates close to the market interest rates, their fair value is not expected to be
Trade and other payables - : . 299 299 . materially different from the amounts presented in the statements of financial position.
Lease liabilities 69 75 - 7 144 315-4.50
252 75 = 299 626
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Enclosure 1

Details of Directors, Executive, The person taking the highest
responsibility in accounting and finance, The person supervising

30. Capital management

The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to ensure that it has

appropriate capital structure in order to support its business and maximise shareholder value. . dc S
" i accounting an ompan ecretar
As at 31 December 2024, the Company’s debt-to-equity ratio was 1.13:1 (2023: 1.12:1). g pany y
31. Event after the reporting period Name-Surname / | Ase | Academic Tooeof | Relationthip
Position Quialification :;‘If,r,ig e ! » Company .
Period Position N Type of Busines
. " .
On 13 February 2025, the meeting of the Company’s Board of Directors No.1/2025 passed Ve Teers 28 | Master of 010% ] on. independent | S PV I Public | Resefler of Apple
. . 8ot ] Aphaiwongse Engineering Present Director Company products, including
a resolution approving the dividend payment for the year 2024 to the Company’s shareholders Chairman of the Board (Computer Science), Limitod computers, 105 devices
i i i 3 Chairman of University of New Chairman of (iPod, iPad, iPhone) and
at Baht 0.08 per share or a total dividend of approximately Baht 32 million. The Company will Audit Committee South Wales, the Board various other
: o . Chairman of Australia Chairman of accessories as well as
further propose this dividend payment for approval to the Annual General Meeting of the Nomination and Audit distributor for other
Remuneration Certificate from Committee brands that compatible
ShafehOIder& Committee Director Chairman of with Apple products.
Independent Director Certification Nomination
Program (DCP), and
" " 5/2001 Remuneration
32. Approval of financial statements Committee
Certificate Nation
Defence College, 2017- Advisor to the  National Credit Data Center
These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company's Board of Directors 377 Fresent | Board et pureau
Limited
on 13 February 2025.
2016- Chairman of Inforax Banking and Financial
Present the Board System Software and Service
Solutions &
Services Com-
pany Limited
Electronic
2017-2020 Advisor to the Transactions
Board Development
Agency
Ministry of
Information
and Com-
munication
Technology
Mr. Sujin 74 Master of Business 0.08% - 2012- Independent S PV IPublic Reseller of Apple
Suwannagate Administration, Present Director Company products, including
Independent Director Long Island Univer- Vice-Chairman  Limited computers, iOS devices
Vice-Chairman of the sity, USA of the Board (iPod, iPad, iPhone)
Board of Directors of Directors and various other
Member of Certificate from Member of accessories as well as
Audit Committee Director Audit distributor for other
Member of Accreditation Committee brands that compatible
Nomination and Program (DAP), Member of with Apple products.
Remuneration SET 2012 Nomination
Committee and
Remuneration
Committee
Mr. Min Intanate 70 Honorary Doctoral 0.08% Mr. Sophon 20M- Executive S P V I Public Reseller of Apple
Executive Chairman Degree in Law, Do- Intanate’s Present Chairman Company products, including
Director (Authorized minican University Father Director Limited computers, iOS devices
Directors) of California, USA (iPod, iPad, iPhone)
and various other
Honorary Doctoral accessories as well as
Degree in Science, distributor for other
Information brands that compatible
Technology for with Apple products.
Management,
Mahasarakham 20011- Director ABIKS office Building for Rent
University Present Development
Company
Honorary Degree Limited
of Information
Technology 2006~ Chairman of D&B Insight data, marketing
Rajamangala Present the Board (Thailand) analysis, business risk
University of Company analysi
Technology Limited
Thanyaburi, Thailand

SPVI
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Percent- Family Working Experience in Past 5 Years Percent- Family Working Experience in Past 5 Years
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Name-Surname / (YA;%Z) Academic age of Relationship Name-Surname / (\29;5) Academic age of Relationship
Position Qualification f:ﬁrai; ev:::uttri]vee Peri o Company - Position Qualification ri:lzri; ev;::uttri]vee . o Company .
eriod Position N Type of Busines Period Position N Type of Busines
Honorary Bachelor 2000- Director National Credit Data Center Mr. Trisorn 63 Master of Business 6.50% Spouse 20M- Director S P VI Public Reseller of Apple
Degree of Science, Present Credit Bureau Volyarngosol Administration, of Mrs. Present Executive Company products, including
Computer Science, Company Director (Authorized University of New Petcharat Director Limited computers, iOS devices
Engineering and Limited Directors) Haven, USA Volyarn- Managing (iPod, iPad, iPhone)
Agricultural, Executive Director gosol Director and various other
Rajamangala 1996-2019 Executive IT City Public Distributor of computers, Member of Risk Certificate accessories as well as
University of Chairman Company peripherals and other Management from Director Brother-in- 2014- Member distributor for other
Technology Director Limited related information Committee Accreditation law of Mrs. Present of Risk brands that compatible
Thanyaburi technology products as Managing Director Program (DAP), Duangnapa Management with Apple products.
well as office supplies SET 2012 Volyarn- Committee
Bachelor of and telecommunication gosol MAI Listed
Architecture, services Certificate from 2019-2023 President Company
Fu Hsing Institute Capital Market Association
of Technology, 2003- Executive Business Business information Academy
Taiwan Present Chairman Online Public provide, Program (CMA), 29 SPV Digital Digital Poster Design &
Director Company Big Data Management, 1996~ Director Service Production
Thailand Insurance Limited Business Risk Analysis Present Company
Leadership and Consultants Limited
Program, Class
1/20M, Office of 1989-2023 Executive ARIP Public Event Organizer and 1994- Director SPV Advance  Leasing
Insurance Commis- Chairman Company Media Agency Present Corporation
sion(OIC) Director Limited Limited
Certificate 1987- Director Advance Business information Mrs. Petcharat 64 Master of Business 6.9% Spouse of 20M- Director, Exec- S P V | Public  Reseller of Apple
from Director Present Research provider Volyarngosol Administration, Mr. Trisorn Present utive Director, Company products, including
Accreditation Group Research and Director Major in Finance, Volyarngosol Member of Limited computers, iOS devices
Program (DAP), Company consultant Agency Executive Director University of New (Director) 2014~ Risk Manage- (iPod, iPad, iPhone)
36/2005 Limited Member of Risk Haven, USA Present ment Com- and various other
Management Sister-in- mittee and accessories as well as
Certificate from Committee Master of law of Mrs. Vice President distributor for other
Role of the Vice Present - Computer Duangnapa (Operations) brands that compatible
Chairman Program Operations Information System, Volyarn- with Apple products.
(RCP), 12/2005 (Authorized University of New gosol
Directors) Haven, USA 1996~ Director SPV Digital Digital Poster Design &
Mr. Narathorn 72 Master of Science 0.70% - 20M- Chairman S PV IPublic Reseller of Apple Present Service Com-  Production
Wongvises Industrial and Present of Risk Company products, including Certificate pany Limited
Chairman of Risk Systems Management  Limited computers, iOS devices from Director
Management Committee Engineering, Committee (iPod, iPad, iPhone) Accreditation 1994- Director SPV Advance  Leasing
Director (Authorized San Jose State Director and various other Program (DAP), Present Corporation
Directors) University, USA 2014~ accessories as well as SET 2012 Limited
Present distributor for other
Certificate brands that compatible Mrs. Susama Rativanich 47 Master of Science 0.08% - 2012- Independent S PV IPublic Reseller of Apple
from Director with Apple products. Member of Audit in Information Present Director Company products, including
Accreditation Committee / Member Systems, American Member of Limited computers, iOS devices
Program (DAP), 2019-2023 Member of Office of the of Nomination and University, USA Audit (iPod, iPad, iPhone)
7/2004 Committee on  Nation An- Remuneration Committee and various other
development ti-Corruption Committee Certificate Director Member of accessories as well as
Information Commission Independent Director Accreditation Nomination distributor for other
Technology Program (DAP), SET and brands that compatible
2012 Remuneration with Apple products.
2016-2022 Honorary Deposit Committee
Director Protection
(Fiscal Finance) ~ Agency 2012 - 2017 Assistant Vice  General Mass Communication
Chairman of President Administration
Executive Manager Division
Remuneration MCOT Public
Sub-committee Company
Member of Limited
Organization
Strategy 2023 Head of Bangkok Mass Communication
Steering Planning and Broadcasting
Sub-committee Scheduling & TV.
Division, Company
2012- Chairman of PCC Call Center Service Program Limited
Present the Board International Production
Company Department
Limited
2021-2022 Senior Bangkok Mass Communication
20M- Advisor Advanced Business information Specialist, Broadcasting
Present Research provider Research and Business & T.V. Com-
Group consultant Agency and Program  pany Limited
Company Development
Limited Division
2017-2020 Program Amarin Mass Communication
Department Television
Manager Company
Limited
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Name-Surname / (Y‘;gfs) Academic age of Relationship Name-Surname / (\22?5) Academic age of Relationship
Position Qualification :c:firii;; evlggutt"i]vee Peri o Company - Position Qualification r?ct‘lzlri:;; ez::ultri]vee . o Company -
eriod Position N Type of Busines Period Position N Type of Busines
Mr. Sophon Intanate 42 Master of - Offspring 2015- Director S P V | Public Reseller of Apple Ms. Sunsanee 48 Master of Business - - 2015- Company S P V | Public Reseller of Apple
Director Commerce (Eco- Mr. Min Present Company products, including Horanikhom Administration, Present Secretary Company products, including
nomics & Banking) Intanate Limited computers, iOS devices Company Secretary University of The Limited computers, iOS devices
The University of (Director) (iPod, iPad, iPhone) Thai Chamber of (iPod, iPad, iPhone)
Sydney NSW, and various other Commerce and various other
Australia accessories as well as 2014- Secretary S P VI Public accessories as well as
distributor for other Bachelor of Present of Risk Company distributor for other
Bachelor of brands that compatible Accounting, Management Limited brands that compatible
Commerce (Eco- with Apple products. Major in Auditing, Committee with Apple products.
nomics & Finance) University of The
The University of 2019- Director IT City Public Retail for computer Thai Chamber of 2012- Business S P V | Public
Sydney NSW, Present President Company hardware and peripheral Commerce Present Development Company
Australia Limited Manager Limited
Certificate of
Certificate from 2018-2019 Vice Pres- IT City Public Retail for computer Company Secretary
Director ident Mar- Company hardware and peripheral Program (CSP)
Certification keting and Limited Class 76/2017
Program (DCP), Product
2013 Mrs. Salisa Laovitawat 56 Master of - - 20M-Present  Accounting S PV IPublic Reseller of Apple
2018~ General Touch Printing  Retail for computer Accounting Manager Accounting, Manager Company products, including
Thailand Insurance Present Manager Republic hardware and peripheral (The person supervis- Krirk University Limited computers, iOS devices
Leadership Co. Ltd ing accounting) (iPod, iPad, iPhone)
Program, 2013, Bachelor of and various other
Office of Insurance 2016~ Director Touch Printing  Digital Fabric Printing Accounting, accessories as well as
Commission(OIC) Present Republic Service Provider Phranakhon distributor for other
Co.Ltd Rajabhat University brands that compatible
with Apple products.
Mr. Hathaiwat Puapunt 35 Bachelor of - - 2024- Vice President S P V | Public Reseller of Apple Bachelor of
Vice President — Accountancy Present — Accounting Company products, including Accounting, 1996-20M Accounting SPV Advance Leasing
Accounting & Finance Program and Finance Limited computers, iOS devices Major General Manager Corporation
Chiang Mai (iPod, iPad, iPhone) Administration, Limited
University and various other Rajabhat
accessories as well as Rajanagarindra
distributor for other University

brands that compatible
with Apple products.

Manager Remark : Including shares of spouse and minor children
EY Company Audit and Accounting
2018-2024 Limited Consultant
Mrs. Duangnapa 59 Bachelor of Sci- 037% Sister in 20M- Assistant Vice S P V | Public Reseller of Apple
Volyarngosol ence, Computer Law of Present President Company products, including
Assistant Vice President Science, Chiang Mr.Trisorn — Product Limited computers, iOS devices
Product Management Mai University Volyarn- Management (iPod, iPad, iPhone)
gosol and various other
and Mrs. accessories as well as
Petcharat distributor for other
Volyarn- brands that compatible
gosol with Apple products.
1994- Director SPV Advance Leasing
Present Corporation
Limited
Mr. Pongsakorn 54 Master of Tele- 0.21% - 20M- Senior S P V | Public Reseller of Apple
Boonsrimuang communications Present Manager- Company products, including
Senior Manager - Engineering, King Engineering Limited computers, iOS devices
Engineering and Mongkut's Institute and Service (iPod, iPad, iPhone)
Service of Technology and various other
Ladkrabang accessories as well as

distributor for other
brands that compatible
with Apple products.

Mr. Pairoj Ulisnant 56 Vocational Certif- - - 20M- Senior S P V | Public Reseller of Apple
Senior Manager - Retail icate in Electrical Present Manager- Company products, including
Power Retail Limited computers, iOS devices

(iPod, iPad, iPhone)
and various other
accessories as well as
distributor for other
brands that compatible
with Apple products.
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Details of the directors, executives and controlling person of
the Company who also hold directorial or executive positions at
related companies as of December 31,2024

Mr. Teera Aphaiwongse

Name Company _
X,AC

Mr. Sujin Suwannagate /,AC

Mr. Min Intanate /,C

Mr. Narathorn Wongvises /

Mr. Trisorn Volyarngosol 111,111

Mrs. Petcharat Volyarngosol /,11*

Mrs. Susama Rativanich /,AC

Mr. Sophon Intanate /

Mr. Hathaiwat Puapunt /1*

Mrs. Duangnapa Volyarngosol ** /

Mr. Pongsakorn Boonsrimuang

Mr. Pairoj Ulisnant

Related Companies

/,C / / / / / /C /C

C = Executive Chairman

Remark X = Chairman of the Board
AC = Member of Audit Committee / = Director
// = Executive Director

*

Vice Preseident

* Kk

= Senior Manager

/// = General Manager

**

= Assistant Vice President

-

Related Companies

SPV Digital Service Company Limited

SPV Advance Company Limited

Advance Research Group Company Limited
D & B (Thailand) Company Limited

National Credit Bureau Company Limited
Business Online Public Company Limited
PCC International Company Limited
Venture Profile Company Limited

PNOUAWN S

-

9. ANET Company Limited

10. ABIKS Development Company Limited

11. SP.N. Enterprise Company Limited

12. AR. Accounting Consultant Company Limited
13. ARIT Company Limited

14. ARIP Public Company Limited

15. IT City Public Company Limited

16. Touch Printing Republic Company Limited

J
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Details of the head of internal audit and compliance supervisor

Academic
Qualification

Name-Surname / | Age

(Years)

Position

Ms. Yupa Benjavikrai 53 Bachelor of Busi-
ness Administration
Program in Inter-
national Business
Management, Siam
University

Percent-
age of
Share-
holding

Family
Relationship
with the
executive

Working Experience in Past 5 Years

Cilmpany HpS SrEisne
ame

201 -
Present

Internal Audit S P V | Public Reseller of Apple
Manager Company products, including
Limited computers, iOS devices

(iPod, iPad, iPhone)
and various other
accessories as well as
distributor for other
brands that compatible
with Apple products.
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Enclosure 3

Asset used in business operation

As of December 31, 2024, the Company has leased space and buildings for business use from

Enclosure 3 o
(@)
. . O
Details of leasing agreement 5
m
Z
_|

several landlords, which can be summarized as follows:

As of December 31, 2024, the Company has the following assets used in the business operation:

144

Rental . .
Landlord Objective Location Rental Period
. . . Book Value As of
Type of Asset Ownership Obligation December 31, 2024
(Million Baht) C.P. Tower Growth Leasehold iBeat Room no. 4P36 — 37, 82 May 1, 2023 -
Property Fund 4th Floor, Fortune Tower April 30, 2026
Leasehold Building Improvement Yes No -
Central Pattana Public Company iStudio Room no. 408-409 186.1 November 27, 2024 -
Vehicle Yes No 0.07 Limited Central Plaza Chaengwattana May 26, 2025
. i d ) iStudio Room no. G45- 46, G Floor, Central 217.34 April 24, 2024 -
Office supplies and equipments Yes No 4559 Plaza Nakhon Sawan April 23, 2027
Decoration and Installation Yes No 86.74 iCenter  Central Plaza Phuket Festival 47 February 21,2024 -
: February 20, 2027
Computer Software and Accounting Software ves No 18.34 iStudio  Room no. 137/3,138,139/1 Central 20343 November 29, 2023 -
Computer Hardware Yes No 422 West Ville May 28, 2026
Royalty Fee of AIS Shop by Partner Yes No 15.13 Seacon Development Public iStudio Room no. 1019 G Floor, Seacon 153 November 29, 2023 -
Company Limited Square November 28, 2026
Total 170.09
Central Pattana Nine Square iStudio Room no. 407, 408, 409/1 4th Floor, 230.45 November 1, 2022 -
Company Limited Central Plaza Grand Rama 9 October 31, 2025
Tippatana Arket Company Limited iBeat Room no. 1129 72 December 14, 2023 -
st Floor, Gateway Ekamai December 14, 2026
Central Pattana Development iBeat Room no. 150 78.59 July 18,2022 -
Company Limited st Floor, Central Plaza Chiangrai July 17, 2025
iCenter Room no. 128/1 4272 March 30, 2024 -
st Floor, Central Plaza Chiangrai March 29, 2027
Assumption University of U-Store Room no 19 64.19 November 1, 2024 -
Thailand Suvarnabhumi Campus G Floor, ABAC Plaza October 31, 2025
Bangkok University U-Store Multipurpose building, next to 9335 November 1, 2024 -
building 10, Rangsit Campus October 31, 2025
Kasetsart University U-Store KU Book Life Store 116 March 1, 2022 -
(Bangkaen Campus) February 28, 2025
Kasetsart University U-Store st Floor, Building No. 24, 128.63 March 1, 2022 -
= (Sriracha Campus) Faculty of International Maritime February 28, 2025
———
| _, Mahidol University U-Store Room no. A115 1n3 November 1, 2023 -
! (Salaya Campus) G Floor, Adityathorn Building, October 31, 2025
| International College, Mahidol
University, Nakornpathom
Dhurakij Pundit University U-Store 1st Floor, Building no. 7, 34 November 1, 2022 -
Dhurakij Pundit University October 31, 2025
Burapha University U-Store  Taothong Hotel Operation Center 48.00 April 1, 2025 -
Building March 31, 2027
CPN Rayong Company Limited  iStudio Room no. 231-232 22315 October 25, 2025 -
2nd Floor, Central Plaza Rayong October 24, 2027
AIS Room no. 253, 71.84 December 20, 2024 -
A\ Shop 2nd Floor, Central Plaza Rayong December 19, 2025
\\
S‘L
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Enclosure 3

Landlord

Charounphan Departmentstore
Limited, Part

Big C Supercenter Public
Company Limited

Home Product Center Public
Company Limited

Robinson Department Store
Public Company Limited
Kamphaengphet Branch

Robinson Department Store
Public Company Limited Ban
Chang Branch

Robinson Department Store
Public Company Limited
Thalang Branch

Robinson Department Store
Public Company Limited Mae
Sot Branch

Robinson Department Store
Public Company Limited
Chonburi Branch

CR Chantaburi (Thailand)
Company Limited

LT Retail Company Limited

Ek-Chai Distribution System
Company Limited

Rental

Objective

Mobi

Mobi

AIS
Shop

AlIS
Shop

AlS
Telewiz

iCenter

iBeat

AlS
Shop

AIS
Shop

AIS
Shop

AIS
Shop

AIS
Shop

AlIS
Shop

AIS
Telewiz

AlIS
Shop

AIS
Telewiz

Location

1st Floor, Charounphan
Departmentstore Payao

Room no. GCR1119 1st Floor, Big C
Supercenter, Lamphun

Room no. GCR117

G Floor, Big C Supercenter
88/18, Sattahip Sub District,
Sattahip District, Chonburi 20180

Room no. GCR125

G Floor, Big C

189 Moo 7 Pa Rai Sub District,
Aranyaprathet District, Sa Kaeo

Room no. GCR125 G Floor, Big C 157
Moo 4 Sapradoo Sub District,
Wichian Buri District, Phetchabun
67130

SC104 HomePro Nakornpathom

Room no. 206 2nd Floor, Robinson
Department Store Public Company
Limited Kamphaengphet Branch

Room no. 210 2nd Floor, Robinson
Department Store Public Company
Limited Kamphaengphet Branch

Room no. 209 2nd Floor, Robinson
Department Store Public Company
Limited Ban Chang Branch

Room no. 209 2nd Floor, Robinson
Department Store Public Company
Limited Thalang Branch

Room no. 213 2nd Floor, Robinson
Department Store Public Company
Limited Mae Sot Branch

Room no.214 2nd Floor, 888 Moo
3 Don Hua Lo. Mueang Chon Buri,
District, Chantaburi

Room no. 110 1st Floor, 22/107
Chanthanimit Sub District, Mueng
Chantaburi District, Chantaburi

Room no. 1SPO4 1st Floor, Laemtong
Shopping Plaza Bangsaen, 278/2
Long Had Bangsaen Rd, Saen Suk,
Chon Buri District, Chon Buri

Ek-Chai Department Store Rayong,
3 Rayong Building, Sukhumvit Road,
Tha Pradu Sub District, Mueang
Rayong District, Rayong 21000

Ek-Chai Department Store U-Tapao
26/62 Moo 1, National Highway

No. 331, Sattahip-Phanomsarakam
Route, Phlu Ta Luang Sub District,
Sattahip District, Chonburi 20180

3744

4371

40

38

30.63

95

88.62

80.85

81

81

129

89.6

103

3550

60.17

30.62

Rental Period

May 20, 2023 -
May 19, 2024

September 17, 2023 -
March 16, 2025

November 1, 2024 -
October 31, 2025

December 14, 2024 -
December 13, 2025

December 24, 2024 -
December 23, 2025

October 1, 2023 -
September 30, 2025

December 8, 2024 -
December 7, 2025

January 1,2023 -
December 31, 2025

March 3, 2022 -
March 2, 2025

August 25, 2023 -
August 24, 2025

December 18, 2022 -
December 17, 2025

July 1, 2024 -
June 30, 2025

January 1, 2025 -
31 December 2027

June N1, 2024 -
June 10, 2027

December 1, 2024 -
November 30, 2025

November 2, 2024 -
November 1, 2025

Landlord

My Passion & Inspiration
Company Limited

Praram 9 Square Company

Limited

Central Food Retail Company
Limited

King Mongkul’s University of
Technology North Bangkok

Mae Fah Luang University
Naresuan University
Mahasarakham University
Rambhai Barni Rajabhat

University

Chiang Mai Rajabhat University

Rental

Objective

AlS
Shop

AIS
Telewiz

AIS
Telewiz

Mobi

AIS
Shop

AlIS
Shop

AlS
Telewiz

AlS
Telewiz

iCenter

iCenter

Mobi

AIS
Buddy

U-Store

U-Store

U-Store

U-Store

U-Store

U-Store

Location

Ek-Chai Department Store Ban
Chang 66 Moo 3, Pla Sub District,
Ban Chang District, Rayong 21130

Ek-Chai Department Store Lom
Sak Sub District, Wat Pa District,
Phetchabun

Ek-Chai Department Store Si Thep
701 Moo 5, Sa Kruat Sub District,
Si Thep District, Phetchabun 67170
Ek-Chai Department Store Bo Win
17/46, Bo Win Sub District, Si Racha
District, Chonburi 20230

Ek-Chai Department Store Rojana
101 Moo 3, Samruean SubDistrict,
Bang pa-in District, Ayutthaya 13160
Ek-Chai Department Store
Phetchabun 929 Moo 2, Sadiang
Subdistrict, Mueang Phetchabun
District, Phetchabun 67000

669 Moo 3, Tha Wang Thong

Subdistrict, Mueang Phayao District,
Phayao 56000

Sattahip Branch, Lotus, Room
516P2006 179 Moo 2, Sukhumvit
Road, Sattahip Subdistrict, Sattahip
District, Chonburi 20180

Room no. A2 - 016

2nd Floor, Passione Shopping
Destination

Room no. B29-B30 B Floor, G Tower,
33/4 Rama 9 Road, Huay Kwang
Sub District, Huay Kwang District,
Bangkok

Room no. 023
1st Floor, Tops Plaza Phichit

Room no. RT129/1
1st Floor, Tops Plaza Phayao

Basement Floor, Building no. 79

3rd Floor,
E-Park Building Chiangrai

1st Floor, Medical Science
Complex, Pitsanulok

Talad Noi Canteen (Garage)

1st Floor, Building No. 24,
Faculty of International Maritime

1st Floor, 90th Anniversary
Building

72

2533

2321

24

100.04

38

37.26

2443

60

175

50

48

200

53

55

88

67

58

Enclosure 3

Rental Period

November 24, 2024 -
November 23, 2025

February 16, 2022 -
February 15, 2025

Jun 7,2024 -
Jun 6, 2025

September 1, 2023 -
August 31, 2025

January 9, 2024 -
January 8 2025

April 1, 2024 -
March 31, 2025

March 1, 2024 -
February 28, 2025

September 6, 2024 -
September 5, 2025

March 1, 2022 -
February 28, 2025

June 1, 2022 -
May 31, 2025

April 1, 2024 -
March 31, 2025
January 25, 2024 -
January 24, 2025

January 1, 2025 -
December 31, 2025
April 1, 2022 -
March 31, 2025

October 1, 2022 -
September 30, 2025

January 1, 2022 -
December 31, 2025

July 15, 2023 -
July 14, 2026

July 27, 2023 -
July 26, 2026
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Enclosure 3

Rental

Landlord Location

Objective

Prince of Songkla University U-Store Integrated School and Basic
Scientific Operation Building,
Faculty of Science

Rajamangala University of U-Store st Floor, RMUTT Central Building

Technology Thanyabri

University of Phayao U-Store CE Building

Maejo University U-Store st Floor, 80th Anniversary Building

Suranaree University of U-Store Educational Center 1

Technology

Nakhon Pathom Rajabhat U-Store  School Building A3

University

Pibulsongkram Rajabhat U-Store st Floor,

University Maha Vajiralongkorn Building

Chulalongkorn University U-Store Siam Scape Building

Property and Sports U-Store  7th Gymnasium Puey Ungphakorn

Management Thammasat Centenary Hall

University

The Crown Property Bureau U-Store 14-15/59-61 Tha Phrachan Subdistrict,
Phra Nakhon District Bangkok

Rajamangala University of U-Store 2 Nang Linchi Road Thung Maha

Technology Krungthep Mek Subdistrict, Sathon District,
Bangkok 10120

Phranakhon Rajabhat University =~ U-Store 1st Floor, Integrated Professional
Experience Training Building

Nakhon Sawan Rajabhat U-Store 398 Moo 9 Sawanwithi Road,

University Nakhon Sawan Tok Subdistrict
Mueang District, Nakhon Sawan
Province 60000

Miss Tunyapat Benywaleemas AlS 259/2 Moo M, Nongkam Sub District,

Telewiz Si Racha District, Chonburi 20230

Ms. Pimpa Pojnamartra Office Home Office Building
4-storey building, 1 building
Town in Town, Sriwara Road,
separated from Pradit Manutham
Road, Phlapphla Sub District,
Wang Thonglang District, Bangkok

Premier Technology (Public) Office 2 Premier Place Building, 1st Floor

Zone A, 3rd Floor Zone A, Zone
B, Soi Premier 2, Srinakarin Rd.,
Nongbon Sub District, Prawet
District, Bangkok 10250

Company Limited

80.91

81

82

89

103.20

26

96.18

140.57

89.24

316

94.38

76.69

95

85

290

2,29397

Enclosure 3

Details of leaseholding

Rental Period As of December 31, 2024, the Company has the following leasehold properties for business

operations.
August 1, 2023 -
July 31, 2026 Book Value
Location Objective Space Period Obligation |As of December 31, 2023
September 10, 2023 - (Million Baht)
September 9, 2026
October 1, 2023 - Room no. 223 Mobi 100 Sg.m. February 11, No 3.02
September 30, 2026 2nd Floor 201 - August
September 24, 2023 - Esplanade Complex 2, 2031
September 23, 2026
No. 59-61, Room no. U-Store 316 Sg.m. June 1, 2023 - No 313
QOctober 6, 2024 - 14-15, Phra Chan Rd,, May 31, 2035

October 5, 2026

September 1, 2024 -
August 31, 2025
April 1, 2022 -
March 31, 2025

May 1, 2022 -
30 Apiril, 2025

December 1, 2023 -
30 November 2025

Phra Borom Maha
Ratchawang Sub
District, Phra Nakhon
District, Bangkok

June 1, 2023 -
May 31, 2038

November 1, 2022 -
October 31, 2025

February 1, 2023 -
January 312026

August 1, 2023 -
July 31, 2026

September 15, 2022 -
October 31, 2024

March 1, 2022 -
February 28, 2025

December 1, 2025 -
November 30, 2027

Remark :

accordance with the right to sell and service.

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 (Form 56-1 One Report)
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Report of the Executive Committee

The Executive Committee consists of 4 directors and executives including Mr. Min Intanate as
Executive Chairman and Mr. Trisorn Volyarngosol, Mrs. Petcharat Volyarngosol, Mr. Hathaiwat Puapunt
as executive directors. According to the scope and assigned duties by the Board
of Directors, the Executive Committee has performed the entire duties with all their
capability and prudence for the overall benefits of the Company and shareholders by appropriately.
The essence of duties including;

1. Consider and scrutinize the business strategy and annual budgeting, and propose to the
Board of Directors to consider approval.

2. Follow up business performance in order to ensure achievement of assigned business goal
and report to the Board of Directors.

3. Consider criteria in determining the rate of annual salary increment and policy of bonus
payment as well as consider the annual salary and bonus payment for the staffs in job grade
lower than Managing Director.

4. Consider other matters assigned by the Board of Directors.

The Executive Committee is committed to perform duties with all their capability by precaution,
prudence, honesty and taking into account for the best benefits of the Company with fairness to
shareholders and stakeholders. As well as, overseeing the Company’s operation to be effective,
legitimate, align with the Company’s goals and regulations in order to ensure business achievement
for sustainable growth.

P

Mr. Min Intanate
Executive Chairman

Report of the Audit Committee

To the Shareholders of S P V | Public Company Limited

The Audit Committee of S P V | Public Company Limited is appointed by the Board of Directors,
consists of three independent board members, whose knowledge and qualifications are complied
with the directive issued by The Office of The Securities and Exchange Commission. The current
members of committee are:

1. Mr. Teera Aphaiwongse; Chairman of the Audit Committee

2. Mr. Sujin Suwannagate; Member of the Audit Committee

3. Mrs. Susama Rativanich; Member of the Audit Committee
Ms. Yupa Benchawikai; Manager of the Internal Audit Department, serves as secretary of the
Audit Committee
The Audit Committee performed the duty as assigned by the Board of Directors, in compliance
with the charter of auditing.
In 2024, the Audit Committee held 4 meetings with the management, internal auditors, and external
auditors. The Committee reported its activities to the Board of Directors on a quarterly basis as
summarized below.
To Review Financial Statements: The Committee reviewed quarterly and annual financial report,
together with information disclosure and accounting policies, with the management and the
external auditors, including the notes and suggestion by the auditors stated in the report submitted
to the Board of Directors and Shareholders, The Committee assessed the adequacy and reliability
of information disclosure and external auditor’s discretion and determined that the company
financial statements and reports had complied with accounting standard requirements under
generally accepted accounting principles.
To Review Internal Control System: The Committee reviewed the Company’s internal audit plan and
reports to assess the sufficiency and efficiency of internal control system and found that the internal
control system was sufficient, appropriate and effective for the Company’s business. The Committee
provided recommendations for continuous improvement in the efficiency of internal control system
and adherence to the rules and regulations set forth by the Company.
To Review Related Transaction: The Committee reviewed the related transactions that might
cause a conflict of interest to ensure that they conform with the normal business practices and
there were no items that will have a significant impact on the Company, based on the accepted
principles of transparency, including the sufficient disclosure of those transactions in compliance
with the requirement of the Stock Exchange of Thailand and Company’s guideline.
To Review Corporate Governance: The Committee reviewed the Company’s adherence to Good
Corporate Governance principle, to ensure that the internal control system is effective, adequate,
and appropriate to the changing business environment.
Appointment of External Auditor: The Committee proposed the appointment and remuneration
of the Auditors, based on their knowledge’s, experiences and integrity, to the Board of Directors,
for shareholders’ approval at the Annual General Meeting.

In summary, the Audit Committee performed its duties as specified in the Board-approved charter
with prudence and independence, and confirmed that the Board of Director and Executives of
company are committed to achieve company goals with the
highest quality of work, emphasizing the important of operating
under the effective internal control system, with good corporate
governance and transparency in accordance to the guideline

of the Stock Exchange of Thailand.

S 7 AFMWX“
Mr. Teera Aphaiwongse
Chairman of Audit Committee
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Report of the
Risk Management Committee

To the Shareholders of S P V | Public Company Limited

The Board of Directors has appointed the Directors and Top Executives as the Risk Management
Committee, comprising Mr. Narathorn Wongvises Mr. Trisorn Volyarngosol, Mrs. Petcharat Volyarngosol
and Mr. Hathaiwat Puapunt Miss Sunsanee Horanikom served as secretary.

In 2024, the Risk Management Committee conducted 3 meetings to monitor and make consideration
on important matters assigned by the Board of Directors as follows:

1. Consider the risk factors that affect the company’s goal by considering carefully both
internal and external risk factors together with suggesting useful solutions to reduce risk
to the acceptable level

2. Provide suggestions and monitor performance of management level of the Risk Management
in order to bring into action to achieve the goal.

3. Schedule to report the performance to the Board of Directors on quarterly basis

The Risk Management Committee determined to make the Company perform business operations
based on governance principles and have efficient risk management plan in place which can
control risks from business operations to be within the specified scope. Additionally, the Company
plans to have the appropriate and adequate internal controls for its business operations as
well as well-prepared plans in all matters in advance, consequently the Company can achieve
business goals as intended and with efficiency.

Mr. Narathorn Wongvises
Chairman of the Risk Management
Committee

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 (Form 56-1 One Report)
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Report of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee

To Shareholders

The Board of Directors resolved to approve appointment of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee of S P V | Public Company Limited on May 2, 2017. To ensure that the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee will be able to perform their duty independently, all members will be
Independent Directors, which consist of 3 members as following.
1. Mr. Teera Aphaiwongse

Independent Director and Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
2. Mr. Sujin Suwannagate

Independent Director and member of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
3. Mrs. Susama Rativanich

Independent Director and member of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Miss Natarin Werasilapachai, Human Resource Manager, assumed the position of the secretary of
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee

In 2024, there was a meeting of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, which all members
gave priority to attend and provided suggestions that benefit to the operation of the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee was assigned by the Board of Directors to arrange
the meeting to consider variety of matters carefully, reasonably, transparently and independently by
taking into account maximum benefits of the company and company’s shareholders. The Nomination
and Remuneration Committee has performed their duty under the duties and responsibilities set
forth in the Charter of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, which are in line with the principle
and guideline of Good Corporate Governance of the Stock Exchange of Thailand. The matters were
considered as follow:
1. The Structure and Composition of the Board of Directors
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has considered the structure and composition
of the Board of Directors and Sub-Committee including the qualification of the Directors
that appropriate to business size and nature of business of the Company
2. Rules and procedure to nominate individual person to assume the position of Company’s Director
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has considered the rule and procedure to
nominate individual person to assume the position of Company’s Directors including the
qualification of the Directors that appropriate to business size and nature of business of the
Company
3. Guideline for remuneration of the Company’s Directors and Sub-Committee
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has considered the guideline and procedure
for the payment of all types of Directors’ remuneration to be in appropriate rate with their
duties and responsibilities and be in comparable rate to other companies in the same
category specified in MAI of the Stock Exchange
4. Guideline for performance assessment of Managing Director
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has considered guideline for annual performance
assessment of the Chief Executive Officer to ensure that it cover and reflect the actual
performance
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has promoted,
encouraged and provided opportunity to minority shareholders O@M AT/{MA
to take part in corporate governance and provide opinions ZS
toward business operation as well as propose, in advance, (Mr. Teera Aphaiwongse)
the meeting agenda, the candidates to replace Chairman of Nomination and
the Directors retiring by rotation for the year of 2024 . .
during 1-31 December 2023 through the Company’s website. Remuneration Committee
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North

21 Branches

i e

Phichit 1 Branch

S o o B 1 i it i i | S

West
1 Branch
Tak 1 Branch

» iy Central

29 Branches & 1 HQ

Chiang Mai 3 Branches
Chiang Rai 4 Branches
Phayao 4 Branches

Lamphun 1 Branch
Phetchabun 4 Branches
Phitsanulok 2 Branches
Kamphaeng Phet 2 Branches

North East
4 Branches

Nakhon Ratchasima
2 Branches

Maha Sarakham

2 Branches

East
19 Branches

Chanthaburi 2 Branches
Chonburi 10 Branches
Rayong 6 Branches

Sa Kaeo 1 Branch

Bangkok 15 Branches & 1 HQ

Nonthaburi 2 Branches

Pathum Thani 4 Branches
Nakhon Pathom 3 Branches

Nakhon Sawan 2 Branch

Samut Prakan 1 Branches
Phra Nakhon Si Ayutthaya 1 Branch
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South

4 Branches

Songkhla 2 Branches
Phuket 2 Branches

S P V | Branches

iStudio By SPVI

Su 4 gugmsABunsa waigh udv3cuu: Uninda o.uunus (02-101-0890-1)
3u G oMsBAUALADS (02-720-2988-9)

Su 4 AugnmsAmiBunsaws:siw 9 (02-108-3241-2)

Su 2 gugmsABunsa was s:uov (038-942- 676)

du1 AugnmsAmBunsa 1aA3ad (06-3268-9737)

3u G 1BunsaunsanssA (061 420 8823)

iBeat by SPVI

3u 4 21MswasuM3u (02-642-0634-5)

3u1 AugMsANaE nde (02-108-2844-5)

$u 1 gugmsmiBunsa wadh 1Bovsie (052-020-822-3)
Bu 2 AUIMSATSOUFU aunrhuwolwss (055-867-203)

U-Store By SPVI

21A1S (FUILIBEU) UKISNENEUSSSUAENsSOaa (095-372-5532)

AUTKUVED UMBNENassssuMansiws:ouNs (02-623-5800)

Bu G 21s ABAC Plaza uniSngndesdadusy (02-705-5190)

AUIkULED UMSnendoinuasmaas (095-372-5538)

21MSDINAYINS SNNFVUIUINE UKISNENdBRaa Aaen (02-800-2558-9)
21MSDIUNUS:EVATIDIMS A6 UKISNENAUNSVINW SNewasvda (02-902-0606-7)
$u 1 21ms 7 uK3nendessioUtuna (02-954-9878-9)

AUkt IASAUIURUANSTSOUSUININDY UKISNeNasyswa (095-372-5542)
Sutddau 21ms 79 uksnendeinalulagws:oauindws:unstklio o.ngoinwd (065-524-3911)
2115 E-Park $U 3 UKI3NENEUULWAKADD D188V (065-524-3911)

$U 1 ACUESNEIMAASMSUWNE UKISNENUULSADS D.Wuylan (065-524-3912)
Tsvomisaaratpy (Isvopasn) UKISNENJLUKIEISAU

21MSIDAUWSHAYSE (21A1s 36) BU 1 UMSNENdsswANSTwwsstd

21Ms 90 U SU 1 UM3NENFLSANBUOIKL

21ASE8USIU 1A:UFUAMSWUZIUMOSNENAENS ACU:SNENAEAS
UKI3NeNduavuaiunsuns Snenwarialkey

21MISISEUSOVLA:U[UAMS UKISnendeinAlulagsisuonasus

21MsiSeusou CE UKISNENJuW:EN

21A1si8uusou 80 U BU 1 UKIBNEndeudTs

21MSISEUSOU 1 uMISnendoinAlulaggsuns

21MISISEU A3 UKISNENAUSWANUASUZY

$U 1 21MSUKIDBSIAONSCUUKISNENALSWANWYAFOASIL

$u 121A1S 24 ACUWICIBELNSUILING UKISNENFUINLASAMANS SNENarSsI
$u 1 21msagnualau havnsaiumsnends

GanuULAUD UM3neNdoinalulagsisuonansLINW

Bu 1 21MSANUS:AUMSISHIBWIBOYSTUINS UM3NENSSISAWS:UAS
KNDIMS 15 UKISNYIAYSWANUASEISSA

Mobi

Su 1 SeuAtuAdGwASNWURETaS witen (095-372-553)
$u 121ms0ng ywWasiBuiaas awawyu (096-8814318)
Su 4 AUINSA NoUE wats) woas (063-207-5324)
$u 2 gugmsmMawaina

$u 2 2Asladia awIUasuU SorSavaus

AIS Shop
21mstnaln Tada awis:uov (098-819-9776)

@u 1 21sGng BpsBulaRs awdstyUs:nA (089-899-5395)
Bu 1 AuIMsMIsOudu o.5unys (093-138-8157)
21stnalnl Tada awivudv (062-423-9979)

Su 2 FugMsmMIsoudu awnrmuwowss (080-834-7899)
AUIMSMONBLUIDSIBULODS aNdaRU ©.d0RU D.saus (06 5519 3826)
21msINalA Tada anvuwssysad a.a:dev o.1bov diwssysad (06 5519 3825)
Augmsmistudulawaloa says a.Wbavsays ssaus (06 5519 3822)

BU 2 UEMSsAMIBUNSa wand) s:uov (065-717-0613)

21msinaln Tada awnlsou: 0.0gsen (063-207-0596)

Bu 2 UEMSMISTUAU @ubaaa sordamn

BU 2 AUIMSMISTUAU @UIIUDID DOHIOSUDD

$u 2 gugmsmistudulawalad awinaio soksania

AIS Telewiz

aun 669 KN 3 chuam>Svnav Sunawavws:en YoKda w:len 56000
AUIMSM UNB GUasiBulaas aw31Besys wissysad (097-918-9226)
21stnalfl Tada awikaudn (097-918-9228)

21msINalA Tada awga:n a.wamkadw o.d0AU Dsays (065-512-5803)
21MsInaln Tada awASInw Dawssysad (065-984-1678)

$u 1 gUIMSALKaLNEY Saulowas1 UIUaU SoKSavaus

21mslada awnaaru

21IMSWITILE SUNDFASSIT FOKIQBAUS

AIS Buddy
Bu 1 AUIMSsM naud yUasalas ween (063-207-5329)

A Store

21MS 14 UMISNENFYASUASUNSSTSCU Us:anuoas

$u 1 2mMsAUINSWENNSMSISBUS (LRC) UmSnendeaouaiunsuns Snenwamalked
$u 121MSBUILBU Salap UM3Nendensoinw

Bu 3 21As M-Square UKI3NENAUUUWAKADD

AUNABUWILODSIAN UMSNENFBUKINSAY

ADVDIAISSUUUNSE UKISNENFUINUASAMEAS SNENUOFSSIS

21ASISYUSOU B3 wriSnendginAluladgsuns

21MssWAN 90 U UKMISNeNFeSWBANBYOIKL

21A1S 4 ACUEUSHISSSAD BU 1 UM3NENJBINUASAENS

iCenter

ziu B 21Ms 5 Mdas unsud ws:sw 9 Kogudw nsotnwe (02-117-4903-4, 095-372-5558)
Bu 2 Passione Shopping Destination 9.s:9v (038-010-909, 095-372-5530)

Bu 1 gUIMSAMIBUNSA wand) D1Bevs1E (052-020-866, 095-372-5557)

Bu 1 Kwlauldsunsugu d.upsUgu (034-900-815-6, 095-372-5573)

Bu 2 AuIMsAMIBUNSa IwWada Quia

4th Floor Central Plaza Chaengwattana, Pak Kret, Nonthaburi
G Floor Seacon Square

4th Floor Central Plaza Grand Rama 9

2nd Floor Central Plaza Rayong

1st Floor Central Westville

G Floor Central Nakhon Sawan

4th Floor Fortune Tower

st Floor Gateway Ekamai

st Floor Central Plaza Chiangrai
2nd Floor Robinson Kamphaengphet

Thammasat University (Rangsit)

Thammasat University Bookstore (Thaprachan)

Gth Floor, ABAC Plaza Assumption University (Suvarnaphumi Campus)
Book Center Kasetsart University

Mahidol University International (Saraya)

Anek Prasong Building (building 6), Bangkok University (Rangsit)

st Floor Building 7,Dhurakij Pundit University

University in front of Tao-Tong Hotel Operation Center Burapha University
King Mongkut's University of Technology North Bangkok

E-Park Building, 3nd Floor, Mae Fah Luang University, Chiang Rai Province
1Ist Floor, lass Faculty of Medical Sciences Naresuan University, Phitsanulok
Talat Noi Canteen (Parking Garage), Mahasarakham Universit

Chaloem Phra Kiat Building (Building 36), 1st Floor, Rambhaibarni Rajabhat University
90 Years Building, st Floor, Chiang Mai Rajabhat University

Faculty of Science, Prince of Songkla University.

Combined School Building and Operations Rajamangala University of Technology Thanyaburi
School Building Combined CE, University of Phayao

School Building for 80 years, 1st fioor, Mae Jo University

Suranaree University of Technology

Building A3, Nakhon Pathom Rajabhat University

st Floor, Maha Vajiralongkorn Building Phibunsongkhram Rajabhat University

st Floor, Building 24, Faculty of International Maritime Kasetsart University Sriracha Campus
1st Floor, Siamscape Building Chulalongkorn University

Next to Nang Linchi Road Rajamangala University of Technology Krungthep

st Floor, Integrated Professional Experience Training Building Phranakhon Rajabhat University
In front of Building 15, Nakhon Sawan Rajabhat University

1st floor, Charoenphan Department Store

1st floor, Big C Lamphun

4th floor, Tops Plaza Phichit

2nd floor, Esplanade

2nd floor, Lotus Building, Bowin branch, Chonburi

Ek-Chai Department Store Rayong, 3 Rayong Building, Sukhumvit Road,

Tha Pradu Sub District, Mueang Rayong District, Rayong 21000

Room no. GCR125 G Floor, Big C 189 Moo 7 Pa Rai Sub District, Aranyaprathet District, Sa Kaeo
Room no. 109 110 1st Floor, 22/107 Chanthanimit Sub District, Mueng Chantaburi District, Chantaburi
Ek-Chai Department Store Rojana 101 Moo 3, Samruean Sub District,

Bang pa-in District, Ayutthaya 13160

Ek-Chai Department Store Ban Chang 66 Moo 3, Pla Sub District, Ban Chang District, Rayong 21130
Room no. 210 2nd Floor, Robinson Department Store Public Company Limited Kamphaengphet Branch
Room no. GCR117 G Floor, Big C Supercenter 88/18, Sattahip Sub District, Sattahip District, Chonburi 20180
929 Moo 2 Sadiang Sub District, Mueang Petchaboon District, Petchaboon 67000

888 Moo 3 Don Hua Lo Sub District, Mueang Chonburi District, Chonnburi 20000

Room no. 253 2nd Floor, Central Plaza Rayong 99,99/1 Mueang Rayong District, Rayong 21000
Room no. 213 2nd Floor, Robinson Department Store Public Company Limited Mae Sot Branch
Room no. 209 2nd Floor, Robinson Department Store Public Company Limited Ban Chang Branch
Room no. 209 2nd Floor, Robinson Department Store Public Company Limited Thalang Branch

No. 669 Moo.3 Tha Wang Thong, Mueang Phayao, Phayao 56000

Big C Wachian Buri, Phetchabun

Tesco Lotus Lhomsak, Phetchabun

Tesco Lotus U-Ta Pao, Phlu Ta Luang, Sattahip, Chon Buri

Tesco Lotus Sithep, Phetchabun

st Floor, Lang Thong Shopping Center Shopping Plaza Bangsaen, Chonburi
Lotus Building, Sattahip Branch

Commercial building, Sriracha District, Chonburi Province

st Tops Superstore

No.14 Prasanmit Building, Srinakharinwirot University

st Floor Learning Resources Center (LRC) Building, Prince of Songkla University Hat Yai Campus
st Floor, Imagine Village Building, Bangkok University

3rd Floor, M-Square Building, Mae Fah Luang Universit

former computer office Mahasarakham University

Romnonsi building room Kasetsart University Sriracha Campus

Building B3, Suranaree University of Technology

Rajabhat 90 Years Building, Chiang Mai Rajabhat University

Building 4, Faculty of Business Administration, 1st floor, Kasetsart University

Bth Floor G Tower Grand Rama 9

2th Floor Passione Shopping Destination, Rayong
st Floor Central Plaza Chiangrai

st Floor Homepro Nakornphatom

2th floor, Central Festival Phuket Shopping Center
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S P V | Public Company Limited

2 Premier Place Building, 1st Floor Zone A, 3rd Floor Zone A, Zone B,
Soi Premier 2, Srinakarin Rd., Kwaneng Nongbon, Khet Prawet Bangkok 10250
https://www.spvi.co.th



